SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 Commission File Number 000-50421

CONN'S, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

A Delaware Corporation

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

06-1672840

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

3295 College Street
Beaumont, Texas 77701
(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

(409) 832-1696 (Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Cot

Securities registered pursuant to Section l2(b) of the Act:

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of Class

Common Stock, Par Value \$0.01 Per Share

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (l) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \boxtimes No \square

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes \square No \boxtimes

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates as of the last business day of the registrant's most recently completed second quarter is not applicable as the registrant was not publicly traded at that time. The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates as of January 31, 2004 was approximately \$101,021,856.

There were 23,151,799 shares of common stock, \$0.01 par value per share, outstanding on April 15, 2004.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

Portions of the Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held June 3, 2004 (incorporated herein by reference in Part III).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		rage
	PART I	
ITEM 1.	BUSINESS.	1
ITEM 2.	PROPERTIES.	23
ITEM 3.	LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.	23
ITEM 4.	SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.	23
	PART II	
ITEM 5.	MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.	24
ITEM 6.	SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.	26
ITEM 7.	MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.	27
ITEM 7A.	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.	46
ITEM 8.	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.	48
ITEM 9.	CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.	71
ITEM 9A.	CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.	71
	<u>PART III</u>	
ITEM 10.	DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT	72
ITEM 11.	EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	72
ITEM 12.	SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	72
ITEM 13.	CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTION	72
ITEM 14.	PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.	72
	PART IV	
ITEM 15.	EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K	73
SIGNATURES		74
INDEX TO EXH	<u>IIBITS</u>	75

i

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, references to "we," "us," and "our" refer to the consolidated business operations of Conn's, Inc. and all of its direct and indirect subsidiaries, limited liability companies and limited partnerships.

Overview

We are a specialty retailer of home appliances and consumer electronics. We sell major home appliances including refrigerators, freezers, washers, dryers and ranges, and a variety of consumer electronics including projection, plasma and LCD televisions, camcorders, VCRs, DVD players and home theater products. We also sell home office equipment, lawn and garden products and bedding, and we continue to introduce additional product categories for the home to help increase same store sales and to respond to our customers' product needs. In the last three years, we have introduced several new product lines, including lawn and garden, bedding and generators. We offer over 1,100 product items, or SKUs, at good-better-best price points representing such national brands as General Electric, Whirlpool, Frigidaire, Mitsubishi, Sony, Panasonic, Thomson Consumer Electronics, Simmons, Hewlett Packard and Compaq. Based on revenue in 2002, we were the 13th largest retailer of home appliances in the United States, and we are either the first or second leading retailer of home appliances in terms of market share in the majority of our existing markets.

We began as a small plumbing and heating business in 1890. We began selling home appliances to the retail market in 1937 though one store located in Beaumont, Texas. We opened our second store in 1959 and have since grown to 47 stores, selling home appliances, consumer electronics, home office equipment, lawn and garden products and bedding.

We have been known for providing excellent customer service for over 113 years. We believe that our customer-focused business strategies make us an attractive alternative to appliance and electronics superstores, department stores and other national, regional and local retailers. We strive to provide our customers with:

- · a high level of customer service;
- · highly trained and knowledgeable sales personnel;
- a broad range of customer-driven, brand name products;
- flexible financing alternatives through our proprietary credit programs;
- · same day and next day delivery capabilities; and
- outstanding product repair service.

We believe that these strategies drive repeat purchases and enable us to generate substantial brand name recognition and customer loyalty. During fiscal 2004, approximately 59% of our credit customers, based on the number of invoices written, were repeat customers.

In 1994, we realigned and added to our management team, enhanced our infrastructure and refined our operating strategy to position ourselves for future growth. From fiscal 1994 to fiscal 1999, we selectively grew our store base from 21 to 26 stores while improving operating margins from 5.2% to 8.7%. Since fiscal 1999, we have generated significant growth in our number of stores, revenue and profitability. Specifically:

- we have grown from 26 stores to 47 stores, an increase of more than 80%, with several more stores currently under development;
- total revenues have grown at a compounded annual rate of 18.2% from \$234.5 million in fiscal 1999, to \$499.3 million in fiscal 2004;
- net income from continuing operations has grown at a compounded annual rate of 24.9% from \$8.8 million in fiscal 1999 to \$24.3 million in fiscal 2004; and

our same store sales growth from fiscal 1999 to fiscal 2004 has averaged 8.7%.

Our principal executives offices are located at 3295 College Street, Beaumont, Texas 77701. Our telephone number is (409) 832-1696, and our corporate website is www.conns.com. We do not intend for information contained on our website to be part of this Form 10-K.

Corporate Reorganization

We were formed as a Delaware corporation in January 2003 with an initial capitalization of \$1,000 to become the holding company of Conn Appliances, Inc., a Texas corporation. Prior to the completion of our initial public offering (the "IPO") in November 2003, we had no operations. As a result of the IPO, Conn Appliances, Inc. became our wholly-owned subsidiary and the common and preferred stockholders of Conn Appliances, Inc. exchanged their common and preferred stock on a one-for-one basis for the common and preferred stock of Conn's, Inc. Immediately after the IPO, all preferred stock and accumulated dividends were redeemed, either through the payment of cash or through the conversion of preferred stock to common stock.

Industry Overview

The home appliance and consumer electronics industry includes major home appliances, small appliances, home office equipment, televisions and audio, video and mobile electronics. Sellers of home appliances and consumer electronics include large appliance and electronics superstores, national chains, small regional chains, single-store operators, appliance and consumer electronics departments of selected department and discount stores and home improvement centers.

Based on data published in *Twice, This Week in Consumer Electronics*, a newspaper dedicated to the consumer electronics, computer and major appliances industries in the United States, the top 100 major appliance retailers reported sales of approximately \$15.8 billion in 2002, up approximately 9.9% from reported sales in 2001 of approximately \$14.3 billion. We estimate sales for the appliance industry for 2002, based upon total estimated shipments including builders' sales and those retailers not included in the top 100 retailers as compiled by the Association of Home Appliance Manufacturers, to be in excess of \$24 billion. We estimate total sales in the major appliance industry will exceed \$29 billion by 2005. The retail appliance market is large and concentrated among a few major dealers. Sears has been the leader in the retail appliance market, with a market share of the top 100 retailers of approximately 36% in 2002, down from approximately 39% in 2001.

As measured by *Twice*, the top 100 consumer electronics retailers in the United States reported sales of \$101.4 billion in 2002, a 6.2% increase from the \$95.5 billion reported in 2001. According to the Consumer Electronics Association, or CEA, total industry manufacturer sales of consumer electronics products in the United States, including imports, are projected to exceed \$109 billion by 2007. The consumer electronics market is highly fragmented. We estimate, based on data provided in *Twice*, that the two largest consumer electronics superstore chains together accounted for less than one-third of the total electronics sales attributable to the 100 largest retailers in 2002. New entrants in both the home appliances and consumer electronics industries have been successful in gaining market share by offering similar product selections at lower prices.

In the home appliance market, many factors drive growth, including consumer confidence, household formations and new product introductions. Product design and innovation is rapidly becoming a key driver of growth in this market. Products either recently introduced or scheduled to be offered include high speed ovens, custom refrigerators, appliances with stainless steel exteriors, personal garment dry cleaning appliances and energy-efficient appliances.

Technological advancements and the introduction of new products have largely driven growth in the consumer electronics market. Recently, industry growth has been fueled primarily by the introduction of products that incorporate digital technology, such as DVD players and digital camcorders, digital stereo receivers, satellite technology, cameras and televisions. Digital products offer significant advantages over their analog counterparts, including better clarity and quality of video and audio, durability of recording and compatibility with computers. Due to these advantages, we believe that digital technology will continue to drive industry growth as consumers replace their analog products with digital products. We believe the following product advancements will continue to fuel growth in the consumer electronics industry and represent a significant potential market for us.

• Digital Television (DTV and High Definition TV). The Federal Communications Commission has set a target of 2006 for all commercial television stations to transition from broadcasting analog signals to

digital signals. The Yankee Group, a communications and networking research and consulting firm, estimates that by the year 2007, HDTV signals will be in nearly 41.6 million, or 40%, of homes in the United States. This represents a compounded annual growth rate of 17.1% from the estimated 18.9 million homes receiving digital cable at the end of 2002. To view a digital transmission, consumers will need either a digital television or a set-top box converter capable of converting the digital broadcast for viewing on an analog set. According to the CEA, DTV unit sales are expected to grow from an estimated 4.3 million units in 2003 to 16.2 million units in 2007, representing a compounded annual growth rate of 39.3%. We believe the recent introduction of high clarity digital flat panel televisions in both liquid crystal display, or LCD, and plasma formats has increased the quality and sophistication of these entertainment products and will be a key driver of digital television growth.

- Digital Versatile Disc (DVD). According to the CEA, the DVD player has become the fastest growing consumer electronics product in history. First introduced in March 1997, DVD players are currently in 41% of U.S. homes, and we believe that DVD players will reach a household penetration level of 70% by 2007. Sales of DVD players grew from 0.3 million units in 1997 to 17.1 million units in 2002 and are expected to further increase to 24.3 million units in 2004.
- Digital Radio. The conversion to digital radio is taking place through two independent platforms, satellite and terrestrial. Digital satellite radio is currently being provided by Sirius Satellite Radio and XM Satellite Radio. As of December 31, 2003, Sirius Satellite Radio and XM Satellite Radio had approximately 261,000 and approximately 1,360,000 subscribers, respectively, and XM Satellite Radio expects to reach 2.8 million subscribers in 2004. The Yankee Group estimates that the number of U.S. satellite radio subscribers will reach approximately 21 million by 2006. The well-established terrestrial AM/FM radio stations began upgrading to digital radio in 2003.

Home appliance and electronics retailers typically provide few or no in-house financing options. Consumers see home appliances and electronics as necessary or desirable, but many customers are unable to afford them without financing, which may be difficult to obtain. Moreover, once customers purchase an item, they typically have to wait several days for delivery and may be unable to receive product service from the seller.

Business Strategy

Our objective is to be the leading specialty retailer of home appliances and consumer electronics in each of our markets. We strive to achieve this objective through execution of the following strategies.

- Providing a high level of customer service. We endeavor to maintain a very high level of customer service as a key component of our culture, which has resulted in customer satisfaction levels at consistent rates between 90% and 95%. We measure customer satisfaction in our customer service on the sales floor, in our delivery operation and in our service department by sending survey cards to all customers for whom we have delivered or installed a product or made a service call. Our customer service resolution department attempts to address all customer complaints within 48 hours of receipt. We are working to expand this department to enable us to make customer satisfaction calls to every customer as soon as possible after a delivery is made or a service call is completed.
- Developing and retaining highly trained and knowledgeable sales personnel. We require all sales personnel to specialize in home appliances, consumer electronics or "track" products. Track products include small appliances, computers, camcorders, DVD players, cameras and telephones that are sold within the interior of a large colorful track that circles the interior floor of our stores. This approach allows the sales person to focus on a specific product category and become an expert in selling and using products in that category. New sales personnel must complete an intensive three-week classroom training program conducted at our corporate office followed by an additional week of on-the-job training riding in a delivery and service truck to observe how we serve our customers after the sale is made.
- Offering a broad range of customer-driven, brand name products. We offer a comprehensive selection of high-quality, brand name merchandise to our customers at guaranteed low prices. Consistent with our good-better-best merchandising strategy, we offer a wide range of product selections from entry-level models through high-end models. We maintain strong relationships with approximately 50 manufacturers and distributors that enable us to offer over 1,100 SKUs to our customers. Our principal suppliers include General Electric, Whirlpool, Frigidaire, Mitsubishi, Sony, Panasonic, Thomson Consumer Electronics, Simmons, Hewlett Packard and Compaq. To facilitate our responsiveness to

customer demand, we use our prototype store, located near our corporate offices in Beaumont, Texas, to test the sale of all new products and obtain customers' reactions to new display formats before introducing these products and display formats to our other stores.

- Offering flexible financing alternatives through our proprietary credit programs. Historically, we have financed approximately 56% of our retail sales through our internal credit programs. We believe our credit programs expand our potential customer base, increase our sales revenue and enhance customer loyalty by providing our customers immediate access to financing alternatives that our competitors typically do not offer. Our credit department makes all credit decisions internally, entirely independent of our sales personnel. We provide special consideration to the customer's credit history with us. Before extending credit, we match our loss experience by product category with the customer's creditworthiness to determine down payment amounts and other credit terms. This facilitates product sales while keeping our credit risk within an acceptable range. Approximately 57% of customers who have active credit accounts with us take advantage of our in-store payment option and come to our stores each month to make their payments, which we believe results in additional sales to these customers. Through our daily calling program, we contact customers with past due accounts and attempt to work with them to collect payments in times of financial difficulty or periods of economic downturn. Our credit decisions and collections process enabled us to achieve a 2.7% net loss ratio in fiscal 2003 and a 2.9% net loss ratio in fiscal 2004 on the credit portfolio that we service for a Qualifying Special Purpose Entity or QSPE.
- Maintaining same day and next day distribution capabilities. We maintain four regional distribution centers and two other related facilities that cover all of the major markets in which we operate. These facilities are part of a sophisticated inventory management system that also includes a fleet of approximately 130 transfer and delivery vehicles that service all of our markets. Our distribution operations enable us to deliver products on the day of, or the day after, the sale to approximately 95% of our customers.
- **Providing outstanding product repair service.** We service every product that we sell, and we service only the products that we sell. In this way, we can assure our customers that they will receive our service technicians' exclusive attention to their product repair needs. All of our service centers are authorized factory service facilities that provide trained technicians to offer in-home diagnostic and repair service as well as on-site service and repairs for products that cannot be repaired in the customer's home.

Store Development and Growth Strategy

In addition to executing our business strategy, we intend to continue to achieve profitable, controlled growth by increasing same store sales, opening new stores and updating, expanding or relocating our existing stores.

- *Increasing same store sales.* We plan to continue to increase our same store sales by:
 - continuing to offer quality products at competitive prices;
 - remerchandising our product offerings in response to changes in consumer demand;
 - training our sales personnel to increase sales closing rates;
 - updating our stores on a three-year rotating basis;
 - focusing more specifically on sales of computers and smaller electronics within the interior track area of our stores, including the expansion of high margin accessory items;
 - continuing to provide a high level of customer service in sales, delivery and servicing of our products;
 - increasing sales of our merchandise, finance products, service maintenance agreements and credit insurance through direct mail and in-store credit promotion programs; and
 - introducing a replacement service maintenance agreement that covers replacement of smaller ticket items.

- Opening new stores. We intend to take advantage of our reliable infrastructure and proven store model to continue the pace of our new store openings. This infrastructure includes our proprietary management information systems, training processes, distribution network, merchandising capabilities, supplier relationships and centralized credit approval and collection processes. We intend to expand our store base in existing, adjacent and new markets as follows:
 - Existing and adjacent markets. We intend to increase our market presence by opening new stores in our existing markets, in adjacent markets and in new markets. New store openings in these locations will allow us to take advantage of our perceived market opportunity in those markets and leverage our existing distribution network, cluster advertising, brand name recognition and reputation.
 - New markets. In fiscal 2004, we opened three new stores in the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex. We have identified several additional markets that meet our criteria for site selection, including the Rio Grande Valley in southwest Texas, New Orleans and central Louisiana around Shreveport, Monroe and Alexandria. We intend to enter these new markets, as well as some in neighboring states, over the next several fiscal years. We will first address markets in states in which we currently operate. We expect that this new store growth will include major metropolitan markets in both Texas and Louisiana. We have also identified a number of smaller markets within Texas and Louisiana in which we expect to explore new store opportunities. Our long-term growth plans include markets in other areas of significant population density within neighboring states. During fiscal 2005, we expect to open four to six stores in new markets in Texas and Louisiana.
- Updating, expanding or relocating existing stores. Over the last three years, we have updated, expanded or relocated most of our stores. We have implemented our larger prototype store model at all locations at which the physical space would accommodate the required design changes. As we continue to add new stores or replace existing stores, we will modify our floor plan to include this new model. We continuously evaluate our existing and potential sites to ensure our stores are in the best possible locations and relocate stores that are not properly positioned. We typically lease rather than purchase our stores to retain the flexibility of subleasing a location if we later decide that the store is performing below our standards. However, with the completion of our IPO, we believe that we are now positioned more favorably to take advantage of real estate purchase opportunities as they are determined. After updating, expanding or relocating a store, we expect to increase same store sales at those stores.

The addition of new stores has played, and we believe will continue to play, a significant role in our continued growth and success. We currently operate 47 retail stores located in Texas and Louisiana. We opened 11 stores in the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, of which four were relocations of existing stores. We opened twelve stores in fiscal 2003, of which five were relocations of existing stores; we opened three stores in fiscal 2004; and we opened two stores subsequent to January 31, 2004. We also closed one store during fiscal 2003. We plan to continue our store development program by opening an additional two to four new stores and updating approximately six stores during the balance of fiscal 2005. We believe that continuing to grow our store base and locating our stores in desirable geographic markets are essential for our future success.

Customers

We do not have a significant concentration of sales with any individual customer and, therefore, the loss of any one customer would not have a material impact on our business. No single customer accounts for more than 10% of our total revenues.

Products and Merchandising

Product Categories. Each of our stores sells five major categories of products: major home appliances, consumer electronics, home office equipment, delivery and installation services and other household products, including lawn and garden equipment and bedding. The following table presents a summary of net sales by major product category, service maintenance agreement commissions and service revenues, for fiscal 2001, the six month fiscal period ended January 31, 2002, fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004:

	Year Ended July 31, 2001							
			Six Months Ended January 31, 2002 (1)		2003	2003		
	Amount	%	Amount	%	Amount	%	Amount	%
		(dollars in thousands)						
Major home appliances	\$ 114,769	39.3%	\$ 63,907	35.0%	\$ 148,878	38.2%	\$ 161,411	36.6%
Consumer electronics	107,548	36.8	75,355	41.2	151,196	38.8	176,868	40.1
Home office equipment	22,572	7.7	16,523	9.0	25,617	6.6	30,251	6.9
Delivery and installation	5,271	1.8	3,238	1.8	6,369	1.6	7,987	1.8
Other (including lawn and garden and								
bedding)	9,687	3.3	3,762	2.1	15,819	4.1	22,101	5.0
Total product sales	259,847	88.9	162,785	89.1	347,879	89.3	398,618	90.4
Service maintenance agreement	•				•			
commissions	18,742	6.4	11,922	6.5	22,961	5.9	24,035	5.5
Service revenues	13,799	4.7	7,904	4.4	18,656	4.8	18,265	4.1
Total net sales	\$ 292,388	100.0%	\$ 182,611	100.0%	\$ 389,496	100.0%	\$ 440,918	100.0%

Years Ended January 31,

Within these major product categories (excluding service maintenance agreements, service revenues and delivery and installation), we offer our customers over 1,100 SKUs in a wide range of price points. Most of these products are manufactured by brand name companies, including General Electric, Whirlpool, Frigidaire, Mitsubishi, Sony, Panasonic, Thomson Consumer Electronics, Simmons, Hewlett Packard and Compaq. As part of our good-better-best merchandising strategy, our customers are able to choose from products ranging from low-end to mid- to high-end models in each of our key product categories, as follows:

Category	Products	Selected Brands
Major appliances	Refrigerators, freezers, washers, dryers, ranges, dishwashers, air conditioners and vacuum cleaners	General Electric, Frigidaire, Whirlpool, Maytag, KitchenAid, Sharp, Samsung, Friedrich, Roper, Hoover and Eureka
Consumer electronics	Projection, plasma, LCD and DLP televisions, home theater systems, VCRs, camcorders, digital cameras, DVD players, audio components, compact disc players, speakers and portable electronics	Mitsubishi, Thomson Consumer Electronics, Sony, Toshiba, Sanyo, JVC, Panasonic, Hitachi, Yamaha, Polk, Kenwood and JBL
Home office equipment	Computers, computer peripherals, personal digital assistants and telephones	Hewlett Packard, Compaq, Sony and Panasonic
Other	Lawn and garden, bedding and generators	Poulan, Toro, Weedeater, Tempur-pedic and Simmons

Purchasing. We purchase products from approximately 50 manufacturers and distributors. Our agreements with these manufacturers and distributors typically cover a one or two year time period, are renewable at the option of the parties and are terminable upon 30 days written notice by either party. Similar to other specialty retailers, we purchase a significant portion of our total inventory from a limited number of vendors. During fiscal 2004, 61.1% of our total inventory purchases were from six vendors, including 15.5%, 12.5% and 11.2% of our total inventory from Frigidaire, Whirlpool and Sony, respectively. The loss of any one or more of these key vendors or our failure to establish and maintain relationships with these and other vendors could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. We have no indication that any of our suppliers will discontinue selling us merchandise. We have not experienced significant difficulty in maintaining adequate sources of merchandise, and we generally expect that adequate sources of merchandise will continue to exist for the types of products we sell.

⁽¹⁾ Sales amounts and percentages for this period do not reflect the effect of summer air conditioner sales and lawn and garden product sales.

Merchandising Strategy. We focus on providing a comprehensive selection of high-quality merchandise to appeal to a broad range of potential customers. Consistent with our good-better-best merchandising strategy, we offer a wide range of product selections from entry-level models through high-end models. We primarily sell brand name warrantied merchandise. Our established relationships with major appliance and electronic vendors give us purchasing power that allows us to offer custom-featured appliances and electronics and provides us a competitive selling advantage over other independent retailers. We use our prototype store, located near our corporate offices in Beaumont, Texas, to test the sale of all new products and obtain customers' reactions to new display formats before introducing these products and display formats to our other stores. As part of our merchandising strategy, we operate clearance centers in our Houston and San Antonio markets to help sell scratched, used or discontinued merchandise. We have recently redesigned our approach to the merchandising of our "track" products to provide consumer-friendly point of sale transactions that take place within a track area located in the interior of our store. We believe that this focused approach to creating consumer awareness and ease of purchase of our track products will help increase same store sales. We do, however, expect product margins to decrease because many of these products are sold at lower margins.

Pricing. We emphasize competitive pricing on all of our products and maintain a low price guarantee that is valid in all markets from 10 to 30 days after the sale, depending on the product. At most of our stores, to print an invoice that contains pricing other than the price maintained within our computer system, sales personnel must call a special "hotline" number at the corporate office. Store operations management and our corporate office closely monitor the stores that do not have this price adjustment system. Personnel staffing this hotline number are familiar with competitor pricing and are authorized to make price adjustments to fulfill our low price guarantee when a customer presents acceptable proof of the competitor's lower price. This centralized function also allows us to maintain control of pricing and to store and retrieve pricing data of our competitors.

Customer Service

We focus on customer service as a key component of our strategy. We believe our same day or next day delivery option, which is not offered by most of our competitors, is one of the keys to our success. Additionally, we attempt to answer and resolve all customer complaints within 48 hours of receipt. We track customer complaints by individual salesperson, delivery person and service technician. We send out over 30,000 customer satisfaction survey cards each month covering all deliveries and service calls. Based upon a response rate from our customers of approximately 20%, we consistently report customer satisfaction rates between 90% and 95%. We have already planned the physical facilities necessary to implement a proactive customer satisfaction call center, and once the center is fully operational, we expect to contact most customers within 48 hours of product delivery or completed service call to inquire about their satisfaction with their purchases or service call experience with us.

Store Operations

Stores. We currently operate 47 retail stores located in Texas and Louisiana. The following table illustrates our markets, the number of freestanding and strip mall stores in each market and the year we opened our first store in each market:

	Number	of Stores	
Market	Stand Alone	Strip Mall	First Store Opened
Houston	8	10	1983
San Antonio/Austin	7	6	1994
Golden Triangle (Beaumont, Port Arthur and Orange, Texas)	1	4	1937
Baton Rouge/Lafayette	1	4	1975
Corpus Christi	1	0	2002
Dallas/Fort Worth	<u> </u>	5	2003
	18	29	

Our stores have an average selling space of approximately 19,900 square feet, plus a rear storage area averaging approximately 5,700 square feet for fast-moving or smaller products that customers prefer to carry out rather than wait for in-home delivery. Two of our stores are clearance centers for discontinued product models and damaged merchandise, returns and repossessed product. Our clearance centers are located in the Houston and San Antonio/Austin markets and average 12,000 square feet of selling space. All stores and clearance

centers are open from 10:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, from 9:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, and from 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Sunday. We also offer extended store hours during the holiday selling season.

Approximately 60% of our stores are located in strip shopping centers and regional malls, with the balance being stand-alone buildings. All of our locations have parking available immediately adjacent to the store's front entrance. Our storefronts have a distinctive exterior tower that guides the customer to the entrance of the store. Inside the store, a large colorful tile track circles the interior floor of the store. One side of the track leads the customer to major appliances, lawn and garden products and bedding while the other side of the track leads the customer to a large display of television and projection television products. The inside of the track contains various home office and consumer electronic products such as computers, printers, DVD players, camcorders, digital cameras and telephones. During fiscal 2004, we redesigned our approach to merchandising of our track products to provide consumer-friendly point of sale transactions. The area inside the track now has its own sales personnel and merchandising approach for its products. The rear of the store contains a display for audio and stereo products. To reach the cashier's desk at the center of the track area, our customers must walk past our products. We believe this increases sales to customers that have purchased products from us on credit in the past and who return to our stores to make their monthly credit payments.

We have updated or relocated all of our stores in the last three years. We expect to continue to update stores on a three year cycle. All of our updated stores, as well as our new stores, include modern interior selling spaces featuring attractive signage and display areas specifically designed for each major product type. Our prototype store for future expansion has from 20,000 to 24,000 square feet of retail selling space, which is approximately 15% more than the average size of our existing stores and a rear storage area of between 5,000 and 7,000 square feet. We generally spend approximately \$275,000 to \$350,000 to update a store, and as a result of the updating, we expect to increase same store sales at those stores. Over the last three years, we have spent approximately \$15.5 million updating, refurbishing or relocating our existing stores.

Site Selection. Our stores are typically located near freeways or major travel arteries and in the vicinity of major retail shopping areas. We prefer to locate our stores in an area where our prominent tower storefront will be the anchor of the shopping center or readily visible from major thoroughfares. We also attempt to locate our stores in the vicinity of major home appliance and electronics superstores. We have typically entered markets where we can potentially support at least 10 to 12 stores. We believe this number of stores allows us to optimize advertising and distribution costs. We may, however, elect to experiment with opening smaller numbers of new stores in outlying areas where customer demand for products and services outweighs the extra cost of failing to achieve full economies of scale. Other factors we consider when evaluating potential markets include the distance from our distribution centers, store locations of our competitors and population, demographics and growth potential of the market.

Store Economics. We lease 43 of our 47 current store locations, with an average monthly rent of \$21,000. Our average investment for the nine stores we have opened in the last two years was approximately \$1.1 million, including leasehold improvements, fixtures and equipment and inventory (net of accounts payable). For these same new stores, the net sales per store has averaged \$0.7 million per month for the last 18 months or the actual time the store has been open, if less than 18 months.

Our new stores have typically been profitable on an operating basis within their first three to six months of operation and, on average have returned our investment in 20 months or less. We consider a new store to be successful if it achieves \$8 million to \$9 million in sales volume and 2% to 5% in operating margins before other ancillary revenues and allocations of overhead and advertising in the first full year of operation. We expect successful stores that have matured, which generally occurs after two to three years of operations, to generate annual sales of approximately \$12 million to \$15 million and 5% to 9% in operating margins before other ancillary revenues and allocations. However, depending on the credit and insurance penetration of an individual store, we believe that a store that does not achieve these levels of sales can still contribute significantly to our pretax margin. Assuming that the store location is both visible and accessible from major thoroughfares and that major competition exists in the general area, we believe that there is a significant difference in sales volume between stores that are freestanding and stores that are located in strip malls. Most of our new and replacement stores, therefore, are stand-alone stores unless there is compelling demographic data to cause us to locate the store in a strip mall.

Personnel and Compensation. We staff a typical store with a store manager, an assistant manager, 10 to 20 sales personnel and other support staff including cashiers and/or porters. Managers have an average

tenure with us of approximately seven years and typically have prior sales floor experience. In addition to store managers, we have five district managers that generally oversee from eight to 12 stores in each market. Our district managers generally have five to 15 years of sales experience and report to our senior vice president of store operations, who has over 20 years of sales experience. We treat the track area of our stores as a store within a store with a separate staff and merchandising function.

We compensate home appliance and consumer electronics sales specialists on a straight commission arrangement, while we generally compensate store managers and cashiers on a salary basis plus incentives or at an hourly rate. Our store managers receive a base salary and monthly bonuses; in some instances, store managers receive earned commissions plus base salary. Our clearance centers are staffed with a manager and six to eight sales personnel who are paid on a straight commission arrangement. Sales personnel within the track area are also compensated on a straight commission arrangement. We believe that because our store compensation plans are tied to sales, they generally provide us an advantage in attracting and retaining highly motivated employees.

Training. New sales personnel must complete an intensive three-week classroom training program conducted at our corporate office. We then require them to spend an additional week riding in a delivery and service truck to gain an understanding of how we serve our customers after the sale is made. Installation and delivery staff and service personnel receive training through an on-the-job program in which individuals are assigned to an experienced installation and delivery or service employee as helpers prior to working alone.

We attempt to identify store manager candidates early in their careers with us and place them in a defined program of training. They first attend our inhouse training program, which provides guidance and direction for the development of managerial and supervisory skills. They then attend an external management course that helps solidify their management knowledge and builds upon their internal training. After completion of these training programs, manager candidates work as assistant managers for six to 12 months and are then allowed to manage one of our smaller stores, where they are supervised closely by the store's district manager. We give new managers an opportunity to operate larger stores as they become more proficient in their management skills. Each store manager attends mandatory training sessions on a monthly basis and also attends bi-weekly sales training meetings where participants receive and discuss new product information.

Marketing

We design our marketing and advertising programs to increase our brand name recognition, educate consumers about our products and services and generate customer traffic in order to increase sales. Our programs include periodic promotions such as three, six or twelve months of no interest financing. We conduct our advertising programs primarily through local newspapers, local radio and television stations and direct marketing through direct mail, telephone and our website.

Direct marketing has become an effective way for us to present our products and services to our existing customers and potential new customers. We use direct mail to target promotional mailings to creditworthy individuals, including new residents in our market areas from time to time. In addition, we use direct mail to market increased credit lines to existing customers, to encourage customers using third party credit to convert to our credit programs and for customer appreciation mailings. We also conduct a mail program to reestablish contact with customers who applied for credit recently at one of our stores but did not purchase a product. We also call customers who recently applied for credit at one of our retail locations but did not purchase a product; this often redirects these potential purchasers back into the original store location. This telephone program was responsible for an additional \$31.4 million in revenue during fiscal 2004.

Our website, www.conns.com, offers a selection of products from our total product inventory and provides useful information to the consumer on pricing, features and benefits for each product. Our website also allows the customer to apply and be considered for credit, to see our special on-line promotional items and to make purchases on-line through the use of approved credit cards. The website currently averages approximately 3,900 visits per day from potential and existing customers. During fiscal 2004, our website was the initial source of approximately 67,000 credit applications that resulted in \$31.9 million in sales completed in our stores. The website is linked to a call center, allowing us to better assist customers with their credit and product needs.

Distribution and Inventory Management

We typically cluster our stores around four regional distribution centers located in Houston, San Antonio and Beaumont, Texas and Lafayette, Louisiana and smaller warehouse facilities in Austin and Dallas, Texas.

This enables us to deliver products to our customers quickly, reduces inventory requirements at the individual stores and facilitates regionalized inventory and accounting controls. As part of our continued growth in the Dallas/Fort Worth market, we expect to significantly increase the size of our warehouse facility.

In our retail stores, we maintain an inventory of fast-moving items and products that the customer is likely to carry out of the store. Our sophisticated Distribution Inventory Sales computer system and the recent introduction of scanning technology in our distribution centers allow us to determine on a real-time basis the exact location of any product we sell. If we do not have a product at the desired retail store at the time of sale, we can provide it through our distribution system on a next day basis.

We maintain a fleet of 18-wheeler transport trucks that allow us to move products from market to market and from distribution centers to stores. At each distribution center or warehouse facility, we also maintain a fleet of home delivery vehicles that allow us to deliver directly to the customer. Our customers pay a delivery charge based on their choice of same day or next day delivery, and we are able to deliver our products on the same day as, or the next day after, the sale to approximately 95% of our customers.

Finance Operations

General. We sell our products for cash or for payment through major credit cards, which we treat as cash sales. We also offer our customers several financing alternatives through our proprietary credit programs. Historically, we have financed approximately 56% of our retail sales through one of our two credit programs. We offer our customers a choice of installment payment plans and revolving credit plans through our primary credit portfolio. We also offer an installment program through our secondary credit portfolio to a limited number of customers who do not qualify for credit under our primary credit portfolio. The following table shows our product sales and gross service maintenance agreements sales, excluding returns and allowances and service revenues, by method of payment for the periods indicated.

						Years Ended January 31,				
	Year Ended July 31, 2001		Six Months January 31,		2003		2004			
	Amount	%	Amount	%	Amount	%	Amount	%		
				(dollars i	n thousands)					
Cash and other credit cards	\$ 119,274	43.4%	\$ 75,572	43.9%	\$ 161,910	44.2%	\$ 189,860	45.5%		
Primary credit portfolio:										
Installment	121,291	44.1	76,878	44.7	162,681	44.4	190,086	45.6		
Revolving	16,408	6.0	8,932	5.2	18,268	5.0	17,259	4.1		
Secondary credit portfolio	18,122	6.5	10,633	6.2	23,229	6.4	20,132	4.8		
Total	\$ 275,095	100.0%	\$ 172,015	100.0%	\$ 366,088	100.0%	\$ 417,337	100.0%		

As of January 31, 2004, we employed approximately 275 employees who focus on credit approval and collections. These employees are highly trained to follow our strict methodology in approving credit, collecting our accounts and charging off any uncollectible accounts.

Credit Approval. Our credit programs are operated by our centralized credit department staff, completely independent of sales personnel. As part of our centralized credit approval process, we have developed a proprietary standardized scoring model that provides preliminary credit decisions, including down payment amounts and credit terms, based on both customer and product risk. Although we rely on this program to approve automatically some credit applications from customers for whom we have previous credit experience, over 89.5% of our credit decisions are based on evaluation of the customer's creditworthiness by a qualified credit grader. We developed this model with data analysis by Equifax® to correlate the product category of a customer purchase with the default probability.

A significant part of our ability to control delinquency and charge-off rates is tied to the relatively high level of down payments that we require and the purchase money security interest that we obtain in the product financed, which reduce our credit risk and increase our customers' willingness to meet their future obligations. Consistent with industry practice, we require the customer to provide proof of credit property insurance coverage to offset potential losses relating to theft or damage of the product financed.

Installment accounts are paid over a specified period of time with set monthly payments. Revolving accounts provide customers with a specified amount which the customer may borrow, repay and re-borrow so long as the credit limit is not exceeded. Most of our installment accounts provide for payment over 12 to 36

months, and for those accounts paid in full during fiscal 2004, the average account was outstanding for approximately 13 to 15 months. Our revolving accounts were outstanding approximately 14 to 16 months for those accounts paid in full during fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2004, approximately 10.5% of the applications approved under the primary program were handled automatically through our computer system based on previous credit history with us. We automatically send the application of any new credit customer or any customer seeking additional credit where there has been a past delinquency or performance problem to an experienced, in-house credit grader.

We created our secondary credit portfolio program to meet the needs of those customers who do not qualify for credit under our primary program. If we cannot approve a customer's application for credit under our primary portfolio, we automatically send the application to the credit staff of our secondary portfolio for further consideration. We offer only the installment program to these customers, and we grant credit to these consumers under stricter terms, including higher down payments. An experienced, in-house credit grader administers the credit approval process. Most of the installment accounts approved under this program provide for repayment over 12 to 36 months, and for those accounts paid in full during fiscal 2004, the average account was outstanding for approximately 13 to 15 months.

The following two tables present, for comparison purposes, information regarding our two credit portfolios.

	Primary Portfolio					
	Year Ended		x Months	Years Ended January 31,		
	July 31, 2001	Janu	Ended ary 31, 2002	2003	2004	
		(dollars in thousands, except average outstanding customer balance)				
Total outstanding balance (period end)	\$ 95,920	\$	220,228	\$ 249,410	\$293,913	
Average outstanding customer balance	\$ 1,019	\$	1,054	\$ 1,063	\$ 1,189	
Number of active accounts (period end)	192,136		209,035	234,738	247,151	
Total applications processed (1)	324,803		202,842	451,422	499,755	
Percent of retail sales financed	50.1%		49.9%	49.4%	49.7%	
Total applications approved	64.7%		63.0%	57.3%	59.3%	
Average down payment	11.0%		10.8%	10.3%	8.6%	
Average interest spread (2)	12.8%		13.0%	13.0%	12.2%	

	Secondary Portfolio						
	Year Ended		Years I Januar				
	July 31, 2001	Six Months Ended January 31, 2002	2003	2004			
Total outstanding balance (period end)	\$ 34,473	\$ 41,925	\$ 54,417	\$ 55,562			
Average outstanding customer balance	\$ 1,074	\$ 1,089	\$ 1,077	\$ 1,057			
Number of active accounts (period end)	32,417	38,482	50,509	52,566			
Total applications processed (1)	113,996	77,679	194,407	192,228			
Percent of retail sales financed	6.5%	6.2%	6.4%	4.8%			
Total applications approved	28.8%	33.4%	27.6%	26.9%			
Average down payment	24.5%	25.0%	27.0%	27.7%			
Average interest spread (2)	14.3%	14.4%	14.3%	13.0%			

⁽¹⁾ Unapproved credit applications in the primary portfolio are automatically referred to the secondary portfolio.

Credit Quality. We enter into securitization transactions to sell our retail receivables to a qualifying special purpose entity or QSPE. After the sale, we continue to service these receivables under a contract with the QSPE. We closely monitor these credit portfolios to identify delinquent accounts early and dedicate resources to contacting customers concerning past due accounts. We believe that our local presence, ability to work with customers and flexible financing alternatives contribute to the historically low charge-off rates on these portfolios. In addition, our customers have the opportunity to make their monthly payments in our stores, and approximately 57% of our active credit accounts did so at some time during the last 24 months. We believe that these factors help us maintain a relationship with the customer that keeps losses low while encouraging repeat purchases.

Our follow-up collection activities involve a combination of centralized efforts that take place in our corporate office and outside collection efforts that involve a visit by one of our credit counselors to the customer's home. We maintain a sophisticated predictive dialer system and letter campaign that helps us contact as many as 12,000 to 15,000 delinquent customers daily. We also maintain a very experienced skip-trace department that utilizes current technology to locate customers who have moved and left no forwarding address. Our outside

⁽²⁾ Difference between the average interest rate yield on the portfolio and the average cost of funds under the program plus the allocated interest related to funds required to finance the credit enhancement portion of the portfolio. Also reflects the loss of interest income resulting from interest free promotional programs.

collectors provide an on-site contact with the customer to assist in the collection process or, if needed, to actually repossess the product in the event of non-payment. Repossessions are made when it is clear that the customer is unwilling to establish a reasonable payment process. Our legal department represents us in bankruptcy proceedings and filing of delinquency judgment claims and helps handle any legal issues associated with the collection process.

Generally, we deem an account to be uncollectible and charge it off if the account is 120 days past due and has not had a payment in the last seven months. Over the last 30 months, we have recovered approximately 27% of charged-off amounts through our collection activities. The income that we realize from our interest in securitized receivables depends on a number of factors, including expected credit losses. Therefore, it is to our advantage to maintain a low delinquency rate and loss ratio on these credit portfolios.

Our accounting and credit staff consistently monitors trends in charge-offs by examining the various characteristics of the charge-offs, including store of origination, product type, customer credit information, down payment amounts and other identifying information. We track our charge-offs both gross, or before recoveries, and net, or after recoveries. We periodically adjust our credit granting, collection and charge-off policies based on this information.

The following two tables reflect the performance of our two credit portfolios, net of unearned interest.

	Primary Portfolio						
		Six Months	Years Er	nded			
	Year Ended July 31, 2001	Ended January 31, 2002	January 31, 2003	January 31, 2004			
		(dollars in t	housands)				
Total outstanding balance (period end)	\$ 195,920	\$ 220,228	\$ 249,410	\$ 293,913			
Average total outstanding balance	\$ 183,439	\$ 208,074	\$ 234,819	\$ 264,900			
Account balances over 60 days old (period end)	\$ 8,980	\$ 10,800	\$ 13,267	\$ 13,500			
Percent of balances over 60 days old to total outstanding (period end)	4.6%	4.9%	5.3%	4.6%			
Allowance for doubtful accounts (period end)	\$ 7,019	\$ 7,602	\$ 8,722	\$ 9,534			
Percent allowance for doubtful accounts to total outstanding (period end)	3.6%	3.5%	3.5%	3.2%			
Bad debt write-offs (net of recoveries)	\$ 4,886	\$ 2,691	\$ 6,135	\$ 7,905			
Percent of write-offs (net) to average outstanding	2.7%	2.6%	2.6%	3.0%			

	Secondary Portfolio							
	Year Ended July 31, 2001		Six Months Ended January 31, 2002		Years Ended			
					January 31, 2003		Ja	nuary 31, 2004
				(dollars in	thousand	s)		
Total outstanding balance (period end)	\$ 34	1,473	\$	41,925	\$	54,417	\$	55,562
Average total outstanding balance	\$ 29	9,337	\$	38,199	\$	48,171	\$	54,391
Account balances over 60 days old (period end)	\$ 1	1,694	\$	2,583	\$	3,737	\$	4,652
Percent of balances over 60 days old to total outstanding (period end)		4.9%		6.2%		6.9%		8.4%
Allowance for doubtful accounts (period end)	\$ 1	1,082	\$	1,333	\$	1,853	\$	2,224
Percent allowance for doubtful accounts to total outstanding (period end)		3.1%		3.1%		3.4%		4.0%
Bad debt write-offs (net of recoveries)	\$	778	\$	778	\$	1,425	\$	1,499
Percent of write-offs (net) to average outstanding		2.7%		2.7%		3.0%		2.8%

The following table presents information regarding the growth of our two credit portfolios, including unearned interest.

	Year Ended July 31, 2001	Six Months	Years Ended		
		Ended January 31, 2002	January 31, 2003	January 31, 2004	
		(dollars in	thousands)		
Beginning balance	\$ 228,547	\$ 271,846	\$ 311,032	\$ 362,076	
New receivables financed	232,550	147,539	302,494	331,849	
Revolving finance charges	5,210	2,509	4,818	4,354	
Returns on account	(3,220)	(2,222)	(5,508)	(6,860)	
Collections on account	(185,576)	(105,486)	(243,200)	(263,313)	
Accounts charged off	(7,476)	(4,347)	(10,528)	(12,820)	
Recoveries of charge-offs	1,811	1,193	2,968	3,416	
Ending balance	271,846	311,032	362,076	418,702	
Less unearned interest at end of period	(41,455)	(48,879)	(58,249)	(69,227)	
Total portfolio managed, net	\$ 230,391	\$ 262,153	\$ 303,827	\$ 349,475	

Product Support Services

Credit Insurance. Acting as agents for unaffiliated insurance companies, we sell credit life, credit disability, credit involuntary unemployment and credit property insurance at all of our stores. These products cover payment of the customer's credit account in the event of the customer's death, disability or involuntary unemployment or if the financed property is lost or damaged. We receive sales commissions from the unaffiliated insurance company at the time we sell the coverage, and we recognize retrospective commissions, which are additional commissions paid by the insurance carrier if insurance claims are lower than projected, as such commissions are actually earned.

We require proof of property insurance on all credit purchases, although we do not require that customers purchase this insurance from us. Approximately 74.7% of our credit customers purchase one or more of the credit insurance products we offer, and approximately 35.3% purchase all of the insurance products we offer. Commission revenues from the sale of credit insurance contracts represented approximately 3.9% and 3.4% of total net sales for fiscal 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Warranty Service. We provide warranty service for all of the products we sell and only for the products we sell. Customers purchase service maintenance agreements on products representing approximately 45.6% of our total retail sales for fiscal 2004. These agreements broaden and extend the period of covered manufacturer warranty service for up to five years from the date of purchase, depending on the product, and cover certain items during the manufacturer's warranty period. These agreements are sold at the time the product is purchased. Customers may finance the cost of the agreements along with the purchase price of the associated product. We contact the customer prior to the expiration of the service maintenance period to allow them to renew the period of warranty coverage.

We have contracts with unaffiliated third party insurers that issue the service maintenance agreements to cover the costs of repairs performed by our service department under these agreements. The initial service contract is between the customer and the independent insurance company, but we are the insurance company's first choice to provide service when it is needed. We receive a commission on the sale of the contract, and we bill the insurance company for the cost of the service work that we perform. Commissions on these third party contracts are recognized in revenues, net of the payment to the third party obligor. Renewal contracts are between the customer and our in-house service department. Under renewal contracts we record the cost of the service work performed as products are repaired.

Of the 15,000 to 20,000 repairs that we perform each month, approximately 45.6% are covered under these service maintenance agreements, approximately 44.9% are covered by manufacturer warranties and the remainder are "walk-in" repairs from our customers. Revenues from the sale of service contracts represented approximately 9.7% of total net retail sales during fiscal 2003 and approximately 8.8% during fiscal 2004.

Management Information Systems

We have a fully integrated management information system that tracks on a real-time basis point-of-sale information, inventory receipt and distribution, merchandise movement and financial information. The management information system also includes a local area network that connects all corporate users to email, scheduling and various servers. The servers and our stores are linked by a wide-area network that provides communication for in-house credit authorization and real time polling of sales and merchandise movement at the store level. In our distribution centers, we use radio frequency terminals to assist in receiving, stock put-away, stock movement, order filling, cycle counting and inventory management. At our stores, we currently use desktop terminals to assist in receiving, transferring and maintaining perpetual inventories. We expect to expand the use of product scanning technology to help in inventory control at the retail store level within the next six to nine months.

Our integrated management information system also includes extensive functionality for management of the complete credit portfolio life cycle as well as functionality for the management of product service. The credit system continues from our in-house credit authorization through account set up and tracking, credit portfolio condition, collections, credit employee productivity metrics, skip-tracing, bankruptcy and fraud and legal account management. The service system provides for service order processing, warranty claims processing, parts inventory management, technician scheduling and dispatch, technician performance metrics and customer satisfaction measurement. All of these systems share a common customer and product sold database.

Our point of sale system uses an IBM AS/400 hardware system that runs on the OS/400 operating system. This system enables us to use a variety of readily available applications in conjunction with software that supports the system. All of our current business application software, except our accounting and human resources systems, has been developed in-house by our management information system employees. We believe our management information systems efficiently support our current operations and provide a foundation for future growth.

In fiscal 2001, we installed a new Nortel telephone switch and state of the art Mosaix system predictive dialer, as well as a frame relay network and cable plant, to improve the efficiency of our collection and overall corporate communication efforts.

As part of our ongoing disaster recovery plan, we are currently implementing a secondary AS/400 system in two phases. In phase one, we installed a second back-up machine in our corporate office with the primary AS/400 to provide the ability to switch production processing from the primary system to the secondary system within fifteen to thirty minutes should the primary system become disabled or unreachable. The two machines are kept synchronized utilizing third party software. The first phase provides "high availability" of the production processing environment. The second phase will add "disaster recovery" support through the relocation of the secondary AS/400 to another site geographically removed from our corporate office. The remainder of the functionality, synchronization of data and switch of production processing from primary to secondary, will continue to function as in the first phase. This configuration will also allow for more frequent system and software maintenance without disrupting normal production.

Competition

According to *Twice*, total industry manufacturer sales of home appliances and consumer electronics products in the United States, including imports, to the top 100 dealers were estimated to be \$15.8 billion and \$101.4 billion, respectively, in 2002. The retail home appliance market is large and concentrated among a few major suppliers. Sears has been the leader in the retail home appliance market, with a market share among the top 100 retailers of approximately 36% in 2002, down from 39% in 2001. The consumer electronics market is highly fragmented. We estimate that the two largest consumer electronics superstore chains accounted for less than one-third of the total electronics sales attributable to the 100 largest retailers in 2002. However, new entrants in both industries have been successful in gaining market share by offering similar product selections at lower prices.

As reported by *Twice*, based upon revenue in 2002, we were the 13th largest retailer of home appliances. Our competitors include national mass merchants such as Sears and Wal-Mart, specialized national retailers such as Circuit City and Best Buy, home improvement stores such as Lowe's and Home Depot, and locally-owned regional or independent retail specialty stores. The availability and convenience of the Internet and other direct-to-consumer alternatives are increasing as a competitive factor in our industry, especially for distribution of computer and entertainment software.

We compete primarily based on enhanced customer service through our product knowledge, same day or next day delivery capabilities, proprietary inhouse credit program, guaranteed low prices and product repair service.

Regulation

The extension of credit to consumers is a highly regulated area of our business. Numerous federal and state laws impose disclosure and other requirements on the origination, servicing and enforcement of credit accounts. These laws include, but are not limited to, the Federal Truth in Lending Act, Equal Credit Opportunity Act and Federal Trade Commission Act. State laws impose limitations on the maximum amount of finance charges that we can charge and also impose other restrictions on consumer creditors, such as us, including restrictions on collection and enforcement. We routinely review our contracts and procedures to ensure compliance with applicable consumer credit laws. Failure on our part to comply with applicable laws could expose us to substantial penalties and claims for damages and, in certain circumstances, may require us to refund finance charges already paid and to forego finance charges not yet paid under noncomplying contracts. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with all applicable federal and state consumer credit and collection laws.

Our sale of credit life, credit disability, credit involuntary unemployment and credit property insurance products is also highly regulated. State laws currently impose disclosure obligations with respect to our sales of

credit and other insurance products similar to those required by the Federal Truth in Lending Act, impose restrictions on the amount of premiums that we may charge and require licensing of certain of our employees and operating entities. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations relating to our credit insurance business.

Employees

As of January 31, 2004, we had approximately 1,970 full-time employees and 80 part-time employees, of which approximately 1,000 were store employees. We provide a comprehensive benefits package including health, life, long term disability, and dental insurance coverage as well as a 401(k) plan, paid vacation, sick pay and holiday pay. None of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements. We have never had a work stoppage, and we believe our employee relations are good.

Tradenames and Trademarks

We have registered the trademarks "Conn's" and our logos.

Available Information

We are subject to reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and its rules and regulations. The Exchange Act requires us to file reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Copies of these reports, proxy statements and other information can be inspected and copied at the SEC Public Reference Room, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You nay also obtain these materials electronically by accessing the SEC's home page on the internet at www.sec.gov.

In addition, we make available, free of charge on our internet website, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file this material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. You may review these documents, under the heading "Investor Relations," by accessing our website at www.conns.com. Also, reports and other information concerning us are available for inspection and copying at NASDAQ Capital Markets.

Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock involves risks and uncertainties. You should consider carefully the following information about these risks and uncertainties before buying shares of our common stock. The occurrence of any of the risks described below could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. In that case, the trading price of our stock could decline, and you could lose all or part of the value of your investment.

Our success depends substantially on our ability to open and operate profitably new stores in existing, adjacent and new geographic markets.

We plan to continue our expansion by opening an additional four to six new stores in fiscal 2005. These new stores include at least four new stores in the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex, where we have not previously operated prior to September 2003. We have not yet selected sites for all of the stores that we plan to open within the next 18 months. We may not be able to open all of these stores, and any new stores that we open may not be profitable. Any of these circumstances could have a material adverse effect on our financial results.

There are a number of factors that could affect our ability to open and operate new stores consistent with our business plan, including:

- competition in existing, adjacent and new markets;
- competitive conditions, consumer tastes and discretionary spending patterns in adjacent and new markets that are different from those in our existing markets;

- a lack of consumer demand for our products at levels that can support new store growth;
- · limitations created by covenants and conditions under our credit facilities and our asset-backed securitization program;
- · the availability of additional financial resources;
- the substantial outlay of financial resources required to open new stores and the possibility that we may recognize little or no related benefit;
- an inability or unwillingness of vendors to supply product on a timely basis at competitive prices;
- the failure to open enough stores in new markets to achieve a sufficient market presence;
- the inability to identify suitable sites and to negotiate acceptable leases for these sites;
- unfamiliarity with local real estate markets and demographics in adjacent and new markets;
- problems in adapting our distribution and other operational and management systems to an expanded network of stores;
- · difficulties associated with the hiring, training and retention of additional skilled personnel, including store managers; and
- higher costs for print, radio and television advertising.

These factors may also affect the ability of any newly opened stores to achieve sales and profitability levels comparable with our existing stores or to become profitable at all.

If we are unable to manage our growing business, our revenues may not increase as anticipated, our cost of operations may rise and our profitability may decline.

We face many business risks associated with growing companies, including the risk that our management, financial controls and information systems will be inadequate to support our planned expansion. Our growth plans will require management to expend significant time and effort and additional resources to ensure the continuing adequacy of our financial controls, operating procedures, information systems, product purchasing, warehousing and distribution systems and employee training programs. We cannot predict whether we will be able to manage effectively these increased demands or respond on a timely basis to the changing demands that our planned expansion will impose on our management, financial controls and information systems. If we fail to manage successfully the challenges our growth poses, do not continue to improve these systems and controls or encounter unexpected difficulties during our expansion, our business, financial condition, operating results or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

The inability to obtain funding for our credit operations through securitization facilities or other sources may adversely affect our business and expansion plans.

We finance most of our customer receivables through asset-backed securitization facilities. The trust arrangement governing these facilities currently provides for two separate series of asset-backed notes that allow us to finance up to \$450 million in customer receivables. Under each note series, we transfer customer receivables to a qualifying special purpose entity in exchange for cash, subordinated securities and the right to receive cash flows equal to the interest rate spread between the transferred receivables and the notes issued to third parties ("interest only strip"). This qualifying special purpose entity, in turn, issues notes that are collateralized by these receivables and entitle the holders of the notes to participate in certain cash flows from these receivables. The Series A program is a \$250 million variable funding note held by Three Pillars Funding Corporation, of which \$71.0 million was drawn as of January 31, 2004 and an additional \$10 million of capacity was absorbed by a mandatory letter of credit that provides the trustee assurance that monthly funds collected by

us, as servicer, will be remitted under the basic indenture and other related documents. The Series B program consists of \$200 million in private bond placements that was fully drawn as of January 31, 2004.

Our ability to raise additional capital through further securitization transactions, and to do so on economically favorable terms, depends in large part on factors that are beyond our control.

These factors include:

- conditions in the securities and finance markets generally;
- conditions in the markets for securitized instruments;
- the credit quality and performance of our financial instruments;
- · our ability to obtain financial support for required credit enhancement;
- our ability to service adequately our financial instruments;
- · the absence of any material downgrading or withdrawal of ratings given to our securities previously issued in securitizations; and
- prevailing interest rates.

Our ability to finance customer receivables under our current asset-backed securitization facilities depends on our compliance with covenants relating to our business and our customer receivables. If these programs reach their capacity or otherwise become unavailable, and we are unable to arrange substitute securitization facilities or other sources of financing, we may have to limit the amount of credit that we make available through our customer finance programs. This may adversely affect revenues and results of operations. Further, our inability to obtain funding through securitization facilities or other sources may adversely affect the profitability of outstanding accounts under our credit programs if existing customers fail to repay outstanding credit due to our refusal to grant additional credit. Since our cost of funds under our bank credit facility is expected to be greater in future years than our cost of funds under our current securitization facility, increased reliance on our bank credit facility may adversely affect our net income.

An increase in short-term interest rates may adversely affect our profitability.

The interest rates on our bank credit facility and the Series A program under our asset-backed securitization facility fluctuate up or down based upon the LIBOR rate, the prime rate of our administrative agent or the federal funds rate in the case of the bank credit facility and the commercial paper rate in the case of the Series A program. To the extent that such rates increase, the fair value of the interest only strip will decline and our interest expense could increase which may result in a decrease in our profitability.

We have significant future capital needs which we may be unable to fund, and we may need additional funding sooner than currently anticipated.

We will need substantial capital to finance our expansion plans, including funds for capital expenditures, pre-opening costs and initial operating losses related to new store openings. We may not be able to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms. If adequate funds are not available, we will have to curtail projected growth, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results or cash flows.

We estimate that capital expenditures during fiscal 2005 will be approximately \$12 million to \$15 million and that capital expenditures during future years will likely exceed this amount. We expect that cash provided by operating activities, available borrowings under our credit facility, and access to the unfunded portion of our asset-backed securitization program will be sufficient to fund our operations, store expansion and updating activities and capital expenditure programs through at least January 31, 2006. However, this may not be the case. We may be required to seek additional capital earlier than anticipated if future cash flows from operations

fail to meet our expectations and costs or capital expenditures related to new store openings exceed anticipated amounts.

A decrease in our credit sales could lead to a decrease in our product sales and profitability.

Historically, we have financed approximately 56% of our retail sales through our internal credit programs. Our ability to provide credit as a financing alternative for our customers depends on many factors, including the quality of our accounts receivable portfolio. Payments on some of our credit accounts become delinquent from time to time, and some accounts end up in default, due to several factors, including general and local economic conditions. As we expand into new markets, we will obtain new credit accounts that may present a higher risk than our existing credit accounts since new credit customers do not have an established credit history with us. A general decline in the quality of our accounts receivable portfolio could lead to a reduction of available credit provided through our finance operations. As a result, we might sell fewer products, which could adversely affect our earnings. Further, because approximately 57% of our credit customers make their credit account payments in our stores, any decrease in credit sales could reduce traffic in our stores and lower our revenues. A decline in the credit quality of our credit accounts could also cause an increase in our credit losses, which could require us to increase the provision for bad debts on our statement of operations and result in an adverse effect on our earnings.

A downturn in the economy may affect consumer purchases of discretionary items, which could reduce our net sales.

A large portion of our sales represent discretionary spending by our customers. Many factors affect discretionary spending, including world events, war, conditions in financial markets, general business conditions, interest rates, inflation, consumer debt levels, the availability of consumer credit, taxation, unemployment trends and other matters that influence consumer confidence and spending. Our customers' purchases of discretionary items, including our products, could decline during periods when disposable income is lower or periods of actual or perceived unfavorable economic conditions. If this occurs, our net sales and profitability could decline.

We face significant competition from national, regional and local retailers of major home appliances and consumer electronics.

The retail market for major home appliances and consumer electronics is highly fragmented and intensely competitive. We currently compete against a diverse group of retailers, including national mass merchants such as Sears, Wal-Mart, Target, Sam's Club and Costco, specialized national retailers such as Circuit City and Best Buy, home improvement stores such as Lowe's and Home Depot, and locally-owned regional or independent retail specialty stores that sell major home appliances and consumer electronics similar, and often identical, to those we sell. We also compete with retailers that market products through store catalogs and the Internet. In addition, there are few barriers to entry into our current and contemplated markets, and new competitors may enter our current or future markets at any time.

We may not be able to compete successfully against existing and future competitors. Some of our competitors have financial resources that are substantially greater than ours and may be able to purchase inventory at lower costs and better sustain economic downturns. Our competitors may respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies and may have greater resources to devote to promotion and sale of products and services. If two or more competitors consolidate their businesses or enter into strategic partnerships, they may be able to compete more effectively against us.

Our existing competitors or new entrants into our industry may use a number of different strategies to compete against us, including:

- expansion by our existing competitors or entry by new competitors into markets where we currently operate;
- · lower pricing;
- · aggressive advertising and marketing;
- extension of credit to customers on terms more favorable than we offer;

- larger store size, which may result in greater operational efficiencies, or innovative store formats; and
- adoption of improved retail sales methods.

Competition from any of these sources could cause us to lose market share, revenues and customers, increase expenditures or reduce prices, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

If new products are not introduced or consumers do not accept new products, our sales may decline.

Our ability to maintain and increase revenues depends to a large extent on the periodic introduction and availability of new products and technologies. We believe that the introduction and continued growth in consumer acceptance of new products, such as DVD players, digital television and digital radio, will have a significant impact on our ability to increase revenues. These products are subject to significant technological changes and pricing limitations and are subject to the actions and cooperation of third parties, such as movie distributors and television and radio broadcasters, all of which could affect the success of these and other new consumer electronics technologies. It is possible that new products will never achieve widespread consumer acceptance.

If we fail to anticipate changes in consumer preferences, our sales may decline.

Our products must appeal to a broad range of consumers whose preferences cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to change. Our success depends upon our ability to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to trends in consumer preferences relating to major household appliances and consumer electronics. If we fail to identify and respond to these changes, our sales of these products may decline. In addition, we often make commitments to purchase products from our vendors up to six months in advance of proposed delivery dates. Significant deviation from the projected demand for products that we sell may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition, either from lost sales or lower margins due to the need to reduce prices to sell excess inventory.

A disruption in our relationships with, or in the operations of, any of our key suppliers could cause our sales to decline.

The success of our business and growth strategies depends to a significant degree on our relationships with our suppliers, particularly our brand name suppliers such as General Electric, Whirlpool, Frigidaire, Maytag, Mitsubishi, Sony, Hitachi, Panasonic, Thomson Consumer Electronics, Toshiba, Hewlett Packard and Compaq. We do not have long term supply agreements or exclusive arrangements with the majority of our vendors. We typically order our inventory through the issuance of individual purchase orders to vendors. We also rely on our suppliers for cooperative advertising support. We may be subject to rationing by suppliers with respect to a number of limited distribution items. In addition, we rely heavily on a relatively small number of suppliers. Our top six suppliers represented 61.1% of our purchases for fiscal 2004, and the top two suppliers represented approximately 28.0% of our total purchases. The loss of any one or more of these key vendors or our failure to establish and maintain relationships with these and other vendors could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our ability to enter new markets successfully depends, to a significant extent, on the willingness and ability of our vendors to supply merchandise to additional warehouses or stores. If vendors are unwilling or unable to supply some or all of their products to us at acceptable prices in one or more markets, our results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Furthermore, we rely on credit from vendors to purchase our products. As of January 31, 2004, we had \$26.4 million in accounts payable and \$53.7 million in merchandise inventories. A substantial change in credit terms from vendors or vendors' willingness to extend credit to us would reduce our ability to obtain the merchandise that we sell, which could have a material adverse effect on our sales and results of operations.

You should not rely on our comparable store sales as an indication of our future results of operations because they fluctuate significantly.

Our historical same store sales growth figures have fluctuated significantly from quarter to quarter. For example, same store sales growth for each of the quarters of fiscal 2004 were 1.1%, (2.5)%, 4.1%, and 11.7%, respectively. Even though we achieved double-digit same store sales growth in the past, we may not be able to increase same store sales in the future. This is reflected in the declining rate of increases or, in some cases, actual decreases, in same store sales that have occurred over the last several quarters. A number of factors have historically affected, and will continue to affect, our comparable store sales results, including:

- changes in competition;
- general economic conditions;
- new product introductions;
- · consumer trends;
- changes in our merchandise mix;
- changes in the relative sales price points of our major product categories;
- the impact of our new stores on our existing stores, including potential decreases in existing stores' sales as a result of opening new stores;
- · weather conditions in our markets;
- timing of promotional events; and
- our ability to execute our business strategy effectively.

Changes in our quarterly and annual comparable store sales results could cause the price of our common stock to fluctuate significantly.

Because we experience seasonal fluctuations in our sales, our quarterly results will fluctuate, which could adversely affect our common stock price.

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our net sales and operating results. In fiscal 2004, we generated 28.8% and 23.5% of our net sales and 33.6% and 23.0% of our net income in the fiscal quarters ended January 31 (which included the holiday selling season) and July 31 (which included the effects of our summer air conditioning sales), respectively. We also incur significant additional expenses during these fiscal quarters due to higher purchase volumes and increased staffing. If we miscalculate the demand for our products generally or for our product mix during the fiscal quarters ending January 31 and July 31, our net sales could decline, resulting in excess inventory, which could harm our financial performance. A shortfall in expected net sales, combined with our significant additional expenses during these fiscal quarters, could cause a significant decline in our operating results. This could adversely affect our common stock price.

Our business could be adversely affected by changes in consumer protection laws and regulations.

Federal and state consumer protection laws and regulations, such as the Fair Credit Reporting Act, limit the manner in which we may offer and extend credit. Since we finance a substantial portion of our sales, any adverse change in the regulation of consumer credit could adversely affect our total revenues and gross margins. For example, new laws or regulations could limit the amount of interest or fees that may be charged on consumer loan accounts or restrict our ability to collect on account balances, which would have a material adverse effect on our earnings. Compliance with existing and future laws or regulations could require us to make material expenditures, in particular personnel training costs, or otherwise adversely affect our business or financial results. Failure to comply with these laws or regulations, even if inadvertent, could result in negative

publicity, fines or additional licensing expenses, any of which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and stock price.

Pending litigation relating to the sale of credit insurance and the sale of service maintenance agreements in the retail industry, including one lawsuit in which we are the defendant, could adversely affect our business.

States' attorneys general and private plaintiffs have filed lawsuits against other retailers relating to improper practices conducted in connection with the sale of credit insurance in several jurisdictions around the country. We offer credit insurance in all of our stores and require the purchase of property credit insurance products from us or from third party providers in connection with sales of merchandise on credit; therefore, similar litigation could be brought against us. Additionally, we have been named as a defendant in a purported class action lawsuit alleging breach of contract and violations of state and federal consumer protection laws arising from the terms of our service maintenance agreements. While we believe we are in full compliance with applicable laws and regulations, if we are found liable in the class action lawsuit or any future lawsuit regarding credit insurance or service maintenance agreements, we could be required to pay substantial damages or incur substantial costs as part of an out-of-court settlement, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and stock price. An adverse judgment or any negative publicity associated with our service maintenance agreements or any potential credit insurance litigation could also affect our reputation, which could have a negative impact on sales.

If we lose key management or are unable to attract and retain the highly qualified sales personnel required for our business, our operating results could suffer

Our future success depends to a significant degree on the skills, experience and continued service of Thomas J. Frank, Sr., our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, William C. Nylin, Jr., our President and Chief Operating Officer, C. William Frank, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, David R. Atnip, our Senior Vice President and Secretary/Treasurer, and other key personnel. We have entered into employment agreements with each of these named individuals, all of which include confidentiality and other customary provisions. If we lose the services of any of these individuals, or if one or more of them or other key personnel decide to join a competitor or otherwise compete directly or indirectly with us, our business and operations could be harmed, and we could have difficulty in implementing our strategy. In addition, as our business grows, we will need to locate, hire and retain additional qualified sales personnel in a timely manner and develop, train and manage an increasing number of management level sales associates and other employees. Competition for qualified employees could require us to pay higher wages to attract a sufficient number of employees, and increases in the federal minimum wage or other employee benefits costs could increase our operating expenses. If we are unable to attract and retain personnel as needed in the future, our net sales growth and operating results could suffer.

Because our stores are located in Texas and Louisiana, we are subject to regional risks.

Our 47 stores are located exclusively in Texas and Louisiana. This subjects us to regional risks, such as the economy, weather conditions, hurricanes and other natural disasters. If the region suffered an economic downturn or other adverse regional event, there could be an adverse impact on our net sales and profitability and our ability to implement our planned expansion program. Several of our competitors operate stores across the United States and thus are not as vulnerable to the risks of operating in one region.

Our information technology infrastructure is vulnerable to damage that could harm our business.

Our ability to operate our business from day to day, in particular our ability to manage our credit operations and inventory levels, largely depends on the efficient operation of our computer hardware and software systems. We use management information systems to track inventory information at the store level, communicate customer information, aggregate daily sales information and manage our credit portfolio. These systems and our operations are vulnerable to damage or interruption from:

- power loss, computer systems failures and Internet, telecommunications or data network failures;
- operator negligence or improper operation by, or supervision of, employees;

- physical and electronic loss of data or security breaches, misappropriation and similar events;
- · computer viruses;
- intentional acts of vandalism and similar events; and
- hurricanes, fires, floods and other natural disasters.

The software that we have developed to use in granting credit may contain undetected errors that could cause our network to fail or our expenses to increase. Any failure due to any of these causes, if it is not supported by our disaster recovery plan, could cause an interruption in our operations and result in reduced net sales and profitability.

If we are unable to maintain our current insurance coverage for our service maintenance agreements, our customers could incur additional costs and our repair expenses could increase, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

There are a limited number of insurance carriers that provide coverage for our service maintenance agreements. If insurance becomes unavailable from our current carriers for any reason, we may be unable to provide replacement coverage on the same terms, if at all. Even if we are able to obtain replacement coverage, higher premiums could have an adverse impact on our profitability if we are unable to pass along the increased cost of such coverage to our customers. Inability to obtain insurance coverage for our service maintenance agreements could cause fluctuations in our repair expenses and greater volatility of earnings.

Changes in trade regulations, currency fluctuations and other factors beyond our control could affect our business.

A significant portion of our inventory is manufactured overseas and in Mexico. Changes in trade regulations, currency fluctuations or other factors beyond our control may increase the cost of items we purchase or create shortages of these items, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Conversely, significant reductions in the cost of these items in U.S. dollars may cause a significant reduction in the retail prices of those products, resulting in a material adverse effect on our sales, margins or competitive position. In addition, commissions earned on both our credit insurance and service maintenance agreement products could be adversely affected by changes in statutory premium rates, commission rates, adverse claims experience and other factors.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property rights, which could impair our name and reputation.

We believe that our success and ability to compete depends in part on consumer identification of the name "Conn's." We have registered the trademarks "Conn's" and our logo. We intend to protect vigorously our trademark against infringement or misappropriation by others. A third party, however, could misappropriate our intellectual property in the future. The enforcement of our proprietary rights through litigation could result in substantial costs to us that could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The following summarizes the geographic location of our stores, warehouse and distribution centers and corporate facilities by major market area:

Geographic Location	Stores in Market	Leased Stores	Total Square Feet	Warehouse Square Feet	Leases With Options Expiring Beyond 10 Years
Golden Triangle District	5	5	153,568	32,169	5
Louisiana District	5	5	129,890	27,200	5
Houston District	18	15	394,240	90,070	12
San Antonio/Austin District	13	12	350,830	20,175	12
Corpus Christi	1	1	51,670	14,300	1
Dallas District	5	5	149,520	23,175	5
Store Totals	47	43	1,229,718	207,089	40
Warehouse/Distribution Centers	6	3	565,113	565,113	1
Service Centers	5	3	191,932	133,636	1
Corporate Offices	1	1	106,783	25,000	1
-					
Total	59	50	2,093,546	930,838	43
	·				

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

In December 2002, Martin E. Smith, as named plaintiff, filed a lawsuit against us in the state district court in Jefferson County, Texas, that attempts to create a class action for breach of contract and violations of state and federal consumer protection laws arising from the terms of our service maintenance agreements. The lawsuit alleges an inappropriate overlap in the warranty periods provided by the manufacturers of our products and the periods covered by the service maintenance agreements that we sell. The lawsuit seeks unspecified actual damages as well as an injunction against our current practices and extension of affected service contracts. We believe that the warranty periods provided by our service maintenance agreements are consistent with industry practice. We believe that it is premature to predict whether class action status will be granted or, if it is granted, the outcome of this litigation.

We are involved in routine litigation incidental to our business from time to time. We do not expect the outcome of any of this routine litigation to have a material effect on our financial condition or results of operation.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

What is the principal market for our common stock?

The principal market for our common stock is the NASDAQ National Market System. Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ National Market System under the symbol "CONN." Information regarding the high and low sales prices for our common stock for each quarterly period since our initial public offering as reported on NASDAQ is summarized as follows:

	High	Low
Period November 24, 2003 through January 31, 2004	\$16.62	\$14.00

How many common stockholders do we have?

As of April 15, 2004, we had approximately 106 common stockholders of record.

Did we declare any cash dividends in fiscal 2004 or fiscal 2003?

No.

How many shares of common stock are authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans?

The following table provides information regarding the number of shares of our common stock that may be issued on exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants under our existing equity compensation plans as of January 31, 2004. These plans are as follows:

- the Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Stock Option Plan;
- · the Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan; and
- · the Employee Stock Purchase Program.

Plan Category	(A) Number of Securities to be Issued upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights	(B) Weighted-Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights		Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in Column (A))		
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockholders	1,771,440(1)	\$	10.26	1,040,877(1)		
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Stockholders	_		_	_		
Total	1,771,440	\$	10.26	1,040,877		

⁽¹⁾ Includes 240,000 outstanding options and 60,000 options available for future issue applicable to the Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan.

Has the Company had any sales of unregistered securities during fiscal 2003?

In connection with the IPO, the shareholders of Conn Appliances, Inc., a Texas corporation and our parent company prior to our Delaware reorganization ("Conn Texas"), voted to approve the merger of Conn Texas with a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company at a special meeting of shareholders held on February 7, 2003. The merger became effective upon the consummation of the IPO. Holders of Conn Texas common stock, \$0.01 par value per share, received one share of the Company's common stock for each share of Conn Texas common stock held. Holders of Conn Texas preferred stock, \$0.01 par value per share, received one share of the Company's preferred stock, \$0.01 per share, for each share of Conn Texas preferred stock held. The preferred stock issued in the merger was redeemed on a mandatory basis for cash or shares of the Company's common stock at the option of the stockholder. The conversion ratio into common stock was calculated by dividing the liquidation value (including accrued and unpaid dividends) of the Conn Texas preferred stock by the offering price per share of the Company's common stock sold in the IPO. The offering and sale of securities effected by the merger were exempt under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 thereunder. The offering was limited to the shareholders of Conn Texas, who consisted of persons that qualify as accredited investors and fewer than 35 other persons. Non-accredited offerees were represented by a "purchaser representative" as defined in Rule 501(h) under the Securities Act. The Company compiled with all of the applicable requirements of Rules 501 and 502.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

	Years Ended July 31,			Six Months Ended January 31,	Twelve Months Ended January 31,	Years Ended January 31,			
	1999	2000	2001	2002	2002	2003	2004		
	(unaudited) (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)								
Statement of Operations (1):			(domin's in the	ousunus, except per sii	are amounts)				
Total revenues	\$ 234,492	\$276,933	\$ 327,257	\$ 206,896	\$ 378,525	\$ 445,973	\$499,310		
Operating expense:									
Cost of goods sold, including									
ware- housing and occupancy									
cost	144,842	169,411	201,963	127,543	233,226	276,160	317,712		
Selling, general and									
administrative expense	69,141	78,304	92,194	58,630	106,949	125,712	135,174		
Provision for bad debts	_	793	1,734	1,286	2,406	4,125	4,657		
Total operating expense	213,983	248,508	295,891	187,459	342,581	405,997	457,543		
Total operating expense		246,306	293,891	167,439		403,997	437,343		
Operating income	20,509	28,425	31,366	19,437	35,944	39,976	41,767		
Interest expense, net	6,024	4,836	3,754	2,940	4,855	7,237	4,577		
Earnings before income taxes	14,485	23,589	27,612	16,497	31,089	32,739	37,190		
Provision for income taxes	5,724	8,991	9,879	5,944	11,130	11,342	12,850		
									
Net income from continuing operations	8,761	14,598	17,733	10,553	19,959	21,397	23,993		
Discontinued operations, net of tax	224	30	(546)	_	(389)	_	_		
									
Net income	8,985	14,628	17,187	10,553	19,570	21,397	24,340		
Less preferred stock dividends (2)	(1,857)	(2,046)	(2,173)	(1,025)	(1,939)	(2,133)	(1,954)		
Net income available for common									
stockholders	\$ 7,128	\$ 12,582	\$ 15,014	\$ 9,528	\$ 17,631	\$ 18,468	\$ 22,386		
Stockholders	\$ 7,128	\$ 12,382	\$ 15,014	\$ 9,328	\$ 17,031	\$ 10,400	\$ 22,380		
Earnings per common share:			· 	<u> </u>		<u> </u>			
Basic	\$ 0.41	\$ 0.73	\$ 0.87	\$ 0.56	\$ 1.03	\$ 1.10	\$ 1.26		
Diluted	\$ 0.41	\$ 0.72	\$ 0.87	\$ 0.55	\$ 1.01	\$ 1.10	\$ 1.22		
Average common shares outstanding:	4 0112	* ***	4 0.00	4 0.00		4	4		
Basic	17,489	17,350	17,169	17,025	17,060	16,724	17,726		
Diluted	17,489	17,384	17,194	17,327	17,383	16,724	18,335		
Other Financial Data: Stores open at end of period	26	20	32	36	36	42	45		
Same store sales growth (3)	13.60%	28 8.9%	10.3%	16.7%	15.6%	1.3%	2.6%		
Inventory turns (4)	5.5	5.6	5.9	7.5	6.8	6.6	6.5		
Gross margin percentage (5)	38.2%	38.8%	38.3%	38.4%	38.4%	37.9%	36.4%		
Operating margin (6)	8.7%	10.3%	9.6%	9.4%	9.5%	8.8%	8.4%		
Return on average equity (7)	40.2%	42.8%	36.7%	35.9%	34.9%	28.3%	19.5%		
Capital expenditures	\$ 6,781	\$ 6,920	\$ 14,833	\$ 10,551	\$ 15,547	\$ 15,070	\$ 9,401		
Balance Sheet Data:									
Working capital	\$ 46,100	\$ 33,888	\$ 40,752	\$ 45,546	\$ 45,546	\$ 69,984	\$ 117,066		
Total assets	123,152	116,075	134,425	145,644	145,644	181,798	234,760		
Total debt	62,651	30,735	31,445	38,750	38,750	51,992	14,512		
Preferred stock Total stockholders' aguity	18,632	18,520	15,400	15,226	15,226	15,226	166 500		
Total stockholders' equity	26,458	41,785	54,879	62,860	62,860	82,669	166,590		

Twelve

⁽¹⁾ Information excludes the operations of the rent-to-own division that was sold in February, 2001.

⁽²⁾ Dividends were not actually declared or paid until 2004, but are presented for purposes of earnings per share calculations.

³⁾ Same store sales growth is calculated by comparing the reported sales by store for all stores that were open throughout a period to reported sales by store for all stores that were open throughout the prior period. Sales from closed stores have been removed from each period. Sales from relocated stores have been included in each period because each such store was relocated within the same general geographic market. Sales from expanded stores have been included in each period.

⁽⁴⁾ Inventory turns are defined as the cost of goods sold, excluding warehousing and occupancy cost, divided by the average of the beginning and ending product inventory; information for the six months ended January 31, 2002 has been annualized for comparison purposes.

⁽⁵⁾ Gross margin percentage is defined as total revenues less cost of goods and parts sold, including warehousing and occupancy cost, divided by total revenues.

⁽⁶⁾ Operating margin is defined as operating income divided by total revenues.

⁽⁷⁾ Return on average equity is calculated as current period net income from continuing operations divided by the average of the beginning and ending equity; information for the six months ended January 31, 2002 has been annualized for comparison purposes.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. We sometimes use words such as "believe," "may," "will," "estimate," "continue," "anticipate," "intend," "expect," "project" and similar expressions, as they relate to us, our management and our industry, to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements relate to our expectations, beliefs, plans, strategies, prospects, future performance, anticipated trends and other future events. We have based our forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends affecting our business. Actual results may differ materially. Some of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that may cause actual results to differ from these forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

- our growth strategy and plans regarding opening new stores and entering adjacent and new markets, including our plans to continue expanding into the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex;
- our intention to update or expand existing stores;
- estimated capital expenditures and costs related to the opening of new stores or the update or expansion of existing stores;
- our cash flows from operations, borrowings from our revolving line of credit and proceeds from securitizations to fund our operations, debt repayment and expansion;
- technological and market developments, growth trends and projected sales in the home appliance and consumer electronics industry, including with
 respect to digital products like DVD players, HDTV, digital radio, home networking devices and other new products, and our ability to capitalize on
 such growth;
- · our relationships with key suppliers;
- · the adequacy of our distribution and information systems and management experience to support our expansion plans;
- · our expectations regarding competition and our competitive advantages;
- the outcome of litigation affecting our business; and
- non-payment of dividends.

Additional important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations are discussed under "Risk Factors" in this Form 10-K. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events and circumstances discussed in this report might not happen.

The forward-looking statements in this report reflect our views and assumptions only as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us, or to persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements.

General

Our consolidated financial statements and related notes comprise over 20 pages. The following discussion and analysis is intended to provide you with a more insightful understanding of our financial condition and performance in the indicated periods, including an analysis of those key factors that contributed to our financial condition and performance and that are, or are expected to be, the key "drivers" of our business.

We are a specialty retailer of home appliances and consumer electronics. We sell major home appliances, including refrigerators, freezers, washers, dryers and ranges, and a variety of consumer electronics, including projection, plasma, LCD, and DLP televisions, camcorders, VCRs, DVD players and home theater products. We also sell home office equipment, lawn and garden products and bedding, and we continue to introduce additional product categories for the home to help increase same store sales and to respond to our customers' product needs. We currently operate 47 retail locations in Texas and Louisiana.

Unlike many of our competitors, we provide in-house credit options for our customers. Historically, we have financed approximately 56% of our retail sales. We finance substantially all of our customer receivables through an asset-backed securitization facility, and we derive servicing fee income and interest income from these assets. See "Business – Finance Operations" for a detailed discussion of our in-house credit programs. As part of our asset-backed securitization facility, we have created a qualifying special purpose entity, which we refer to as the QSPE or the issuer, to purchase customer receivables from us and to issue asset-backed and variable funding notes to third parties. We transfer receivables, consisting of retail installment contracts and revolving accounts extended to our customers, to the issuer in exchange for cash and subordinated securities. To finance its acquisition of these receivables, the issuer has issued notes to third parties.

We also derive revenues from repair services on the products we sell and from product delivery and installation services we provide to our customers. Additionally, acting as an agent for unaffiliated companies, we sell credit insurance to protect our customers from credit losses due to death, disability, involuntary unemployment and property damage.

During fiscal 2001, we sold the operations of our rent-to-own business. As a result of this sale, we restated our statements of operations for fiscal 2000 to reflect results of the rent-to-own division as discontinued operations.

Executive Overview

This overview is intended to provide an executive level overview of our operations for the year ended January 31, 2004. A detailed explanation of the changes in our operations for the year ended January 31, 2004 as compared to the prior year is included beginning on page 33. As explained in that section, our pretax income for the year ended January 31, 2004 increased approximately \$5.2 million as a result of higher revenues and lower selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues. These improvements in our operations were offset by a decline in retail product gross margins, a decline in the percentage of credit financed transactions, the conversion of \$200.0 million of our asset-backed securitization facility from variable interest rates to higher fixed interest rates and several unusual charges or adjustments that negatively impacted our operations. Some of the more specific issues that impacted our operations are presented as follows:

- Our recent negative trend in same store sales increases reversed itself, particularly in the last two quarters. We finished the year at a same store sales growth rate of 2.6%, posting same store sales performances of 1.1%, (2.5)%, 4.1%, and 11.7% in the first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively. We believe that we were able to achieve these more favorable increases through an increased focus on our track sales and by taking the opportunity to promote bedding and lawn and garden products. It is our strategy to continue this focus into fiscal 2005.
- The entry into the Dallas/Fort Worth market provided both a positive and negative impact on our operations. Approximately, \$8.8 million of our product sales increase resulted from the opening of three new stores in this market. However, our gross product and operating margins were negatively impacted as we initially discounted prices and increased substantial standby costs in personnel and advertising to insure that our initial entry into the market was well received. Our plans provide for the opening of four to six additional stores in the market during 2005 fiscal year and we expect that many of the standby costs previously absorbed will be reduced to a more normal level.
- Our gross product margin was also negatively impacted by continued price erosion, particularly in the electronics category. We expect that there is the potential for these price erosions to continue, although at a reduced rate, as new products are introduced.

- The conversion in September 2002 of \$200.0 million of our off-balance sheet asset-backed securitization program from variable interest rates to higher fixed interest rates negatively impacted our operations. We estimate that the impact of the additional cost of this program in fiscal 2004 was approximately \$3.1 million over such costs incurred in fiscal 2003.
- There were several unusual charges or adjustments that negatively impacted our operations. These charges and adjustments included revision of
 previous estimates relative to non-cash revenue adjustments of approximately \$0.6 million, one-time expenditures of approximately \$0.7 million
 associated with a change in the methodology for calculating sales commissions and \$0.3 million associated with the settlement of a dispute with a
 former shareholder.
- As a result of the completion of our public offering, we were able to utilize the net proceeds of the offering to retire all of our balance sheet debt and thereby substantially reduce our interest expense in the last quarter. This transaction had a further impact on our interest expense as the change in fair value of derivatives is being recorded as an adjustment to operations rather than through Other comprehensive income (OCI). As an offset to this present benefit, we are amortizing the balance included in OCI over the period in which the forecasted transaction impacts the statement of operations.

Operational Changes and Resulting Outlook

After reviewing our performance for the first six months of fiscal 2004, we implemented several initiatives that we believe helped improve our operations for the balance of fiscal 2004 and that will positively impact our future operating results. These changes included the following:

- use of our direct mail marketing campaign as a single promotional activity rather than combining it with other promotional programs, which we believe reduced the amount of the price discounts that are required in order to influence our customers' purchasing decisions;
- identification of specific demographic make-up within a given U.S. Postal Service carrier route for our direct mail campaigns and an increase in promotional credit, which we believe allowed us to obtain better penetration rates for our promotional campaigns;
- communication to our sales personnel an authorized credit limit in excess of the credit needed to complete a specific transaction for qualified customers, which we believe allowed our sales personnel to make "add-on" sales;
- development of a new strategy for the merchandising our track products, including separate merchandising plans and displays, separate sales and
 managerial personnel, convenient check-out procedures and diversified inventory, which we believe increased sales within the track area, but which
 also decreased our gross product margin percentage;
- reformat of our existing display space to provide additional footage to promote lawn and garden products since our stores are in a geographic area that is conducive to year-around use of these products;
- implementation of certain cost reduction measures that have reduced support, warehouse and delivery and service costs;
- modification of our sales commission plan, which we believe further aligned our sales personnel compensation with our overall sales objectives;
- an increase in same store sales from the new stores opened in late 2002;
- an increase in overall retail sales from our expansion into the Dallas/Fort Worth market in September, October and November of fiscal 2004 and a higher penetration of credit sales at these new stores based on our strategic site-selection process and our planned direct marketing program in this market;
- a significant reduction in our total interest expense due to the use of proceeds from our initial public offering to repay debt and the expiration of \$50.0 million in interest rate swap contracts; and
- the introduction of a replacement service maintenance agreement, which we believe will encourage customers to purchase replacement coverage on smaller ticket items.

Our continued growth in the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex is dependent on our ability to develop an adequate distribution center for that market. The present cross-dock facility in that market contains approximately 36,000 square feet and will accommodate approximately five to seven stores. We are currently in the planning stages to develop a complete warehouse and distribution center for this market that we expect to contain approximately 150,000 square feet. Additional annual cost to lease and operate such a facility is projected at approximately \$2.0 million. It is expected that we be required to have such a distribution center operational by the end of fiscal 2005.

The consumer electronics industry depends on new products to drive same store sales increases. Typically, these new products, such as digital televisions and DVD players, are introduced at relatively high price points that are then gradually reduced as the product becomes more mainstream. To maintain positive same store sales growth, unit sales must increase at a rate greater than the decline in product prices. The affordability of the product helps the unit sales growth. However, as a result of relatively short product life cycles in the consumer electronics industry, which limit the amount of time available for sales volume to increase, combined with rapid price erosion in the industry, retailers are challenged to maintain overall gross margin levels and positive same store sales. This has historically been our experience, and we expect this trend to continue.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies that we use to prepare our consolidated financial statements, we necessarily make accounting estimates that affect our reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Some of these accounting estimates require us to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time we make the accounting estimates. We base these assumptions and the resulting estimates on authoritative pronouncements, historical information and other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, and we evaluate these assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis. We could reasonably use different accounting estimates, and changes in our accounting estimates could occur from period to period, with the result in each case being a material change in the financial statement presentation of our financial condition or results of operations. We refer to accounting estimates of this type as "critical accounting estimates." We believe that the critical accounting estimates discussed below are among those most important to an understanding of our consolidated financial statements as of January 31, 2004.

Transfers of Financial Assets. We transfer customer receivables to the QSPE that issues asset-backed securities to third party lenders using these accounts as collateral, and we continue to service these accounts after the transfer. We recognize the sale of these accounts when we relinquish control of the transferred financial asset in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities. As we transfer the accounts, we record an asset representing the interest only strip. The gain or loss recognized on these transactions is based on our best estimates of key assumptions, including forecasted credit losses, payment rates, forward yield curves, costs of servicing the accounts and appropriate discount rates. The use of different estimates or assumptions could produce different financial results. For example, if we had assumed a 10.0% reduction in net interest spread (which might be caused by rising interest rates), our interest in securitized assets would have been reduced by \$2.6 million as of January 31, 2004, which may have an adverse effect on earnings. We recognize income from our interest in these transferred accounts based on the difference between the interest earned on customer accounts and the costs associated with financing and servicing the transferred accounts, less a provision for bad debts associated with the transferred assets. This income is recorded as "Finance charges and other" in our consolidated statement of operations. If the assumption used for developing the reserve for doubtful accounts on the books of the QSPE were changed by 0.5% from 3.4% to 3.9%, the impact to recorded "Finance charges and other" would have been a reduction in revenues and pretax income of \$1.8 million.

Deferred Tax Assets. We have significant net deferred tax assets (approximately \$7.3 million as of January 31, 2004), which are subject to periodic recoverability assessments. Realization of our net deferred tax assets may be dependent upon whether we achieve projected future taxable income. Our estimates regarding future profitability may change due to future market conditions, our ability to continue to execute at historical levels and our ability to continue our growth plans. These changes, if any, may require material adjustments to these deferred tax asset balances. For example, if we had assumed that the future tax rate at which these deferred items would reverse was 34.3% rather than 35.3%, we would have reduced the net deferred tax asset and net income by approximately \$206,000.

Intangible Assets. We have significant intangible assets related primarily to goodwill and the costs of obtaining various loans and funding sources. The determination of related estimated useful lives and whether or not these assets are impaired involves significant judgments. Effective August 1, 2002, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Prior to adoption of SFAS 142, we amortized goodwill over an estimated life of fifteen years on a straight-line basis. Effective with the implementation of SFAS 142, we ceased amortizing goodwill and began testing potential impairment of this asset annually based on judgments regarding ongoing profitability and cash flow of the underlying assets. Changes in strategy or market conditions could significantly impact these judgments and require adjustments to recorded asset balances. For example, if we had reason to believe that our recorded goodwill had become impaired due to decreases in the fair market value of the underlying business, we would have to take a charge to income for that portion of goodwill that we believe is impaired. Our goodwill balance at January 31, 2004 was \$7.9 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Our accounting policies regarding land, buildings, and equipment include judgments regarding the estimated useful lives of such assets, the estimated residual values to which the assets are depreciated, and the determination as to what constitutes increasing the life of existing assets. These judgments and estimates may produce materially different amounts of depreciation and amortization expense that would be reported if different assumptions were used. These judgments may also impact the need to recognize an impairment charge on the carrying amount of these assets as the cash flows associated with the assets are realized. In addition, the actual life of the asset and residual value may be different from the estimates used to prepare financial statements in prior periods.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues from the sale of retail products are recognized at the time the product is delivered to the customer. Such revenues are recognized net of any adjustments for sales incentive offers such as discounts, coupons, rebates, or other free products or services. We sell service maintenance agreements and credit insurance contracts on behalf of unrelated third parties. For contracts where the third parties are the obligor on the contract, commissions are recognized in revenues at the time of sale, and in the case of retrospective commissions, at the time that they are earned. Where we sell service maintenance agreements in which we are deemed to be the obligor on the contract at the time of sale, revenue is recognized ratably, on a straight-line basis, over the term of the service maintenance agreement. These service maintenance agreements are renewal contracts that provide our customers protection against product repair costs arising after the expiration of the manufacturer's warranty and the third party obligor contracts. These agreements typically range from 12 months to 36 months. These agreements are separate units of accounting under Emerging Issues Task Force No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. The amounts of service maintenance agreement revenue deferred at January 31, 2003 and 2004 were \$3.8 million and \$3.9 million, respectively, and are included in "Deferred revenue" in the accompanying balance sheets.

Vendor Allowances. We receive funds from vendors for price protection, product rebates, marketing and training and promotion programs which are recorded on the accrual basis as a reduction to the related product cost or advertising expense according to the nature of the program. We accrue rebates based on the satisfaction of terms of the program and sales of qualifying products even though funds may not be received until the end of a quarter or year. If the programs are related to product purchases, the allowances, credits or payments are recorded as a reduction of product cost; if the programs are related to promotion or marketing of the product, the allowances, credits, or payments are recorded as a reduction of advertising expense in the period in which the expense is incurred.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain statement of operations information, excluding discontinued operations, as a percentage of total revenues for the periods indicated.

	Years Ended July 31,		Six Months Ended January 31,		Twelve Months Ended January 31,	Years ended January 31,	
	2000	2001	2001	2002	2002	2003	2004
			(Unaudited)		(Unaudited)		
Revenues:							
Product sales	79.2%	79.4%	80.0%	78.7%	78.8%	78.1%	79.8%
Service maintenance agreement commissions (net)	5.9	5.7	5.4	5.8	5.9	5.1	4.8
Service revenues	4.8	4.2	4.4	3.8	3.9	4.2	3.7
Service revenues	4.8	4.2	4.4	3.8	3.9	4.2	3.7
Total net sales	89.9	89.3	89.8	88.3	88.6	87.4	88.3
Finance charges and other	10.1	10.2	10.2	11.7	11.4	12.6	11.7
Total revenues	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Cost and expenses:							
Cost of goods sold, including warehousing							
and occupancy costs	60.1	60.8	60.8	60.7	60.7	60.9	62.8
Cost of parts sold, including warehousing and							
occupancy costs	1.1	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	0.8
Selling, general and administrative expense	28.2	28.1	28.2	28.3	28.2	28.4	27.1
Provision for bad debts	0.3	0.5	0.4	0.6	0.6	0.9	0.9
Total costs and expenses	89.7	90.4	90.4	90.6	90.5	91.2	91.6
Operating income	10.3	9.6	9.6	9.4	9.5	8.8	8.4
Interest expense	1.8	1.2	1.2	1.4	1.3	1.6	0.9
							
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes	8.5	8.4	8.4	8.0	8.2	7.2	7.5
Provision for income taxes							
Current	(3.5)	(3.5)	(3.1)	(3.3)	(3.4)	(2.9)	(2.6)
Deferred	0.3	0.5	0.1	0.4	0.5	0.3	
Total provision for income taxes	(3.2)	(3.0)	(3.0)	(2.9)	(2.9)	(2.6)	(2.6)
Net income from continuing operations	5.3%	5.4%	5.4%	5.1%	5.3%	4.6%	4.9%

In reviewing the percentages reflected in the above table, we noted that the following trends in our operations developed within the last twelve months. They are summarized as follows:

- Commissions from service maintenance agreement sales are declining as a percentage of total revenue. This reduction reflects the impact of
 deteriorating price points in the consumer electronics category and the increased consumer confidence in newer products. Additionally, the
 modification of the sales commission program in early fiscal 2004 reduced the emphasis previously placed on the sale of service maintenance
 agreements and encouraged sales personnel to focus on product sales.
- Service revenues as a percentage of total revenues are also beginning to decline. This decrease is attributable to a more stringent review of billings submitted to the insurance company and our own obligations under service maintenance agreement renewal programs for covered warranty services. As a result of these billing reviews, service revenues are declining; however, retrospective settlements, due to claims reductions, that are included in "Finance charges and other" were positively impacted.
- The decline in the percentage of "Finance charges and other" to total revenues reflects the higher interest rates that were incurred in late fiscal 2003 and all of fiscal 2004 as a result of the "fixing" of interest rates on \$200 million in bonds included in the asset-backed securitization program. This increase in interest rate results in a decrease in the interest spread on the credit portfolio that is recognized as part of securitization income received from the QSPE.
- The increasing cost of goods sold as a percentage of total revenues results from continued deterioration of retail price points and margins for consumer electronics products, aggressive discounting in connection with the promotion of products for store grand openings in February and

March 2003 and the entry into the Dallas/Fort Worth market, and sales of relatively lower margin computer products growing at a more rapid rate than sales of higher margin home appliance products. While we believe that we have corrected the problems associated with higher discounting of prices, we do expect price deterioration to continue which we expect will negatively impact gross product margins.

- The decline in selling, general and administrative expense reflects the implementation of various cost reduction programs and the achievement of economies of scale as revenue continues to grow. While we expect this favorable trend to continue, we believe that it will be at a significantly reduced rate since we expect to incur significant additional administrative costs associated with being a public held company.
- The declining trend in interest expense as a percentage of total revenues is a function of the pay-off of debt with our IPO proceeds and the impact of expiring interest rate swap agreements. Assuming that we are successful in continuing to generate positive cash flow, we expect interest expense to continue to decline as the last portion of our interest rate swaps get closer to maturity and we realize the favorable impact of the application of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.
- While our operating margin has dropped in the last several years due to many of the factors described above, we believe that it should begin to stabilize in the 8.4% to 8.6% range as we continue to increase sales.

The specific causes of these trend variations are discussed in detail under the comparison of operating results for the year ended January 31, 2003 to the year ended January 31, 2004.

Same store sales growth is calculated by comparing the reported sales by store for all stores that were open throughout a period to reported sales by store for all stores that were open throughout the prior period. Sales from closed stores have been removed from each period. Sales from relocated stores have been included in each period because each such store was relocated within the same general geographic market. Sales from expanded stores have been included in each period.

The presentation of our gross margins may not be comparable to other retailers since we include the cost of our in-home delivery service as part of selling, general and administrative expense. Similarly, we include the cost of merchandising our products, including amounts related to purchasing the product, in selling, general and administrative expense. It is our understanding that other retailers may include such costs as part of cost of goods sold.

Year Ended January 31, 2003 Compared to the Year Ended January 31, 2004

Revenues. Total revenues increased by \$53.3 million, or 12.0%, from \$446.0 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$499.3 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. The increase was attributable to increases of \$51.4 million, or 13.2%, in net sales and \$1.9 million, or 3.4%, in finance charges and other revenues. Of the \$51.4 million increase in net sales, \$40.3 million was generated by nine retail locations that were not open for twelve consecutive months in both periods. Same store sales increased \$9.3 million, or 2.6%, for those stores that were open all twelve months in both periods. Increases in delivery and installation charges of \$1.8 million accounted for the balance of the net sales increase. The change in net sales was primarily due to increased unit volume of sales representing an increase of approximately \$107.6 million in sales that were offset by deteriorating price points that represent a decrease in sales of approximately \$56.2 million. The addition of a second line of computers, increased sales in our track area, increased sales of our bedding and lawn and garden product lines and a significant increase in projection television sales accounted for much of the increased unit volume of sales.

We believe that at least a portion of the smaller increase in same store sales was the result of a temporary negative impact on our existing stores caused by opening new stores in existing markets. For example, after opening our Sugarland store in the Houston market in January 2003, retail sales before service maintenance agreement cancellations in the market increased by 10.1% during the year ended January 31, 2004 compared to the 2003 period, but our same store sales for the existing 17 stores in this market that were open for a full twelve months in both periods increased only by 4.9%. Likewise, our San Antonio/Austin market experienced a 22.5% total increase in retail sales as we opened four new stores in the area while our same store sales for our ten

existing stores in this market increased only 8.9% when compared to the 2003 period. In addition, in an effort to reduce our delinquency rates, we increased down payment and verification requirements on certain of our credit accounts, which led to lower approval rates in the first six months of 2004, and we modified the selection criteria for our direct mail program that effectively limited promotional credit and overall credit penetration in the same time frame, which resulted in fewer credit applications being processed as a percentage of sales. We have since modified our down payment requirements, use of promotional credit and the selection criteria for our direct mail program to previous levels, which we believe increased our credit penetration while maintaining our historical delinquency and charge-off rates.

As reflected in the table below, product sales and net sales are increasing at a slower rate than they did in the past. This slowing trend results primarily from a decline in same store sales within the last 18 months, indicating that some of our stores may be reaching maturity as it relates to market penetration. However, we believe that we have positioned many of our stores, particularly those that have reached more mature levels, to have the potential for additional same store sales increases by re-merchandising our product offerings, training sales personnel to increase closing rates, regularly updating our stores, continuing to emphasize a high level of customer service and developing our track area; we do expect that much of our future sales increases will continue to come both from existing stores and new stores.

The following table presents the makeup of net sales by product category in each period, including service maintenance agreement commissions and service revenues, expressed both in dollar amounts and as a percentage of total net sales.

		Years Ended	January 31,		
	2003		2004	2004	
	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent	Increase (Decrease)
		(dollars in thousands)		
Major home appliances	\$ 148,878	38.2%	\$ 161,411	36.6%	8.4%
Consumer electronics	151,196	38.8	176,868	40.1	17.0(1)
Home office equipment	25,617	6.6	30,251	6.9	18.1(2)
Delivery and installation	6,369	1.6	7,987	1.8	25.4(3)
Lawn and garden	8,540	2.2	9,703	2.2	13.6(4)
Bedding	4,191	1.1	6,683	1.5	59.5(4)
Other	3,088	0.8	5,715	1.3	85.1(2)
Total product sales	347,879	89.3	398,618	90.4	14.6
Service maintenance agreement commissions	22,961	5.9	24,035	5.4	4.7(5)
Service revenues	18,656	4.8	18,265	4.2	(2.1)(6)
Total net sales	\$ 389,496	100.0%	\$ 440,918	100.0%	13.2%

- (1) The increase in net sales of consumer electronics is related primarily to increases in sales in projection televisions, liquid crystal display televisions and the introduction of the digital light processor big screen televisions.
- (2) The increase in net sales of home office equipment and other was due to the emphasis that was placed on increasing sales within the track area.
- (3) The increase in delivery and installation revenues reflects growth in appliance and electronic unit sales and a price increase for delivery and installation charges.
- (4) The increases in lawn and garden and bedding results from the emphasis placed on these product categories as significant components of same store sales growth.
- The relatively smaller increase in service maintenance agreement sales reflects the impact of deteriorating price points of consumer electronic items and the increased consumer confidence in newer products; in addition, the modification of the sales commission program reduced the emphasis previously placed on this category of sales.
- (6) The decrease in service revenues is attributable to a more stringent review of billings made to the insurance company and our own internal reserves for covered warranty services. As a result of these billing reviews, service revenues for the year ended January 31, 2004 were somewhat softened; however, retrospective claim settlements that are included in the line item entitled "Finance charges and other" were positively impacted by approximately \$2.4 million during this period.

Revenue from finance charges and other increased by approximately \$1.9 million, or 3.4%, from \$56.5 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$58.4 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. This increase in revenue resulted primarily from an increase in retrospective claim settlements of \$2.4 million, an increase in interest received from receivables not sold of \$0.6 million and an increase in insurance commissions of \$0.8 million. These increases in revenues were offset by a decrease in securitization income of \$2.4 million. The decrease in income from sale of receivables to the QSPE of \$2.4 million resulted primarily from increased program costs of \$5.7 million and increased bad debts and other of \$1.0 million that were offset by additional interest income of \$4.3 million that

was generated as a result of a 15% increase in the credit portfolio. Increases in program costs resulted from the fixing of the interest rate on \$200 million in bonds and the increase in the credit portfolio. Additionally, during the 2003 period, we replaced a number of manual functions associated with the processing of non-cash revenue adjustments in our credit control group with an auto-post function. While we were able to reduce personnel costs associated with this function, we experienced a one-time revenue decrease of approximately \$0.6 million as we converted estimates to actual adjustments.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold, including warehousing and occupancy cost, increased by \$41.1 million, or 15.1%, from \$272.6 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$313.6 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. This increase primarily resulted from the 13.2% net sales increase as well as an increase in cost of retail products sold as a percentage of net product sales from 76.1% in the 2003 period to 77.3% in the 2004 period. The overall increase in cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sales was primarily caused by the continued deterioration of retail price points and margins for consumer electronics products, over-discounting in connection with the promotion of products for store grand openings in February and March 2003 and the entry into the Dallas/Fort Worth market, and sales of relatively lower margin computer products growing at a more rapid rate than sales of higher margin home appliance products. While we believe that we have corrected the problems associated with higher discounting of prices, we do expect price deterioration to continue which will negatively impact gross product margins. Cost of parts sold decreased approximately \$0.3 million, or 27.4%, as service revenues decreased as a result of lower warranty revenues.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$9.5 million, or 7.5%, from \$125.7 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$135.2 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. This increase was considerably less than the 12.0% increase in total revenues as we began to focus on cost reductions, including salaries and payroll related costs, advertising and telephone expenses. These cost reductions were partially offset by one-time expenditures of approximately \$0.6 million associated with a change in methodology of calculating commissions for sales personnel and \$0.3 million for the settlement of a dispute with a former shareholder.

Provision for Bad Debts. The provision for bad debts increased by \$0.5 million, or 12.9%, from \$4.2 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$4.7 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. The increase in the bad debt provision resulted from a change in eligibility requirements under the new asset securitization program that we implemented in September 2002, which resulted in our retaining a larger amount of receivables that had become ineligible for transfer to the QSPE, as well as an increase in charge-offs associated with our credit insurance and service programs.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased by \$2.7 million, or 36.8%, from \$7.2 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$4.5 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. The decrease was attributable to the following:

- increasing interest rates accounted for an increase of approximately \$0.2 million in our interest expense;
- average outstanding debt decreased from \$49.0 million in the 2003 period to \$39.9 million in the 2004 period, which resulted in an decrease in interest expense of \$0.4 million;
- the expiration of \$80.0 million in our interest rate hedges resulted in a decrease of \$1.1 million over the 2003 period;
- the change in accounting methodology for SFAS 133 as a result of the pay off of all of our variable debt and the change in fair value of the derivative reduced interest expense by approximately \$0.1 million;
- the amount reclassified from "Other comprehensive income" decreased interest expense by \$1.6 million; and
- ineffectiveness of derivative instruments increased interest expense by \$0.3 million.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes increased by \$1.5 million, or 13.3%, from \$11.3 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$12.8 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. The increase in the tax provision was directly related to the increase in pretax profits of \$5.2 million, or 16.4% and was offset by a cash refund from previously over provided income taxes of \$0.4 million. The effective tax rate attributable to continuing operations for the two periods was consistent at 35.5%. However, the one-time adjustment of the tax rate for the year ended January 31, 2004 for the cash refund of previously over provided

income taxes resulted in a decrease in the current year effective tax rate to 34.6%. Assuming that there are no changes in federal or state tax laws, it is expected that the effective tax rate for fiscal 2005 will return to approximately 35.5%.

Net Income. As a result of the above factors, net income increased by \$3.7 million, or 18.1%, from \$20.6 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$24.3 million for the year ended January 31, 2004.

Twelve Months Ended January 31, 2002 (Unaudited), Compared to Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2003

Revenues. Total revenues increased by \$67.5 million, or 17.8%, from \$378.5 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$446.0 million for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2003. The increase was attributable to increases of \$53.9 million, or 16.1%, in net sales and \$13.5 million, or 31.4%, in finance charges and other revenues. Of the \$53.9 million increase in net sales, \$46.9 million was generated by 11 retail locations that were not open for 12 consecutive months in both periods, \$3.9 million resulted from a same store sales increase of 1.3%, \$1.1 million resulted from increases in delivery and installation revenue and \$2.0 million resulted from increases in other revenue sources. The increase in net sales was due to increased unit volume of sales of approximately \$69.4 million offset by deteriorating price points of approximately \$15.5 million. The addition of a second line of computers, increased sales of our bedding and lawn and garden product lines and a significant increase in projection television sales accounted for much of the increased unit volume of sales and the same store sales increase.

We believe that at least a portion of the relatively small same store sales increase during fiscal 2003 resulted from our opening of four new stores in the San Antonio/Austin market. While net sales in this market increased by 40.2% during fiscal 2003 compared to the 2002 period, same store sales for the five existing stores in this market that were open for a full twelve months in both periods decreased by 1.1%. We have experienced a temporary negative impact on our existing stores when we have opened new stores in existing markets. Other factors that contributed to the relatively small increase in same store sales in fiscal 2003 included higher than normal sales in the 2002 period due to the increase in product sales during the three months following the September 11th attacks and the major replacement of products following major flooding in the Houston market in June 2001. These events that increased sales in fiscal 2002 did not occur in fiscal 2003. We do, however, believe that many of our stores may be reaching maturity levels as it relates to market penetration and that same store sales will likely increase at much smaller percentages than in the past. While we believe that we have positioned many of our stores to have a potential for additional same store sales increases, we do expect that much of our future sales increases will come from new stores rather than from substantial increases in sales from existing stores

The following table presents the makeup of net sales by product category in each period, including service maintenance agreement commissions and service revenues, expressed both in dollar amounts and as a percentage of total net sales.

	Twelve Mon January 3		Year Ended January 31, 2003		
	Amount	%	Amount	%	Percent Increase
		(de	ollars in thousands)		
Major home appliances	\$ 127,781	38.1%	\$ 148,878	38.2%	16.5%
Consumer electronics	131,716	39.3	151,196	38.8	14.8
Home office equipment	24,816	7.4	25,617	6.6	3.2(1)
Delivery and installation	5,510	1.6	6,369	1.6	15.6
Other (including lawn and garden and bedding)	8,521	2.5	15,819	4.1	85.6(2)
Total product sales	298,344	88.9	347,879	89.3	16.6
Service maintenance agreement commissions	22,282	6.6	22,961	5.9	3.0(3)
Service revenues	14,922	4.5	18,656	4.8	25.0
Total net sales	\$ 335,548	100.0%	\$ 389,496	100.0%	16.1%
	,		,		

⁽¹⁾ The relatively small increase in home office equipment was due to deteriorating price points which are expected to continue in this category.

⁽²⁾ The increase in other sales was due primarily to the increasing maturity of the lawn and garden and bedding product lines that were added in early fiscal year 2000. Increases are expected to continue, but at a decreasing rate.

⁽³⁾ The relatively small increase in service maintenance agreement commissions reflects the impact of deteriorating price points of consumer electronic items and increased consumer confidence in newer products, which has resulted in fewer customers purchasing extended service maintenance agreements.

Revenue from finance charges and other increased approximately \$13.5 million, or 31.4%, from \$43.0 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$56.5 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2003. This increase in revenue resulted from increases in net insurance commissions and other of \$3.5 million, or 26.8%. Income from sales of receivables to the QSPE increased approximately \$10.0 million, or 33.5%, resulting primarily from a 15.9% growth in the credit portfolio and lower credit losses as a percentage of the average outstanding portfolio balance.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold, including warehousing and occupancy cost, increased by \$43.8 million, or 18.8%, from \$233.2 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$277.0 million for fiscal 2003. This percentage increase was generally consistent with the 16.1% net sales increase, although cost of goods sold continued to increase as a percentage of net product sales from 77.0% in the 2002 period to 78.3% in fiscal 2003. The overall increase in cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sales was primarily caused by the continued deterioration of retail price points for consumer electronics products and sales of relatively lower margin lawn and garden and computer products growing at a more rapid rate than higher margin home appliance products. Labor and other cost increases added \$1.0 million to cost of goods sold in fiscal 2003, and the expansion of our San Antonio distribution facility added approximately \$0.5 million to occupancy costs in fiscal 2003.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$18.8 million, or 17.5%, from \$106.9 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$125.7 million for fiscal 2003. This percentage increase was generally consistent with the 17.8% increase in total revenues.

Provision for Bad Debts. The provision for bad debts increased by \$1.7 million, or 71.4%, from \$2.4 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$4.1 million for fiscal 2003. The increase in the bad debt provision resulted from a change in eligibility requirements under the new asset securitization program that we implemented in September 2002, which resulted in our retaining a larger amount of receivables that had become ineligible for transfer to the QSPE, as well as an increase in charge-offs associated with our credit insurance and service programs.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by \$2.4 million, or 49.1%, from \$4.9 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$7.3 million for fiscal 2003. The increase was attributable to the following:

- the change in fair value of derivatives increased interest expense by \$0.4 million;
- Declining interest rates caused the net payments on our interest rate hedges to increase by \$2.1 million;
- imperfect matching of interest rate hedges and hedged obligations resulted in an decrease in interest expense of \$0.4 million;
- the amount reclassified from "Other comprehensive income" increased interest expense by \$0.3 million;
- average outstanding debt increased from \$33.5 million in the 2002 period to \$49.0 million in fiscal 2003, which resulted in an increase in interest expense of \$1.0 million; and
- · declining interest rates accounted for a decrease of approximately \$1.0 million in our interest expense.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes increased by \$0.2 million, or 1.9%, from \$11.1 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$11.3 million for fiscal 2003. The increase was directly related to the increase in pretax profits of \$0.8 million, or 2.7%, and a decrease in state taxes paid. The effective tax rates for the two periods, which were 35.8% in the 2002 period and 35.5% in fiscal 2003, were relatively consistent, except for the decrease in the state tax rate.

Net Income. As a result of the above factors, net income increased by \$0.6 million, or 3.2%, from \$20.0 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, to \$20.6 million for fiscal 2003.

Six Months Ended January 31, 2001 (Unaudited), Compared to Six Month Fiscal Period Ended January 31, 2002

Revenues. Total revenues increased by \$51.6 million, or 33.2%, from \$155.3 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$206.9 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002. The increase was attributable to increases of \$43.2 million, or 31.0%, in net sales and \$8.4 million, or 53.2%, in finance charges

and other revenues. Of the \$43.2 million increase in net sales, \$22.4 million resulted from a same store sales increase of 16.7%, \$20.3 million was generated by eight retail locations that were not open for six consecutive months in both periods, \$0.4 million resulted from changes in delivery and installation revenue and \$0.1 million resulted from increases in other revenue sources. As in fiscal 2003, the increase in net sales was due to increased unit volume of sales of approximately \$42.2 million offset by deteriorating price points of approximately \$2.9 million as we continued to experience relatively short product life cycles and significant price erosion in the consumer electronics category. The addition of a second line of computers, increased sales of our bedding and lawn and garden products lines and a significant increase in projection television sales, combined with the higher than normal sales during the three months following the September 11th attacks and the major replacement of products following major flooding in the Houston market in June 2001, accounted for much of the increase in same store sales.

The following table presents the makeup of net sales by product category in each period, including service maintenance agreement commissions and service revenues, expressed both in dollar amounts and as a percentage of total net sales.

		Six Months Ended January 31,					
	2001	2001					
	Amount	%	Amount	%	Percent Increase		
		(de	ollars in thousands)				
Major home appliances	\$ 49,669	35.6%	\$ 63,907	35.0%	28.7%		
Consumer electronics	56,110	40.2	75,355	41.2	34.3		
Home office equipment	13,617	9.8	16,523	9.0	21.3		
Delivery and installation	2,860	2.1	3,238	1.8	13.2		
Other (including lawn and garden and bedding)	1,296	0.9	3,762	2.1	190.3(1)		
Total product sales	123,552	88.6	162,785	89.1	31.8		
Service maintenance agreement commissions	9,118	6.5	11,922	6.5	30.8		
Service revenues	6,781	4.9	7,904	4.4	16.6		
Total net sales	\$139,451	100.0%	\$182,611	100.0%	31.0%		

(1) The increase in other sales was due primarily to the increasing maturity of the lawn and garden and bedding product lines that were added in early fiscal 2000. Future increases in these product lines are expected to continue, but at a decreasing rate.

Revenue from finance charges and other increased by \$8.4 million, or 53.2%, from \$15.8 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$24.3 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002. This increase in revenue resulted primarily from an increase in income from sales of receivables to the QSPE of \$6.7 million, or 66.0%, due primarily to a 21.9% increase in the credit portfolio and lower interest costs of securities issued by the QSPE. An increase in net insurance commissions and other totaling \$1.7 million, or 32.7%, also contributed to the increase in revenues from finance charges and other.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold, including warehousing and occupancy cost, increased by \$31.6 million, or 33.0%, from \$95.9 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$127.5 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002. The 33.0% increase was generally consistent with the 31.0% net sales increase, although costs of retail products sold continued to increase as a percentage of net product sales from 76.4% in the 2001 period to 77.1% in the 2002 period. Sales of relatively lower margin consumer electronics and computer products continuing to grow at a more rapid rate than sales of relatively higher margin home appliance products was the primary reason for the increase in cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sales. Labor and other cost increases added \$0.8 million to cost of goods sold in the 2002 period, and the expansion of our San Antonio distribution facility added approximately \$0.2 million to occupancy costs in the 2002 period.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$14.7 million, or 33.6%, from \$43.9 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$58.6 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002. This increase was generally consistent with the 33.2% increase in total revenues.

Provision for Bad Debts. The provision for bad debts increased by \$0.7 million, or 109.2%, from \$0.6 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$1.3 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002. The increase in bad debts resulted from an increase in the charge-offs associated with our credit insurance and service programs.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by \$1.1 million, or 59.8%, from \$1.8 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$2.9 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002. The increase was attributable to the following:

- declining interest rates caused the net payments on our interest rate hedges to increase by \$1.9 million over the 2001 period;
- declining interest rates accounted for a reduction of approximately \$0.5 million in interest expense; and
- our adoption of SFAS No. 133 resulted in a decrease in interest expense of \$0.3 million due to the recognition of the impact of imperfect matching of interest rate hedges and hedged obligations.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes increased by \$1.3 million, or 28.3%, from \$4.6 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$5.9 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002. The increase was directly related to the increase in pretax profits of \$3.5 million, or 26.4%. The effective tax rates for the two periods were 35.5% in the 2001 period and 36.0% in the 2002 period.

Net Income from Continuing Operations. As a result in the above factors, net income from continuing operations increased by \$2.2 million, or 25.4%, from \$8.4 million for the six months ended January 31, 2001, to \$10.6 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002.

Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2000, Compared to Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2001

Revenues. Total revenues increased by \$50.3 million, or 18.2%, from \$277.0 million in fiscal 2000 to \$327.3 million in fiscal 2001. The increase was attributable to increases of \$43.3 million, or 17.4%, in net sales and \$7.0 million, or 25.2%, in finance charges and other revenues. Of the \$43.3 million increase in net sales, \$22.7 million resulted from a same store sales increase of 10.3%, \$21.8 million was generated by eight retail locations that were not open for 12 consecutive months in both fiscal years and \$0.9 million resulted from increases in delivery and installation revenue, offset by decreases of \$2.1 in other revenue sources. As in prior periods, the increase in net sales was due to increased unit volume of sales of approximately \$39.2 million and approximately \$1.3 million from higher per unit price points. Increased sales of the lawn and garden product line that we added in the second quarter of fiscal 2000 and increases in bedding sales and other new product categories accounted for much of the increase in same store sales.

The following table presents the makeup of net sales by product category in each fiscal year, including service maintenance agreement commissions and service revenues, expressed both in dollar amounts and as a percentage of total net sales.

		Years Ended July 31,				
	2000	2001	2001			
	Amount	%	Amount	%	(Decrease)	
		(d	lollars in thousands			
Major home appliances	\$101,657	40.8%	\$114,769	39.3%	12.9%	
Consumer electronics	83,883	33.7	107,548	36.8	28.2	
Home office equipment	24,236	9.8	22,572	7.7	(6.9)(1)	
Delivery and installation	4,284	1.7	5,271	1.8	23.0	
Other (including lawn and garden and bedding)	5,282	2.1	9,687	3.3	83.4(2)	
Total product sales	\$219,342	88.1	\$259,847	88.9	18.5	
Service maintenance agreement commissions	16,314	6.5	18,742	6.4	14.9	
Service revenues	13,421	5.4	13,799	4.7	2.8	
Total net sales	\$249,077	100.0%	\$292,388	100.0%	17.4%	

⁽¹⁾ The decrease was the result of a planned slow down in computer sales as we begin to replace the Compaq brand with Hewlett Packard products.

⁽²⁾ The increase in other sales was due primarily to the addition of the lawn and garden and bedding product lines that were introduced in early fiscal 2000. Future increases are expected to grow substantially in the next period and then increase at a decreasing rate thereafter.

Revenue from finance charges and other increased by approximately \$7.0 million, or 25.2%, from \$27.9 million in fiscal 2000, to \$34.9 million in fiscal 2001. This increase in revenue resulted primarily from increases in net insurance commissions and other of \$3.4 million, or 39.5%. Income from sales of receivables to the QSPE

increased by \$3.6 million, or 18.6%, resulting primarily from an 18.0% growth in the credit portfolio and a reduction in interest costs of securities issued by the OSPE.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold, including warehousing and occupancy cost, increased by \$32.6 million, or 19.2%, from \$169.4 million in fiscal 2000 to \$202.0 million in fiscal 2001. The 19.2% increase was generally consistent with the 17.4% increase in net sales, although cost of retail products sold increased from 75.9% of net product sales in fiscal 2000 to 76.5% in fiscal 2001. We attribute this margin decrease to a shift in product mix from relatively higher margin home appliances to relatively lower margin consumer electronics. The increase in warehousing and occupancy cost of \$0.7 million, or 24.8%, resulted from the opening of our new warehouse facilities in Houston and San Antonio in August 2000 and June 2001, respectively.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$13.9 million, or 17.7%, from \$78.3 million in fiscal 2000 to \$92.2 million in fiscal 2001. The increase was generally consistent with the 18.2% increase in total revenues.

Provision for Bad Debts. The provision for bad debts increased by \$0.9 million, or 118.6%, from \$0.8 million in fiscal 2000 to \$1.7 million in fiscal 2001. The increase resulted from an increase in the charge-offs associated with our insurance and service programs.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased by \$1.0 million, or 22.4%, from \$4.8 million in fiscal 2000 to \$3.8 million in fiscal 2001. The decrease was attributable to the following:

- average outstanding debt decreased from \$57.1 million in fiscal 2000 to \$33.3 million in fiscal 2001. This decrease in debt resulted in a decrease of approximately \$1.9 million in interest expense. Debt decreases were attributable primarily to a decrease of available credit under our asset-backed securitization program and increased cash flow generated from operations;
- declining interest rates accounted for approximately \$0.1 million of the decrease;
- our adoption of SFAS 133 resulted in an increase in interest expense of \$0.5 million due to recognition of the effects of imperfect matching of hedges and hedged obligations; and
- declining interest rates caused the net payments on our interest rate hedges to increase by \$0.5 million over the prior fiscal year.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes increased by \$0.9 million, or 9.9%, from \$9.0 million in fiscal 2000 to \$9.9 million in fiscal 2001. The increase was directly related to the increase in pretax profits of \$4.0 million, or 17.1%. However, we experienced an effective tax rate decrease from 38.1% in fiscal 2000 to 35.8% in fiscal 2001 as a result of an organizational restructuring in fiscal 2000 that reduced our Texas franchise taxes.

Net Income from Continuing Operations. As a result of the above factors, net income from continuing operations increased by \$3.1 million, or 21.5%, from \$14.6 million in fiscal 2000 to \$17.7 million in fiscal 2001.

Impact of Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has a material effect on our net sales or results of operations.

Seasonality and Quarterly Results of Operations

Our business is seasonal, with a higher portion of sales and operating profit realized during the quarters that end January 31 and July 31. These fiscal quarters reflect the holiday selling season and the impact that hot weather has on our sales of air conditioners and lawn and garden equipment. Over the four quarters of fiscal 2004, gross margins were 35.2%, 37.1%, 37.2% and 36.1%. During the same period, operating margins were 7.8%, 8.7%, 7.7% and 9.1%. A portion of the fluctuation in gross margins and operating margins is due to planned infrastructure cost additions, such as increased warehouse space and larger stores, additional personnel and systems required to absorb the significant increase in revenues that we have experienced over the last several years.

Additionally, quarterly results may fluctuate materially depending on factors such as the following:

• timing of new product introductions, new store openings and store relocations;

- · sales contributed by new stores;
- · increases or decreases in comparable store sales;
- · adverse weather conditions;
- · shifts in the timing of certain holidays or promotions; and
- · changes in our merchandise mix.

Results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for a full year.

The following table sets forth certain unaudited quarterly statement of operations information, excluding discontinued operations, for the eight quarters ended January 31, 2004. The unaudited quarterly information has been prepared on a consistent basis and includes all normal recurring adjustments that management considers necessary for a fair presentation of the information shown.

Years Ended January 31,

		20	03			20	04	
		Quarter	· Ended			Quarter	Ended	
	Apr. 30	Jul. 31	Oct. 31	Jan. 31	Apr. 30	Jul. 31	Oct. 31	Jan. 31
Total revenues	\$ 105,774	\$112,290	\$ 107,322	\$120,586	\$ 120,791	\$117,126	\$117,390	\$ 144,004
Percent of total revenues	23.7%	25.1%	24.1%	27.1%	24.2%	23.5%	23.5%	28.8%
Gross profit	\$ 40,475	\$ 43,210	\$ 41,617	\$ 43,714	\$ 42,555	\$ 43,438	\$ 43,664	\$ 51,940
Gross profit as a percentage of total revenues	38.3%	38.5%	38.8%	36.3%	35.2%	37.1%	37.2%	36.1%
Operating profit	\$ 8,874	\$ 9,900	\$ 9,162	\$ 11,244	\$ 9,433	\$ 10,218	\$ 9,044	\$ 13,072
Operating profit as a percentage of total revenues	8.4%	8.8%	8.5%	9.3%	7.8%	8.7%	7.7%	9.1%
Net income available for common stockholder	\$ 4,241	\$ 4,776	\$ 3,844	\$ 5,606	\$ 4,499	\$ 4,936	\$ 4,737	\$ 8,214
Net income available for common stockholder as a percent of revenue	4.0%		3.6%	4.6%	3.7%	4.2%	4.0%	5.7%
Outstanding shares:								
Basic	16,747	16,720	16,720	16,720	16,720	16,720	16,720	20,744
Diluted	16,747	16,720	16,720	16,720	16,720	16,720	16,720	21,353
Earnings per share:								
Basic	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.29	\$ 0.23	\$ 0.34	\$ 0.27	\$ 0.30	\$ 0.28	\$ 0.40
Diluted	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.29	\$ 0.23	\$ 0.34	\$ 0.27	\$ 0.30	\$ 0.28	\$ 0.38

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations through a combination of cash flow generated from operations and external borrowings, including primarily bank debt and asset-backed securitization facilities. In December

2003, we completed our IPO and received net proceeds of the offering of approximately \$58.4 million. Of this amount, approximately \$51.3 million was used to reduce existing balance sheet debt and the balance was placed into short-term investments and is available to meet our general working capital requirements. At January 31, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of \$11.9 million and we generally expect that cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet our capital expenditure requirements.

During the year ended January 31, 2004, net cash provided by operating activities increased \$13.5 million from negative \$1.1 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to positive \$12.4 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. This increase in cash flow from operating activities resulted primarily from improvements in operations, increases in depreciation and amortization expense, and net positive changes in working capital. As we further develop our growth, we expect to continue to generate positive cash flow from operating activities.

We offer promotional credit programs to certain customers which provide for "same as cash" interest free periods of varying terms, generally three, six or 12 months. These promotional accounts are eligible for securitization up to the limits provided for in our securitization agreements. This limit is currently 18.0% of eligible securitized receivables. The percentage of eligible securitized receivables represented by promotional receivables was 10.1%, 12.0%, 14.4%, and 15.0% as of July 31, 2001, January 31, 2002, January 31, 2003 and January 31, 2004, respectively. If we exceed this 20.0% limit, we would be required to use some of our other capital resources to fund the unpaid balance of the receivables for the promotional period. The weighted average promotional period was 11.1 and 10.9 months for promotional receivables outstanding as of January 31, 2003 and January 31, 2004, respectively. The weighted average remaining term on those same promotional receivables was 7.5 and 8.0 months, respectively. While overall these promotional receivables have a much shorter average weighted life than non-promotional receivables, we receive less income as a result of a reduced net interest margin used in the calculation of the gain on the sale of the receivables. As a result, the existence of the interest free extended payment terms negatively impacts the gains or losses as compared to the other receivables.

Net cash used by investing activities decreased \$6.9 million, or 46.1%, from \$15.1 million for the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$8.1 million for the year ended January 31, 2004. The decrease in cash used resulted primarily from a reduction in purchases of property and equipment and an increase in proceeds from sale of property. The decrease in cash expended for property and equipment resulted from fewer new store openings and relatively fewer stores that were updated in the 2004 period. Based on current plans, we do expect to increase the expenditure for property and equipment in the next fiscal year as we open at least four to six new stores and a distribution center in the Dallas/Fort Worth market. We estimate that capital expenditures for the 2005 fiscal year will approximate \$12 million to \$15 million.

Net cash generated by financing activities decreased \$11.9 million from \$17.1 million net cash provided during the year ended January 31, 2003, to \$5.2 million net cash provided during the year ended January 31, 2004. This change resulted primarily from the net proceeds of our IPO of \$58.4 million that was offset by the effect of repayments of additional borrowings under our bank credit facility in 2004, an increase in the payment of promissory notes, and redemption of preferred stock. As part of our IPO, all interest bearing debt was retired with the use of the proceeds generated from the infusion of new capital. Such funds generated will not be available in 2005; nor are we expected to incur significant net borrowings and repayments under our bank credit facilities.

In September 2002, we increased our bank credit facility from \$35.0 million to \$55.0 million to provide our ongoing working capital needs. In April 2003, we amended and restated our bank credit facility in anticipation of our IPO. At that time, the facility consisted of a term loan and a revolving credit facility. The revolver portion of the credit facility provides for up to \$40.0 million subject to a borrowing base equal to the lesser of: (1) 85% of eligible receivables plus 65% of eligible inventory plus the lesser of 40% of deferred sales proceeds and eligible unpurchased receivables; and (2) \$15.0 million. As part of the use of the IPO proceeds, the term loan was retired completely and the revolver portion of the bank credit facility was reduced to a balance of zero. The balance of the revolver at January 31, 2004 remained at zero. Loans under the revolving credit facility may, at our option, bear interest at either the alternate base rate, which is the greater of the administrative agent's prime rate or the federal funds rate, or the adjusted LIBOR rate for the applicable interest period, in each case plus an applicable interest margin. The interest margin is between 0.50% and 1.75% for base rate loans and between 1.50% and 2.75% for LIBOR alternative rate loans. The applicable interest margin was 1.00% for base rate loans and 2.00% for LIBOR alternative rate loans as of January 31, 2004. The interest margin will vary depending on our debt coverage ratio. We make a practice of entering into underlying debt agreements that support the revolver portion of the credit facility for periods of three months or less.

Approximately \$10.0 million of the additional amount available under our increased bank credit facility was used to implement our new asset-backed securitization program, including funding of transaction expenses and required additional credit enhancements. In addition, the portion of each future receivable advanced in cash under the securitization program has been reduced from approximately 85% to approximately 80% of the face amount of the receivable. Since this results in an increase in the retained balance of accounts receivable, we must finance this increase through sources other than the securitization program itself. We have used, and will continue to require, a portion of our increased bank credit facility, IPO proceeds or cash generated from operations to finance this increased level of accounts receivable.

We are subject to certain affirmative and negative covenants contained in our bank credit facility, including covenants that restrict, subject to specified exceptions, the incurrence of additional indebtedness and other obligations and the granting of additional liens; mergers, acquisitions, investments, and disposition of assets; dividends; stock redemptions; capital expenditures; loan guarantees; and use of proceeds of the credit facility. The exceptions provided in the credit facility could allow for transactions to occur outside of the credit facility limitations as follows: additional indebtedness and other obligations totaling approximately \$55.0 million; granting of additional liens totaling approximately \$32.5 million; capital expenditures of \$17.5 million for any twelve month period; and \$15.0 million in loan guarantees for the acquisition and development of sites with leases in favor of us. There are also covenants relating to compliance with certain laws, payments of taxes, maintenance of insurance and financial reporting. In addition, the credit facility requires us to maintain, as of each fiscal quarter end, a minimum net worth equal to \$55.0 million plus 75% of net income after May 1, 2002, and 100% of any capital stock issued; as of each fiscal quarter end for the twelve month period ending on that date, a total leverage ratio of no greater than 2.75 to 1.00; a debt service coverage ratio no less than 2.0 to 1.00; and as of each fiscal quarter, an average receivables charge-off ratio no greater than .05 to 1.00, an average receivables extension ratio no greater than .04 to 1.00, and an average receivables delinquency ratio no greater than .12 to 1.00. We have been and are in compliance with such positive and negative covenants.

Events of default under the credit facility include, subject to grace periods and notice provisions in certain circumstances, non-payment of principal, interest or fees; violation of covenants; material inaccuracy of any representation or warranty; default under or acceleration of certain other indebtedness; bankruptcy and insolvency events; certain judgments and other liabilities; certain environmental claims; and a change of control. If an event of default occurs, the lenders under the credit facility are entitled to take various actions, including accelerating amounts due under the credit facility and requiring that all such amounts be immediately paid in full. Our obligations under the credit facility are secured by all of our and our subsidiaries' assets, excluding customer receivables owned by the QSPE.

Based on current operating plans, we believe that cash provided by operating activities, available borrowings under our credit facility, access to the unfunded portion of the variable funding portion of our asset- backed securitization program and our current net investments will be sufficient to fund our operations, store expansion and updating activities and capital expenditure programs through at least January 31, 2005. However, there are several factors that could decrease cash provided by operating activities, including:

- reduced demand for our products;
- more stringent vendor terms on our inventory purchases;
- increases in product cost that we may not be able to pass on to our customers;
- reductions in product pricing due to competitor promotional activities;
- increases in the retained portion of our receivables portfolio under our current asset-backed securitization program as a result of changes in performance;
- inability to expand our capacity for financing our receivables portfolio under new or replacement asset-backed securitization programs or a requirement that we retain a higher percentage of the credit portfolio under such programs;
- increases in the program costs (interest and administrative fees relative to our receivables portfolio) associated with the funding of our receivables; and
- increases in personnel costs required for us to stay competitive in our markets.

If cash provided by operating activities during this period is less than we expect or if we need additional financing for future growth, we may need to increase our revolving credit facility or to undertake additional equity or debt offerings. We may not be able to obtain such financing on favorable terms, if at all.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

Since we extend credit in connection with a large portion of our retail, service maintenance and credit insurance sales, we created a QSPE, which we also refer to as the issuer, to purchase customer receivables from us and to issue asset-backed and variable funding notes to third parties to finance its purchase of these receivables. We transfer receivables, consisting of retail installment contracts and revolving accounts extended to our customers, to the issuer in exchange for cash, subordinated securities and the right to receive the interest spread between the assets held by the QSPE and the notes issued to third parties. The subordinated securities issued to us accrue interest based on prime rates and are subordinate to these third party notes.

At January 31, 2004, the issuer has issued two series of notes: a Series A variable funding note with a capacity of \$250.0 million purchased by Three Pillars Funding Corporation and three classes of Series B notes in the aggregate amount of \$200.0 million. The Series A variable funding note is rated A1/P1 by Standard and Poors and Moody's, respectively. These ratings represent the highest rating ("highest quality") of each rating agency's three short-term investment grade ratings, except that Standard and Poors could add a "+" which would convert the "highest quality" rating to an "extremely strong" rating. The Series B notes consist of: Class A notes in the amount \$120.0 million, rated Aaa by Moody's representing the highest rating ("highest quality") of the four long term investment grade ratings provided by this organization; Class B notes in the amount \$57.8 million, rated A2 by Moody's representing the middle of the third rating ("upper medium quality") of the four long term investment grade ratings provided by this organization; and Class C notes in the amount of \$22.2 million, rated Baa2/BBB by Moody's and Fitch, respectively. These ratings represent the lowest of the four investment grades ("medium quality") provided by these organizations. The ratings disclosed are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities. These ratings may be changed or withdrawn at any time without notice, and each of the ratings should be evaluated independently of any other rating. We are not aware of a rating by any other rating organization and are not aware of any changes in these ratings. Private institutional investors, primarily insurance companies, purchased the Series B notes. The issuer used the proceeds of these issuances, along with funds provided by us from borrowings under our bank credit facility, to initially purchase eligible accounts receivable from us and to fund a required \$8.0 million restricted cash account for credit enhancement of the Series B notes.

We are entitled to a monthly servicing fee, so long as we act as servicer, in an amount equal to .0025% multiplied by the average aggregate principal amount of receivables plus the amount of average aggregate defaulted receivables. The issuer records revenues equal to the interest charged to the customer on the receivables less losses, the cost of funds, the program administration fees paid to either Three Pillars Funding Corporation or the Series B note holders, and the servicing fee. SunTrust Capital Markets, Inc. serves as an administrative agent for Three Pillars Funding Corporation in connection with the Series A variable funding note.

The Series A variable funding note permits the issuer to borrow funds up to \$250.0 million to purchase receivables from us, thereby functioning as a credit facility to accumulate receivables. When borrowings under the Series A variable funding note approach \$250.0 million, the issuer intends to refinance the receivables by issuing a new series of notes and to use the proceeds to pay down the outstanding balance of the Series A variable funding note, so that the credit facility will once again become available to accumulate new receivables. As of January 31, 2004, borrowings under the Series A variable funding note were \$71.0 million.

The Series A variable funding note matures on September 1, 2007. The issuer will repay the Series A variable funding note and any refinancing note with amounts received from customers pursuant to receivables that we transferred to the issuer. Beginning on October 20, 2006, the issuer will begin to make scheduled principal payments on the Series B notes with amounts received from customers pursuant to receivables that we transferred to the issuer. To the extent that the issuer has not otherwise repaid the Series B notes, they mature on September 1, 2010.

The Series A variable funding note bears interest at the commercial paper rate plus an applicable margin in most instances of 0.8%, and the Series B notes have fixed rates of 4.469%, 5.769% and 8.180% for the Class A, B and C notes, respectively. In addition, there is an annual administrative fee and a non-use fee associated with the unused portion of the committed facility.

We are not directly liable to the lenders under the asset-backed securitization facility. If the issuer is unable to repay the Series A and Series B notes due to its inability to collect the transferred customer accounts, the issuer could not pay the subordinated notes it has issued to us in partial payment for transferred customer accounts, and the Series B lenders could claim the balance in the restricted cash account. We are also contingently liable under a \$10.0 million letter of credit that secures our performance of our obligations or services under the servicing agreement as it relates to the transferred assets that are part of the asset-backed securitization facility.

The issuer is subject to certain affirmative and negative covenants contained in the transaction documents governing the Series A variable funding note and the Series B notes, including covenants that restrict, subject to specified exceptions: the incurrence of additional indebtedness and other obligations and the granting of additional liens; mergers, acquisitions, investments and disposition of assets; and the use of proceeds of the program. The issuer also makes covenants relating to compliance with certain laws, payment of taxes, maintenance of its separate legal entity, preservation of its existence, protection of collateral and financial reporting. In addition, the program requires the issuer to maintain a minimum net worth.

Events of default under the Series A variable funding note and the Series B notes, subject to grace periods and notice provisions in some circumstances, include, among others: failure of the issuer to pay principal, interest or fees; violation by the issuer of any of its covenants or agreements; inaccuracy of any representation or warranty made by the issuer; certain servicer defaults; failure of the trustee to have a valid and perfected first priority security interest in the collateral; default under or acceleration of certain other indebtedness; bankruptcy and insolvency events; failure to maintain certain loss ratios and portfolio yield; change of control provisions and certain events pertaining to us. The issuer's obligations under the program are secured by the receivables and proceeds.

Both the bank credit facility and the asset-backed securitization program are significant factors relative to our ongoing liquidity and our ability to meet the cash needs associated with the growth of our business. Our inability to use either of these programs because of a failure to comply with their covenants would adversely affect our continued growth. Funding of current and future receivables under the asset-backed securitization program can be adversely affected if we exceed certain predetermined levels of extensions, write-offs, bankruptcies or other ineligible receivable amounts. If the funding under the asset-backed securitization program were reduced or terminated, we would have to draw down our bank credit facility more quickly than we have estimated.

A summary of the total receivables managed under the credit portfolio, including quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses and components of securitized assets, is presented in note 2 to our consolidated financial statements.

In an attempt to acquire retail lease space at more competitive rates, in 2001 we asked some members of our management team and the SGI Affiliates to form Specialized Realty Development Services, LP, or SRDS, a real estate development company that would acquire land and develop projects for our purposes. In order to encourage these members of management and the SGI Affiliates to invest in SRDS, we entered into an arrangement with SouthTrust Bank, NA under which we guaranteed the construction debt of SRDS during the construction of these projects. SRDS is owned by certain members of our management, including Thomas J. Frank, Sr., William C. Nylin, Jr., C. William Frank, David R. Atnip, David W. Trahan, Timothy L. Frank, Robert B. Lee, Jr., Larry W. Coker and Walter M. Broussard, and certain of the SGI Affiliates. While we do not own SRDS, we have applied the provisions Of FASB Interpretation No. 46, *Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, or FIN 46, and have consolidated SRDS's balance sheet with ours as of January 31, 2004. As of January 31, 2004, five of the six projects SRDS is responsible for developing were operational and the amount of outstanding indebtedness we had guaranteed under this arrangement had been reduced to zero. We do not have any current obligation to guarantee additional SRDS construction debt, and we do not intend to guarantee any SRDS construction debt in the future.

We have leased each completed project from SRDS as a retail store location for an initial period of 15 years. At the time each lease was executed, our guarantee for the construction portion of the real estate loan was released and the related assets and guaranty obligations were removed from our financial statements. The lease then served as collateral for the loan. SRDS charges us annual lease rates of approximately 11.5% of the total cost of each project, which averages approximately \$350,000 per year. In addition, we are responsible for the payment of all property taxes, insurance and common area maintenance expenses, which average approximately \$70,000 per project per year. We are required to fund all leasehold improvements made to the

buildings. Based on independent appraisals performed on each project, we believe that the terms of the leases that have replaced the guaranty obligations are generally more favorable than we could obtain in an arms' length transaction. SRDS pays us an annual management fee of \$5,000 for administrative services that we provide to SRDS.

Certain Transactions

Since 1996, we have leased a retail store location of approximately 19,150 square feet in Houston, Texas from Thomas J. Frank, Sr., our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. The lease provides for base monthly rental payments of \$17,235 plus escrows for taxes, insurance and common area maintenance expenses of \$6,200 monthly through January 31, 2011. We also have an option to renew the lease for two additional five-year terms. Mr. Frank received total payments under this lease of \$291,000 in fiscal 2001, \$145,000 in the six month fiscal period ended January 31, 2002, \$281,000 in fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004. Based on market lease rates for comparable retail space in the area, we believe that the terms of this lease are no less favorable to us than we could have obtained in an arms' length transaction at the date of the lease commencement.

Contractual Obligations

The following table presents a summary of all of our contractual obligations as of January 31, 2004, classified by payments due per period.

			Payments due by period				
	Total	Less Than 1 Year	1-3 Years	3-5 Years	After 5 Years		
			(in thousands)	<u> </u>			
Long term debt, including SRDS (1)	\$ 14,512	\$ 338	\$ 648	\$ 674	\$12,852		
Operating leases:							
Real estate	82,711	9,505	19,027	17,598	36,581		
Equipment	6,736	2,465	2,635	906	730		
Total contractual cash obligations	\$103,959	\$ 12,308	\$22,310	\$19,178	\$50,163		

⁽¹⁾ In connection with the implementation of FIN 46, we have excluded the lease payments due to SRDS and have included scheduled debt repayments.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Interest rates under our bank credit facility are variable and are determined, at our option, as the base rate, which is the greater of prime rate or federal funds rate plus 0.50% plus the base rate margin, which ranges from 0.50% to 1.75%, or LIBOR plus the LIBOR margin, which ranges from 1.50% to 2.75%. Accordingly, changes in the prime rate, the federal funds rate or LIBOR, which are affected by changes in interest rates generally, will affect the interest rate on, and therefore our costs under, our bank credit facility. We are also exposed to interest rate risk associated with our interest only strip and the subordinated securities we receive from our sales of receivables to the QSPE. See footnote 2 to the audited financial statements for disclosures related to the sensitivity of the current fair value of the interest only strip and the subordinated securities to 10% and 20% adverse changes in the factors that affect these assets, including interest rates.

We held interest rate swaps and collars with notional amounts totaling \$100.0 million and \$20.0 million as of January 31, 2003 and January 31, 2004, respectively, with terms extending through April 2005. Those instruments were held for the purpose of hedging against variable interest rate risk, primarily related to cash flows from our interest-only strip as well as our variable rate debt. In fiscal 2003, hedge accounting was discontinued for \$80.0 million of those swaps, and in fiscal 2004, hedge accounting was discontinued for the remaining \$20.0 million. At the time the cash flow hedge designation was discontinued, we began to recognize changes in the fair value of the swaps as interest expense and to amortize the accumulated other comprehensive loss related to those derivates as interest expense over the period that the forecasted transactions effected the statement of operations. During fiscal 2003, we reclassified \$1.8 million of losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive losses into the statement of operations and recorded \$(1.5) million into the statement of operations because of the change in fair value of the swaps. During fiscal 2004, we reclassified \$0.2 million of losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive losses into the statement of operations because of the change in fair value of the swaps.

Prior to discontinuing these hedges, each period we recorded hedge ineffectiveness, which arose from differences between the interest rate stated in the derivative instrument and the interest rate upon which the underlying hedged transaction is based. Ineffectiveness totaled \$0.5 million for the year ended July 31, 2001, \$0.1 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002, \$0.5 million for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, and \$0.1 million and \$0.4 million for the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively, and is reflected in "Interest Expense" in our consolidated statement of operations.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	rage
Report of Independent Auditors	49
Consolidated Balance Sheets	50
Consolidated Statements of Operations	51
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity	52
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows	54
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	55

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Conn's, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Conn's, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 31, 2003, and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year ended July 31, 2001, the six months ended January 31, 2002, and the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(b). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Conn's, Inc. and subsidiaries at January 31, 2003 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended July 31, 2001, the six months ended January 31, 2002, and the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective February 1, 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and, effective January 31, 2004, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities".

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Houston, Texas April 2, 2004

Conn's, Inc. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands, except share data)

	Janua	uary 31,	
	2003	2004	
Assets			
Current Assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 2,448	\$ 12,942	
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$117 and \$1,919, respectively	12,617	16,802	
Interest in securitized assets	60,803	77,138	
Inventories D. C. L.	46,118	53,742	
Deferred income taxes	4,221	4,148	
Prepaid expenses and other assets	3,473	3,031	
Total current assets	129,680	167,803	
Debt issuance and other costs	543	250	
Non-current deferred income tax asset	4,785	3,945	
Property and equipment	2.746	10.700	
Land	3,746	10,708	
Buildings	6,189	13,108	
Equipment and fixtures	6,704	7,574	
Transportation equipment	2,687	2,845	
Leasehold improvements	42,219	48,504	
Subtotal	61,545	82,739	
Less accumulated depreciation	(23,279)	(27,914)	
	20.266		
Total property and equipment, net	38,266	54,825	
Goodwill, net	7,917	7,917	
Other assets, net	607	20	
Total assets	\$ 181,798	\$ 234,760	
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities			
Notes payable	\$ 7,500	\$ —	
Current portion of long-term debt	7,928	338	
Accounts payable	24,501	26,412	
Accrued expenses	8,601	12,800	
Income taxes payable	949	3,528	
Deferred income taxes	449	313	
Deferred revenue	6,873	6,225	
Fair value of derivatives	2,895	1,121	
Total current liabilities	59,696	50,737	
Long-term debt	36,564	14,174	
Non-current deferred tax liability	250	477	
Deferred gain on sale of property	977	811	
Fair value of derivatives	1,642	202	
Minority interest	_	1,769	
Stockholders' equity			
Preferred stock (\$0.01 par value, 300,000 shares authorized; 174,648 issued and outstanding			
at January 31, 2003; none issued and outstanding at January 31, 2004), 10% cumulative			
dividend	15,226		
Common stock (\$0.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized; 17,175,480 and 23,101,772 shares issued and 16,719,990 and 23,101,772 shares outstanding at January 31, 2003 and			
2004, respectively)	172	231	
Accumulated other comprehensive income	2,751	5,032	
Additional paid in capital		82,656	
Retained earnings	68,131	78,671	
Treasury stock at cost (455,490 shares of common stock at January 31, 2003)	(3,611)		
Total stockholders' equity	82,669	166,590	
Tradal Bala 1966 and advalded down?	ф 101 700	024760	
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$ 181,798	\$ 234,760	

Conn's, Inc. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (in thousands, except earnings per share)

	Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended		ars Ended inuary 31,	
	July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	January 31, 2002	2003	2004	
_			(unaudited)			
Revenues		* • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			# 200 510	
Product sales	\$ 259,847	\$ 162,785	\$ 298,344	\$ 347,879	\$ 398,618	
Service maintenance agreement commissions (net)	18,742	11,921	22,282	22,961	24,035	
Service revenues	13,799	7,905	14,922	18,656	18,265	
Total net sales	292,388	182,611	335,548	389,496	440,918	
Finance charges and other	34,869	24,285	42,977	56,477	58,392	
Total revenues	327,257	206,896	378,525	445,973	499,310	
Cost and expenses						
Cost of goods sold, including warehousing and occupancy costs	198,840	125,536	229,625	272,559	313,637	
Cost of service parts sold, including warehousing and occupancy						
cost	3,123	2,007	3,601	4,397	4,075	
Selling, general and administrative expense	92,194	58,630	106,949	125,712	135,174	
Provision for bad debts	1,734	1,286	2,406	4,125	4,657	
Total cost and expenses	295,891	187,459	342,581	406,793	457,543	
Operating income	31,366	19,437	35,944	39,180	41,767	
Interest expense	3,754	2,940	4,855	7,237	4,577	
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes	27,612	16,497	31,089	31,943	37,190	
Provision for income taxes						
Current	(11,549)	(6,750)	(12,840)	(13,207)	(12,980)	
Deferred	1,670	806	1,710	1,865	130	
Total provision for income taxes	(9,879)	(5,944)	(11,130)	(11,342)	(12,850)	
Income from continuing operations	17,733	10,553	19,959	20,601	24,340	
Discontinued operations						
Income (loss) from discontinued operation, net	(157)	_	_	_	_	
Loss on disposal of discontinued operation, net	(389)		(389)			
Net income	17,187	10,553	19,570	20,601	24,340	
Less preferred dividends	(2,173)	(1,025)	(1,939)	(2,133)	(1,954)	
Net income available for common stockholders	\$ 15,014	\$ 9,528	\$ 17,631	\$ 18,468	\$ 22,386	
Earnings per share	ф. 22 -	ф 2 т с	ф. 102	ф	Φ. 125	
Basic	\$ 0.87	\$ 0.56	\$ 1.03	\$ 1.10	\$ 1.26	
Diluted	\$ 0.87	\$ 0.55	\$ 1.01	\$ 1.10	\$ 1.22	
Average common shares outstanding	1= 4.60	1=00=	15.000	16		
Basic	17,169	17,025	17,060	16,724	17,726	
Diluted	17,194	17,327	17,383	16,724	18,335	

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Conn's, Inc. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (in thousands, except share repurchase and redemption amounts)

		eferred stock		imon ock	Accum. Other Compre-			Treas	ury Stock	
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	hensive Income	Paid in Capital	Retained Earnings	Shares	Amount	Total
Balance July 31, 2000 Net income	213	\$18,520	17,305	\$ 172	\$ 2,748	<u>\$</u> —	\$20,835 17,187	113	(\$ 491)	\$41,785 17,187
Cumulative effect adjustment to adopt FAS 133, net of tax of										
\$551 Unrealized loss on					1,023					1,023
derivative instruments, (net of tax of \$1,972), net of reclassification adjustments of \$279										
(net of \$156 tax) Adjustment of fair value					(3,661)					(3,661)
of interest in securitized assets, (net of tax of \$1,967), net of reclassification adjustments of \$2,555										
(net of \$1,423 tax)					3,530					3,530
Total comprehensive income										18,079
Preferred stock redeemed \$87.18 per share plus accrued dividends	(36)	(3,120)					(977)			(4,097)
Common stock forfeited Treasury stock purchased			(66)							
\$9.41 per share								108	(888)	(888)
Balance July 31, 2001 Net income	177	15,400	17,239	172	3,640	_	37,045 10,553	221	(1,379)	54,879 10,553
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments, (net of tax of \$200), net of reclassification adjustments of \$957										
(net of \$539 tax) Adjustment of fair value					(356)					(356)
of interest in securitized assets, (net of tax of \$33), net of reclassification										
adjustments of \$4,267 (net of \$2,404 tax)					59					59
Total comprehensive income										10,256
Common stock forfeited Preferred stock redeemed			(64)							(1)
\$87.18 per share plus accrued dividends	(2)	(174)					(68)			(242)
Treasury stock purchased \$9.41 per share								216	(2,032)	(2,032)
Balance January 31, 2002	175	15,226	17,175	172	3,343	_ 	47,530	437	(3,411)	62,860

(continued on next page)

Conn's, Inc. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (in thousands, except share repurchase and redemption amounts)

	Prefe	rred Stock		nmon ock	Accum. Other Compre-			Treasury Stock		
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	hensive Income	Paid in Capital	Retained Earnings	Shares	Amount	Total
Balance January 31, 2002	175	15,226	17,175	172	3,343	_	47,530	437	(3,411)	62,860
Net income Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, (net of tax benefit of \$389), net of reclassification adjustments of \$1,164							20,601			20,601
(net of tax of \$641) Adjustment of fair value of securitized assets, (net of tax of \$722), net of reclassification adjustments of \$3,126					691					691
(net of tax of \$1,721) Total comprehensive					(1,283)					(1,283)
income										20,009
Treasury stock purchased \$10.83 per share								18	(200)	(200)
Balance January 31, 2003	175	15,226	17,175	172	2,751		68,131	455	(3,611)	82,669
Preferred dividends declared		10,194					(10,194)			_
Preferred stock redeemed: For cash	(10)	(1,454)								(1,454)
For common stock	(165)	(23,966)	1,712	17		23,949				(1,434)
Additional common stock issued at IPO	(111)	(==,, ==)	4,623	46		58,311				58,357
Exercise of options			47	1		396				397
Cancellation of treasury stock Net income			(455)	(5)			(3,606)	(455)	3,611	
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments (net of tax of \$794), net of reclassification adjustments of \$158					1.411		24,340			24,340
(net of tax of \$ 89) Adjustment of fair value of securitized assets (net of tax of \$489), net of reclassification adjustments of \$ 239 (net of tax of \$ 134)					1,411 870					1,411 870
Total comprehensive income										26,621
Balance January 31, 2004	<u> </u>	\$ —	23,102	\$ 231	\$ 5,032	\$82,656	\$ 78,671		\$ —	\$ 166,590

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Conn's, Inc. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities Net meome S 17,187 S 10,553 S 19,570 S 20,601 S 2		Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended	Years Ended	January 31,
Cash Inoversion operating activities Not income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:					2003	2004
Not income S	Cash flaws from anarating activities			(unaudited)		
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net eash provided by (sued in) operating autivities: Depreciation		\$ 17.187	\$ 10.553	\$ 19.570	\$ 20.601	\$ 24,340
Depreciation		4,	4,	4,	4,	4 - 1,2 11
Depreciation						
Provision for had debts	Depreciation	4,464	2,110	3,883	5,411	6,654
Accretion from interests in securitized assets (6,474) (5,628) (6,025) (15,548) (1 Provision for deferred income taxes (1,670) (806) (1,710) (1865) Loss (gain) from sale of property and equipment (1,756) (206) (2,008) (15) Losses (gains) from derivatives (507) 70 (119) 361 (15) Change in operating assets and inhibities: Accounts receivable (1,767) (2,181) (1,199) (541) (4,226) (10,838) (10,199) (1,199)		836	440	614	374	592
Provision for deferred income taxes	Provision for bad debts	1,734	1,286	2,406	4,125	4,657
Loss (gain) from sale of property and equipment 1,756 206 2,008 (15)	Accretion from interests in securitized assets	(6,474)	(5,628)	(6,025)		(12,529
Losses (gains) from derivatives 507 70 119 361 Change in operating assets and liabilities:						(130
Change in operating asserts and liabilities: Accounts receivable 3,506 (2,915) 5,481 (7,321) (1,688) Inventory (179) (541) (4,226) (10,838) (10,838) Prepaid expenses and other assets 201 (1,199) 253 (852) Prepaid expenses and other assets 219,141 597 (2,295) 780 Accounts payable (1,767) (2,181) 7,010 2,293 Account axes payable 880 86 813 281 Income laxes payable 880 86 813 281 Deferred service contract revenue 1,700 475 2,302 1,457 Other current liabilities (318) (44 0,951) (395) Other current liabilities (318) (44 0,951) (395) Other current liabilities (318) (44 0,951) (395) Other current liabilities (20,149 2,549 27,922 (1,151) 1 Cash flows from investing activities (4,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070) (1,570)				· ·		64
Accounts receivable 3,506 (2,915) 5,481 (7,321) (1 Inventory (179) (541) (4,226) (10,338) (10,338) (10,338) (11,199) (11		507	70	119	361	(1,010
Inventory		2.506	(2.015)	5 401	(5.221)	(11.410
Prepaid expenses and other assets						(11,412)
Accounts payable (1,767) (2,181) 7,010 2,293 Accrued expenses (1,914) 597 (2,995) 780 Income taxes payable 580 86 183 281 Deferred service contract revenue 1,700 475 2,302 1,457 (395) 780 Other current liabilities (318) (4) (951) (395) (395) Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 20,149 2,549 27,922 (1,151) 1 Cash flows from investing activities Purchase of property and equipment (14,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070) (7 Proceeds from sale of property 2,005 437 2,396 14 (15,070)	•					(7,624)
Accrued expenses (1,914) 597 (2,995) 780 Income taxes payable 580 86 183 281 Deferred service contract revenue 1,700 475 2,302 1,457 Other current liabilities (318) (4) (951) (395) Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities Purchase of property and equipment (14,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070) (15,070) Proceeds from sale of property 2,005 437 2,396 14 Net cash used in investing activities Purchase of property and equipment (14,833) (10,511) (15,547) (15,070) (15,070) (15,070) Net cash used in investing activities Net cash used in investing activities Net proceeds from the sale of common stock 5 Net proceeds from the sale of common stock (4,098) (242) (4,293) -						900
Income taxes payable 580 86 183 281 Deferred service contract revenue 1,700 475 2,302 1,457 Other current liabilities (318) (4) (951) (395) Other current liabilities (318) (4) (4) (51) (15,547) (15,070) Other current liabilities (14,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070) (15,070) (15,070) Purchase of property (2,005 437 2,396 14 (15,070) (15,0	• •				·	1,910
Deferred service contract revenue						4,200 2,429
Other current liabilities	1 2					(648)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 20,149 2,549 27,922 (1,151) 1						(040)
Cash flows from investing activities Purchase of property and equipment (14,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070)	Other current madmittes	(318)		(751)	(373)	
Cash flows from investing activities Purchase of property and equipment (14,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070)	Nat cash provided by (used in) operating activities	20 149	2 5/10	27 922	(1.151)	12,393
Purchase of property and equipment (14,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070) (15,070) Proceeds from sale of property 2,005 437 2,396 14 Net cash used in investing activities (12,828) (10,114) (13,151) (15,056) (15,0	rect cash provided by (used in) operating activities				(1,131)	12,373
Purchase of property and equipment (14,833) (10,551) (15,547) (15,070) (15,070) Proceeds from sale of property 2,005 437 2,396 14 Net cash used in investing activities (12,828) (10,114) (13,151) (15,056) (15,0	Cash flows from investing activities					
Proceeds from sale of property 2,005 437 2,396 14		(14 833)	(10.551)	(15 547)	(15.070)	(9,401)
Net cash used in investing activities						1,291
Cash flows from financing activities Set proceeds from the sale of common stock Set proceeds from exercise of stock options Set proceeds from exercise of stock options Redemption of preferred stock (4,098) (242) (4,293) — (0,000)	Trocodus from suite or property					
Net proceeds from the sale of common stock Net proceeds from exercise of stock options	Net cash used in investing activities	(12,828)	(10,114)	(13,151)	(15,056)	(8,110)
Net proceeds from the sale of common stock Net proceeds from exercise of stock options	Cash flows from financing activities					
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options						58,357
Redemption of preferred stock						397
Purchase of treasury stock (888) (2,033) (2,559) (200) Net borrowings (payments) under line of credit (6,873 10,432 69 12,029 (3) Payments on term note (5,000) (2,500) (5,000) (2,500) (1,000) Borrowing on term note — — — — — 10,000 Increase in debt issuance costs — (334) — (492) Payment of promissory notes (1,281) (625) (1,453) (1,753		(4 098)	(242)	(4 293)	<u> </u>	(1,454)
Net borrowings (payments) under line of credit			\ /		(200)	
Payments on term note (5,000) (2,500) (5,000) (2,500) (1,500) (2,500) (1,500) (2,500) (1,500) (2,500) (1,500) (2,500) (1,500) (2,500) (1,500)						(31,999)
Borrowing on term note						(15,000)
Increase in debt issuance costs		_	_			
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities		_	(334)	_		(213)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (4,394) 4,698 (13,236) 17,084	Payment of promissory notes	(1,281)		(1,453)		(4,901)
Impact on cash of consolidation of SRDS						
Net change in cash 2,927 (2,867) 1,535 877 1 Cash and cash equivalents Beginning of the year 1,511 4,438 36 1,571 1,571 End of the year \$ 4,438 \$ 1,571 \$ 1,571 \$ 2,448 \$ 1 Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information Cash interest paid \$ 3,385 \$ 2,731 \$ 4,054 \$ 6,812 \$ Cash interest received from interests in securitized assets 11,911 7,790 16,936 14,750 1 Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity	Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(4,394)	4,698	(13,236)	17,084	5,187
Net change in cash 2,927 (2,867) 1,535 877 1 Cash and cash equivalents Beginning of the year 1,511 4,438 36 1,571 End of the year \$ 4,438 \$ 1,571 \$ 1,571 \$ 2,448 \$ 1 Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information Cash interest paid \$ 3,385 \$ 2,731 \$ 4,054 \$ 6,812 \$ Cash interest received from interests in securitized assets 11,911 7,790 16,936 14,750 1 Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity	Impact on cash of consolidation of SRDS					1,024
Cash and cash equivalents Beginning of the year 1,511 4,438 36 1,571 End of the year \$ 4,438 \$ 1,571 \$ 1,571 \$ 2,448 \$ 1 Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information Cash interest paid \$ 3,385 \$ 2,731 \$ 4,054 \$ 6,812 \$ Cash interest received from interests in securitized assets 11,911 7,790 16,936 14,750 1 Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity	-		(2.0(5)			
Beginning of the year 1,511 4,438 36 1,571		2,927	(2,867)	1,535	877	10,494
End of the year \$ 4,438 \$ 1,571 \$ 1,571 \$ 2,448 \$ 1 Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information Cash interest paid \$ 3,385 \$ 2,731 \$ 4,054 \$ 6,812 \$ Cash interest received from interests in securitized assets 11,911 7,790 16,936 14,750 1 Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity		1 511	1 138	36	1 571	2,448
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information Cash interest paid \$ 3,385 \$ 2,731 \$ 4,054 \$ 6,812 \$ Cash interest received from interests in securitized assets 11,911 7,790 16,936 14,750 1 Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity	beginning of the year					
Cash interest paid \$ 3,385 \$ 2,731 \$ 4,054 \$ 6,812 \$ Cash interest received from interests in securitized assets 11,911 7,790 16,936 14,750 1 Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity	End of the year	\$ 4,438	\$ 1,571	\$ 1,571	\$ 2,448	\$ 12,942
Cash interest received from interests in securitized assets 11,911 7,790 16,936 14,750 1 Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity						
Cash income taxes paid, net of refunds 10,658 7,047 11,560 13,114 1 Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity						
Cash proceeds from new securitizations 157,921 98,892 179,578 203,154 21 Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity						12,801
Cash flows from servicing fees 6,191 3,597 6,800 9,426 1 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity						10,162
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity		·			•	213,741
		6,191	3,597	6,800	9,426	11,963
L'ustomer receivables evolunged for interests in						
	Customer receivables exchanged for interests in	04.104	10.550	26.555	21.002	
						41,123
Amounts reinvested in interests in securitized assets (29,970) (15,192) (29,842) (43,495) (5	Amounts reinvested in interests in securitized assets	(29,970)	(15,192)	(29,842)	(43,495)	(56,478)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

January 31, 2004

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Conn's, Inc. and its subsidiaries, limited liability companies and limited partnerships, all of which are wholly-owned (the "Company"). All material inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company enters into securitization transactions to sell its retail installment and revolving customer receivables. These securitization transactions are accounted for as sales in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities because the Company has relinquished control of the receivables. Additionally, the Company has transferred such receivables to a qualifying special purpose entity ("QSPE"). Accordingly, neither the transferred receivables nor the QSPE are included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company. See Note 2 for further discussion.

Implementation of FIN 46. In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, An Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, or FIN 46. FIN 46 requires the consolidation of entities in which a company absorbs a majority of the entity's expected losses, receives a majority of the entity's expected residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Currently, entities are generally consolidated by a company when it has a controlling financial interest through ownership of a majority voting interest in the entity. The Company has evaluated the effects of the issuance of FIN 46 on the accounting for its leases with Specialized Realty Development Services, LP ("SRDS") and has determined that it is appropriate to consolidate the balance sheet of SRDS with the Company as of January 31, 2004. The Company's balance sheet was changed as follows to effect the consolidation: cash was increased by \$1.0 million, net property was increased by \$15.2 million, debt was increased by \$14.4 million and minority interest of \$1.8 million was recorded. The operations of SRDS will be consolidated with those of the Company beginning on February 1, 2004.

Business Activities. The Company, through its retail stores, provides products and services to its customer base in six primary market areas, including southern Louisiana, southeast Texas, Houston, Corpus Christi, San Antonio/Austin, and Dallas, Texas. Products and services offered through retail sales outlets include major home appliances, consumer electronics, home office equipment, lawn and garden products, bedding, service maintenance agreements, installment and revolving credit account services, and various credit insurance products. These activities are supported through an extensive service, warehouse and distribution system. For the reasons discussed below, the aggregation of operating companies represent one reportable segment under SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the operating results of the Company's single reportable segment. The Company's retail stores bear the "Conn's" name, and deliver the same products and services to a common customer group. The Company's customers generally are individuals rather than commercial accounts. All of the retail stores follow the same procedures and methods in managing their operations. The Company's management evaluates performance and allocates resources based on the operating results of the retail stores and considers the credit programs, service contracts and distribution system to be an integral part of the Company's retail operations.

Fiscal Year. Effective August 1, 2001, the Company changed its fiscal year end from July 31 to January 31.

Stock Split/Dividend. On July 25, 2002, the Company's board of directors approved a 70-for-1 stock split, effected as a dividend of the Company's common stock. As a result, shareholders received 69 shares for each share held as of July 25, 2002. The par value of the Company's common stock remained \$0.01. All related financial information presented, including per share data, reflects the effects of the stock dividend.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

Vendor Programs. The Company receives funds from vendors for price protection, product and volume rebates, marketing, training and promotion programs which are recorded on the accrual basis as a reduction to the related product cost or advertising expense according to the nature of the program. The Company accrues rebates based on the satisfaction of terms of the program and sales of qualifying products even though funds may not be received until the end of a quarter or year. If the programs are related to product purchases, which would include price protection, product and volume rebates, the allowances, credits, or payments are recorded as a reduction of product cost and are reflected in cost of goods sold. If the programs relate to marketing, training and promotions that are not for reimbursement of specific incremental costs, the allowances, credits or payments are reflected as a reduction of cost of goods sold. If the programs are related to promotion or marketing of the product, the allowances, credits, or payments for reimbursement of specific, incremental, identifiable, advertising-related costs incurred in selling the vendors' products are recorded as a reduction of advertising expense and are reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses in the period in which the expense is incurred. The credits/payments received from vendors that were netted against advertising expense for the year ended July 31, 2001, for the six months ended January 31, 2002, in the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, and in the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004 were \$1.7 million, \$2.0 million (unaudited), \$2.1 million and \$2.8 million, respectively.

Earnings Per Share. In accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share, the Company calculates basic earnings per share by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share include the dilutive effects of any stock options granted calculated under the treasury method; such shares were 25,060, 302,850, 322,770 (unaudited), and 609,071, respectively, for the year ended July 31, 2001, the six months ended January 31, 2002, the twelve months ended January 31, 2002 and the year ended January 31, 2004. The Company has excluded approximately 1,241,390 options to acquire shares of common stock for the year ended January 31, 2003, the only period that there would be an anti-dilutive effect, in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would have been anti-dilutive. Since the preferred dividend obligations of the Company are cumulative, they have been reported on the consolidated statements of operations even though they were not declared and paid until the year ended January 31, 2004.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Inventories. Inventories include only finished goods or parts and are valued at the lower of cost (moving weighted average method) or market.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost and include the land and buildings of SRDS as of January 31, 2004. Costs associated with major additions and betterments that increase the value or extend the lives of assets are capitalized and depreciated. Normal repairs and maintenance that do not materially improve or extend the lives of the respective assets are charged to operating expenses as incurred. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, or in the case or leasehold improvements, over the shorter of the estimated useful lives or the remaining lives of the respective leases. The estimated lives used to compute depreciation expense are summarized as follows:

Buildings30 yearsEquipment and fixtures3 – 5 yearsTransportation equipment3 yearsLeasehold improvements5 – 10 years

Property and equipment are evaluated for impairment at the retail store level. An impairment evaluation is performed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets might not be recoverable. The Company does not perform a periodic assessment of assets for impairment in the absence of such information or indicators. The most likely condition that would necessitate an assessment would be an adverse change in historical and estimated future results of a retail store's performance. For property and equipment to be held and used, the Company recognizes an impairment loss only if its carrying amount is not recoverable through its undiscounted cash flows and measures the impairment loss based on the difference between the carrying amount and fair value.

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

All gains and losses on sale of assets are included in "Selling, general and administrative expense" in the consolidated statements of operations.

	Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended		Ended ary 31,
(in thousands)	July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	January 31, 2002	2003	2004
			(unaudited)		
Gain (loss) on sale of assets	(1,756)	(206)	(2,008)	15	(64)

Receivable Sales and Interests in Securitized Receivables. The Company enters into securitization transactions to sell customer retail installment and revolving receivable accounts. In these transactions, the Company retains interest-only strips and subordinated securities, all of which are retained interests in the securitized receivables. Gain or loss on sale of the receivables depends in part on the previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer, allocated between the assets sold and the retained interests based on their relative fair value at the date of transfer. Retained interests are carried at fair value on the Company's balance sheet as available-for-sale securities in accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Impairment and interest income are recognized in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets. The Company recognized impairment losses of \$0.1 million in each of the years ended July 31, 2000 and 2001 which arose because of unfavorable changes in non-interest rate valuation assumptions. Servicing fees are recognized monthly as they are earned. Gains on sales of receivables, impairment on retained interests, interest income from retained interests and servicing fees are included in "Finance charges and other" in the consolidated statement of operations.

The Company estimates fair value of its retained interest in both the initial securitization and thereafter based on the present value of future expected cash flows using management's best estimates of the key assumptions—credit losses, prepayment rates, forward yield curves, and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents primarily the excess of purchase price over the fair market value of net assets acquired. Effective February 1, 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets whereby goodwill is no longer amortized, but rather the Company assesses the potential future impairment of goodwill on an annual basis, or at any other time when impairment indicators exist. As part of the adoption of SFAS 142, the Company completed a transitional goodwill impairment test and determined that goodwill was not impaired. Additionally, the Company performs its annual impairment test in November. In fiscal 2003 and 2004, the Company has concluded that goodwill is not impaired.

The table below provides a reconciliation of reported net income and earnings per share to adjusted net income and earnings per share as if the non-amortization provisions of SFAS 142 had been applied beginning August 1, 1999 (in thousands except per share data).

	Year Ended July 31, 2001	Six Months Ended January 31, 2002	Twelve Months Ended January 31, 2002
			(unaudited)
Reported net income available for common stockholders	\$15,014	\$ 9,528	\$ 17,631
Add back goodwill amortization, net of tax effect	449	220	449
Pro forma net income	\$15,463	\$ 9,748	\$ 18,080
Pro forma earnings per share:			
Basic	\$ 0.90	\$ 0.57	\$ 1.06
Diluted	\$ 0.90	\$ 0.56	\$ 1.02

Income Taxes. The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues from the sale of retail products are recognized at the time the product is delivered to the customer. Such revenues are recognized net of any adjustments for sales incentive offers such as discounts, coupons, rebates or other free products or services. The Company sells service maintenance agreements and credit insurance contracts on behalf of unrelated third parties. For contracts where the third parties are the obligor on the contract, commissions are recognized in revenues at the time of sale, and in the case of retrospective commissions, at the time that they are earned. Where the Company sells service maintenance agreements in which it is deemed to be the obligor on the contract at the time of sale, net of payment to third parties, revenue is recognized ratably, on a straight-line basis, over the term of the service maintenance agreement. These Company obligor service maintenance agreements are renewal contracts which provide our customers protection against product repair costs arising after the expiration of the manufacturer's warranty and the third party obligor contracts. These agreements typically range from 12 months to 36 months. These agreements are separate units of accounting under EITF No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. The amounts of service maintenance agreement revenue deferred at January 31, 2003 and 2004 were \$3.8 million and \$3.9 million, respectively, and are included in "Deferred revenue" in the accompanying balance sheets. Under renewal contracts, the Company records the cost of the service work performed as products are repaired.

The classification of the amounts included as "Finance charges and other" is summarized as follows (in thousands):

	Year Ended	Six Months Year Ended Janu Ended January Janu		Ended ary 31,	
	July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	31, 2002	2003	2004
			(unaudited)		
Securitization income:					
Servicing fees received	\$ 6,191	\$ 3,597	\$ 6,800	\$ 9,426	\$11,963
Accretion of gains on sale of receivables	6,474	5,628	6,025	15,548	12,529
Impairment recorded on retained interests	(54)	_	_	_	_
Interest earned on retained interests	11,911	7,790	16,936	14,750	12,801
	24,522	17,015	29,761	39,724	37,293
Interest Income from receivables not sold	_	_	_	243	888
Insurance commissions	10,727	6,106	11,641	15,706	16,498
Other	(380)	1,164	1,575	804	3,713
					
	\$34,869	\$ 24,285	\$ 42,977	\$56,477	\$58,392
Gains on sale of receivables	\$10,309	\$ 8,219	\$ 11,512	\$13,886	\$13,510

Securitization income includes accretion of gains on sales of receivables, impairment of retained interests, interest income from retained interests and servicing fees. The impairments above relate solely to the interest-only strip component of retained interests. Gains on sale of receivables will be recognized as securitization income as accretion over the lives of the related receivables. See "Receivable Sales and Interest in Securitized Receivables" for revenue recognition policies related to these components.

The Company offers interest free promotional programs for three to twelve month contracts and has recorded interest income only on those contracts that are not expected to make payments within the time period specified to satisfy the promotional requirements. Other than these promotional programs, the Company does not extend credit at interest rates other than market rates.

The following table sets forth the sales made under the interest free program (in thousands):

Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended		uary 31,	
July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	January 31, 2002	2003	2004	
		(unaudited)			
\$28,700	\$ 21,400	\$ 35,400	\$49,240	\$48,368	
	July 31, 2001	Year Ended July 31, 2001 Second Second January 31, 2002	Year Ended Ended Ended July 31, January 31, January 31, 2001 2002 2002 (unaudited)	Year Ended Ended July 31, January 31, January 31, 2001 2002 2002 2003	

Vasua Endad

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

These sales are recognized consistent with the above stated policy, which is at the time the product is delivered to the customer. Considering the short-term nature of these interest free programs, these sales are recorded at full value and are not discounted. Receivables arising out of the Company's interest-free programs are securitized with other qualifying customer receivables.

The Company classifies amounts billed to customers relating to shipping and handling as revenues. Costs of \$12.3 million, \$7.7 million, \$14.0 million (unaudited), \$15.1 million and \$15.1 million associated with shipping and handling revenues are included in "Selling, general and administrative expense" for the year ended July 31, 2001, for the six months ended January 31, 2002, the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, and for the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and notes and accounts payable approximate their carrying amounts because of the short maturity of these instruments. The fair value of the Company's interests in securitized receivables is determined by estimating the present value of future expected cash flows using management's best estimates of the key assumptions, including credit losses, prepayment rates, forward yield curves and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved. See Note 2. The fair value of the Company's long-term debt and interest rate swap agreements is estimated based on the current rates available to the Company for instruments with similar terms and maturities. See Note 3.

Derivatives are recognized as assets and liabilities measured at fair value in "Fair value of derivatives" in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The Company uses derivatives to hedge variable interest rate risk related to the cash flows from its interest only strip and its variable rate debt.

We held interest rate swaps and collars with notional amounts totaling \$100.0 million and \$20 million as of January 31, 2003 and January 31, 2004, respectively, with terms extending through April 2005. Those instruments were held for the purpose of hedging against variable interest rate risk, primarily related to cash flows from our interest-only strip as well as our variable rate debt. In fiscal 2003, hedge accounting was discontinued for \$80 million of those swaps, and in fiscal 2004, hedge accounting was discontinued for the remaining \$20 million. At the time the cash flow hedge designation was discontinued, we began to recognize changes in the fair value of the swaps as interest expense and to amortize the accumulated other comprehensive loss related to those derivates as interest expense over the period that the forecasted transactions effected the statement of operations. During fiscal 2003, we reclassified \$1.8 million of losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive losses into the statement of operations and recorded \$(1.5) million into the statement of operations because of the change in fair value of the swaps. During fiscal 2004, we reclassified \$0.2 million of losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive losses into the statement of operations because of the change in fair value of the swaps.

Prior to discontinuing these hedges, each period we recorded hedge ineffectiveness, which arose from differences between the interest rate stated in the derivative instrument and the interest rate upon which the underlying hedged transaction is based. Ineffectiveness totaled \$0.5 million for the year ended July 31, 2001, \$0.1 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002, and \$0.1 million and \$0.4 million for the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004, and is reflected in "Interest Expense" in our consolidated statement of operations. For the year ending January 31, 2005, the Company will reclassify approximately \$1.1 million of unrealized derivative losses into earnings.

Stock-Based Compensation. As permitted by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, the Company follows the intrinsic value method of accounting for stock-based compensation issued to employees, as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. Since all options have been issued at or above fair value, no compensation expense has been recognized under the Company's stock option plan for any of the periods presented.

If compensation expense for the Company's stock option plan had been recognized using the fair value method of accounting under SFAS 123, net income from continuing operations and earnings per share would have decreased by the percentages reflected in the tables. The fair value of the options issued was estimated

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

on the date of grant, with the weighted average assumptions used for grants as reflected in the table. For post-IPO grants the Company has used the Black-Scholes model to determine fair value. Prior to the IPO, the fair value of the options issued was estimated using the minimum valuation option-pricing model. The following presents the impact to earnings per share if the Company had adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 (dollars in thousands except per share data):

	Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended	Years E January	
	July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	January 31, 2002	2003	2004
			(unaudited)		
Net income available for common stockholders as reported	\$15,014	\$ 9,528	\$ 17,631	\$18,468	\$22,386
Stock-based employee compensation cost as reported	_	_	_		
Stock-based compensation, net of tax, that would have been					
reported under SFAS 123	(152)	(150)	(221)	(323)	(439)
					
Pro forma net income	\$14,862	\$ 9,378	\$ 17,410	\$18,145	\$21,947
Earnings per share as reported					
Basic	\$ 0.87	\$ 0.56	\$ 1.03	\$ 1.10	\$ 1.26
Diluted	\$ 0.87	\$ 0.55	\$ 1.01	\$ 1.10	\$ 1.22
Pro forma earnings per share					
Basic	\$ 0.87	\$ 0.55	\$ 1.02	\$ 1.09	\$ 1.24
Diluted	\$ 0.86	\$ 0.54	\$ 1.00	\$ 1.09	\$ 1.20
Percent change:					
Net income	(1.0)%	(1.6)%	(1.3)%	(1.7)%	(2.0)%
Earnings per share	_	(1.8)%	(1.0)%	(0.9)%	(1.6)%
Diluted earnings per share	_	(1.8)%	(1.0)%	(0.9)%	(1.6)%
Assumptions used in pricing model:					
Risk free interest rates	4.8%	4.4%	4.4%	4.3%	4.3%
Expected lives in years	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0
Volatility	_	_	_	_	37.5%

Self insurance. The Company is self-insured for certain losses relating to group health, workers' compensation, automobile, general and product liability claims. The Company has stop loss coverage to limit the exposure arising from these claims. Self-insurance losses for claims filed and claims incurred, but not reported, are accrued based upon the Company's estimates of the aggregate liability for uninsured claims incurred using development factors provided by the Company's insurance administrators.

Advertising Costs. The Company expenses the net cost of advertising, after vendor rebates, as incurred. Advertising expense was \$5.8 million for the year ended July 31, 2001, \$2.4 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002, \$4.9 million (unaudited) for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002 and \$5.2 million and \$4.5 million for the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Expense Classifications. The Company records "Cost of goods sold" as the direct cost of products sold, any related in-bound freight costs, and receiving costs, inspection costs, internal transfer costs, and other costs associated with the operations of its distribution system. In addition, the Company records as "Cost of service parts sold" the direct cost of parts used in its service operation and the related inbound freight costs, purchasing and receiving costs, inspection costs, internal transfer costs, and other costs associated with the warranty and service distribution operation.

The costs associated with the Company's merchandising function, including product purchasing, advertising, sales commissions, and all store occupancy costs are included in "Selling, general and administrative expense." The portion of the merchandising costs that is applicable to the purchasing function was approximately \$1.0 million for the year ended July 31, 2001, approximately \$0.7 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002, approximately \$1.4 million (unaudited) for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, and \$1.3 million and \$1.4 million for the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made in the prior years' financial statements to conform to the current year's presentation.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The balance of accumulated other comprehensive income (net of tax) at January 31, 2003 was comprised of \$5.0 million of unrealized gains on interests in securitized assets less \$2.2 million unrealized losses on derivatives. The balance of accumulated other comprehensive income (net of tax) at January 31, 2004 was comprised of \$5.9 million of unrealized gains on interests in securitized assets less \$0.9 million of unrealized losses on derivatives.

2. Interests in Securitized Receivables

In September 2002, the Company entered into a new agreement to sell customer receivables. As part of this agreement, the Company sells eligible retail installment and revolving receivable accounts to a QSPE that pledges the transferred accounts to a trustee for the benefit of investors, with the amount transferred not to exceed \$450.0 million. The September 2002 agreement replaced an agreement with a financial intermediary that was developed and utilized for the same purpose. The following table summarizes the availability of funding under the Company's securitization program at January 31, 2004 (in thousands):

	Capacity	Utilized	Available
Series A	\$ 250,000	\$ 70,964	\$179,036(1)
Series B – Class A	120,000	120,000	_
Series B – Class B	57,778	57,778	_
Series B – Class C	22,222	22,222	_
Total	\$ 450,000	\$ 270,964	\$179,036

(1) Availability of the Series A program is reduced by \$10.0 million for a letter of credit issued by the Company to provide assurance to the trustee that the monthly funds collected by the Company, as servicer, will be remitted as required under the basic indenture and other related documents.

The September 2002 agreement includes a Series A variable funding note with a capacity of \$250.0 million. The Series A program functions as a credit facility to fund the initial transfer of eligible receivables. When the facility approaches capacity, the QSPE will issue another bond series and use the proceeds to pay down the outstanding balance in the Series A variable funding note; at that point, the facility will once again become available to accumulate the transfer of new receivables or to meet required principal payments on other series as they become due. The Series A program matures September 1, 2007, and the Series B program (which is non-amortizing for the first four years) matures officially September 1, 2010, although it is expected that the principal payments will retire the bonds prior to that date.

The agreement contains certain covenants requiring the maintenance of various financial ratios and receivables performance standards. As part of the new securitization program, the Company arranged for the issuance of a stand-by letter of credit in the amount of \$10.0 million to provide assurance to the trustee on behalf of the bondholders that monthly funds collected by the Company, as servicer, will be remitted as required under the base indenture and other related documents. The letter of credit has a term of one year, and the maximum potential amount of future payments is the face amount of the letter of credit. The Series A program available capacity has been reduced by the amount of the letter of credit, and the letter of credit is callable, at the option of trustee, if the Company, as servicer, fails to meet the required monthly payments to the trustee of the cash collected.

Through its retail sales activities, the Company generates customer retail installment and revolving receivable accounts. The Company enters into securitization transactions to sell these accounts to the QSPE. In these securitizations, the Company retains servicing responsibilities and subordinated interests. The Company receives annual servicing fees approximating 3.9% of the outstanding balance and rights to future cash flows arising after the investors in the securities issued by or on behalf of the QSPE have received from the trustee all contractually required principal and interest amounts. The Company did not record an asset or liability related to any servicing obligations because the servicing fee received was determined to be just adequate to compensate the Company for its servicing responsibilities. The investors and the securitization trustee have no recourse to the Company's other assets for failure of the individual customers of the Company and the QSPE to pay when

$\label{eq:conv} \textit{CONN'S, INC.} \\ \textbf{NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS} - \textbf{continued} \\$

due. The Company's retained interests are subordinate to investors' interests. Their value is subject to credit, prepayment, and interest rate risks on the transferred financial assets. The fair values of the Company's interest in securitized assets were as follows (in thousands):

	Janu	ary 31,
	2003	2004
Interest-only strip	\$11,924	\$13,529
Subordinated securities	48,879	63,609
Total fair value of interests in securitized assets	\$ 60,803	\$77,138

The table below summarizes valuation assumptions used for each period presented:

	Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended	Years Ended January 31,	
	July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	January 31, 2002	2003	2004
			unaudited)		
Prepayment rates					
Primary installment	1.5%	1.5%	1.5%	1.5%	1.5%
Primary revolving	3.0%	3.0%	3.0%	3.0%	3.0%
Secondary installment	1.5%	1.5%	1.5%	1.5%	1.5%
Net interest spread					
Primary installment	12.0%	12.6%	12.6%	13.2%	12.2%
Primary revolving	12.0%	12.6%	12.6%	13.2%	12.2%
Secondary installment	13.8%	14.0%	14.0%	14.3%	13.0%
Expected losses					
Primary installment	3.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.5%
Primary revolving	3.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.5%
Secondary installment	3.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.5%
Projected expense					
Primary installment	3.3%	3.9%	3.9%	3.9%	3.9%
Primary revolving	3.3%	3.9%	3.9%	3.9%	3.9%
Secondary installment	2.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.8%	3.9%
Discount rates					
Primary installment	10.0%	9.0%	9.0%	10.0%	10.0%
Primary revolving	10.0%	9.0%	9.0%	10.0%	10.0%
Secondary installment	14.0%	13.0%	13.0%	14.0%	14.0%
Delinquency and deferral rates					
Primary installment	9.5%	9.2%	9.2%	10.7%	9.4%
Primary revolving	10.3%	10.9%	10.9%	11.3%	11.3%
Secondary installment	9.7%	10.4%	10.4%	13.8%	16.5%

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

At January 31, 2004, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the current fair value of the interests in securitized assets to immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes in those assumptions are as follows (dollars in thousands):

	Pe	rimary ortfolio tallment	Po	rimary ortfolio volving	Pe	condary ortfolio tallment
Fair value of interest in securitized assets	\$	58,796	\$	5,376	\$	12,966
Weighted average life	1.	.6 years	1.	1 years	2.	1 years
Annual prepayment rate assumption		1.5%		3.0%		1.5%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change	\$	333	\$	30	\$	75
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change	\$	678	\$	62	\$	152
Net interest spread assumption		12.2%		12.2%		13.0%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change	\$	1,879	\$	172	\$	590
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change	\$	3,706	\$	339	\$	1,159
Expected losses assumptions		3.5%		3.5%		3.5%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change	\$	639	\$	58	\$	188
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change	\$	1,278	\$	117	\$	376
Projected expense assumption		3.9%		3.9%		3.9%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change	\$	709	\$	65	\$	208
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change	\$	1,418	\$	130	\$	416
Discount rate assumption		10.0%		10.0%		14.0%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change	\$	468	\$	43	\$	184
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change	\$	930	\$	85	\$	364
Delinquency and deferral		9.4%		11.3%		16.5%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change	\$	346	\$	32	\$	141
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change	\$	693	\$	63	\$	283

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10% variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, the effect of the variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the interest-only strip is calculated without changing any other assumption; in realty, changes in one factor may result in changes in another (i.e. increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

The following illustration presents quantitative information about the receivables portfolios managed by the Company (in thousands):

	Rece	Total Principal Amount of Receivables January 31,		Principal Amount 60 Days or More Past Due (1) January 31,	
	2003	2004	2003	2004	
Primary portfolio:					
Installment	\$ 223,027	\$ 269,288	\$11,403	\$12,500	
Revolving	26,383	24,621	1,121	1,000	
				·	
Subtotal	249,410	293,909	12,524	13,500	
Secondary portfolio:					
Installment	54,415	55,561	3,652	4,652	
Total receivables managed	303,825	349,470	16,176	18,152	
Less receivables sold	295,286	339,824	14,531	16,496	
Receivables not sold	8,539	9,646	\$ 1,645	\$ 1,656	
Non-customer receivables	4,078	7,156			
Total accounts receivable, net	\$ 12,617	\$ 16,802			

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

		Average Balances January 31,		Net Credit Losses January 31, (2)	
	2003	2004	2003	2004	
Primary portfolio:					
Installment	\$ 207,301	\$ 246,158			
Revolving	27,381	25,501			
Subtotal	234,682	271,659	\$6,135	\$7,905	
Secondary portfolio:					
Installment	48,165	54,988	1,425	1,499	
Total receivables managed	282,847	326,647	7,560	9,404	
Less receivables sold	278,578	318,322	6,661	6,364	
Receivables not sold	\$ 4,270	\$ 8,325	\$ 899	\$3,040	

- (1) Amounts are based on end of period balances.
- (2) Amounts are based on total receivables outstanding and are expressed net of recoveries.

3. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

Notes payable of \$7.5 million as of January 31, 2003 represent short-term bank or insurance company borrowings under revolving agreements that bear interest at rates tied to the prime rate, in the case of the bank debt, at 3.75% and, in the case of the insurance company, at 7.5%. The agreements, in effect, provide for bank borrowings of up to \$8.0 million at January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively, and insurance company borrowings of \$3.5 million at January 31, 2003. All short-term notes are unsecured. At January 31, 2004, the Company had available \$40 million in unused borrowings under its bank credit facility and \$8 million in borrowings under a short-term bank agreement.

Long-term debt, including debt of the variable interest entity, consists of the following (in thousands except repayment explanations):

	January 31,	
	2003	2004
Revolving note payable to banks, with interest at variable rates (ranging from 3.63% to 5.50% at January 31, 2003)	\$24,500	\$ —
Term note payable to banks, due in quarterly installments of \$1.5 million beginning April 30, 2003 plus interest at variable rates (ranging from 3.6% to 3.7% at January 31, 2003)	15,000	_
Promissory notes to various companies secured by real estate or equipment, due in monthly installments of \$9,501 and \$7,494 plus interest; all loans provide for variable rates (4.12% at January 31, 2003) through July 1, 2003	140	91
Promissory note payable to previous stockholder, due in monthly installments of \$34,600, with interest at 6%	781	_
Subordinated term note payable to previous stockholder, due in monthly installments of \$147,698, with interest at 9%	4,071	
Debt associated with SRDS, with interest at fixed rates (ranging from 5.5% to 6.9% through July 31, 2018)	<u> </u>	14,421
Total long-term debt	44,492	14,512
Less amounts due within one year	(7,928)	(338)
Amounts classified as long-term	\$ 36,564	\$14,174

The Company amended its bank credit facility effective October 31, 2002 to clarify certain definitions of covenant calculations. The new agreement also provides for the repayment of certain debt and the modification of certain covenant requirements in the event of a successful public offering. As part of the use of proceeds of the initial public offering, the Company retired the Term Note and paid down to zero the balance of the Revolver. The Revolver is subject to the Company maintaining various financial and non-financial covenants and restrictions on the amount of total capital expenditures that can be made. In addition, the provisions of the bank credit facility prohibit the payment of dividends on the Company's common stock. As of January 31, 2003 and January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all financial and non-financial covenants.

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

The current agreement provides for a Revolver capacity of \$40 million, with the amount of borrowings limited to 65% of eligible inventory, the lesser of 40% of (a) interest in transferred accounts as defined by the bank credit facility or (b) \$15.0 million, and 85% of eligible accounts receivable. Interest rates are variable and are determined, at the option of the Company, at the Base Rate (the greater of Agent's prime rate or federal funds rate plus 0.50%) plus the Base Rate Margin (which ranges from 0.50% to 1.75%) or LIBOR Rate plus the LIBOR Margin (which ranges from 1.50% to 2.75%). Both the Base Rate Margin and the LIBOR Margin are determined quarterly based on the rolling four-quarter relationship of total debt (including lease obligations) to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and rent. The Company is obligated to pay a non-use fee on a quarterly basis on the non-utilized portion of the Revolver at rates ranging from .375% to .500%. The Revolver is secured by the assets of the Company not otherwise encumbered and a pledge of substantially all of the stock of the Company's present and future subsidiaries.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt as of January 31 in the year indicated are as follows (in thousands), including the debt of SRDS:

	Conn's, Inc	SRDS	Total	
2005	\$ 59	\$ 279	\$ 338	
2006	29	299	328	
2007	3	317	320	
2008	_	337	337	
Thereafter	_	13,189	13,189	
Total	\$ 91	\$14,421	\$14,512	

Based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for bank loans with similar terms and maturities, the fair value of long-term debt at January 31, 2003 and January 31, 2004 approximated the recorded balances.

4. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary timing differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax assets result primarily from differences between financial and tax methods of accounting for income recognition on service contracts and residual interests, capitalization of costs in inventory, and deductions for depreciation and doubtful accounts, and the fair value of derivatives. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows (in thousands):

	Jan	January 31,	
	2003	2004	
Deferred Tax Assets			
Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$ 953	\$ 682	
Deferred revenue	2,848	2,497	
Fair value of derivatives	1,633	467	
Property and equipment	2,799	3,192	
Inventories	773	757	
Accrued vacation and other	_	498	
			
Total deferred tax assets	9,006	8,093	
Deferred Tax Liabilities, primarily receivables and other	(699)	(790)	
Net Deferred Tax Asset	\$ 8,307	\$7,303	

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

Significant components of income taxes for continuing operations were as follows (in thousands):

	Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended	Years Ended January 31,	
	July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	January 31, 2002	2003	2004
			(unaudited)		
Current:					
Federal	\$ 11,287	\$ 6,607	\$ 11,586	\$13,125	\$13,095
State	262	143	274	82	(115)
	11,549	6,750	11,860	13,207	12,980
Deferred:					
Federal	(1,627)	(767)	(670)	(2,152)	(339)
State	(43)	(39)	(60)	287	209
	(1,670)	(806)	(730)	(1,865)	(130)
	\$ 9,879	\$ 5,944	\$ 11,130	\$ 11,342	\$12,850

A reconciliation of the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate for each of the periods presented in the statements of operations is as follows:

	Year Ended July 31, 2001	Six Months Ended January 31, 2002	Twelve Months Ended January 31, 2002	Years Ended January 31,	
				2003	2004
			(unaudited)		
U.S. Federal statutory rate	35.0%	35.0%	35.0%	35.0%	35.0%
State and local income taxes	0.7	0.7	0.7	0.4	0.3
Non-deductible entertainment and other	0.1	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.2
					
Effective tax rate attributable to continuing operations	35.8	36.0	35.8	35.5	35.5
Cash refund from previously over provided taxes	_	_	_	_	(0.9)
Effective tax rate	35.8%	36.0%	35.8%	35.5%	34.6%

5. Insurance Program

In August 2002, the Company renewed substantially all of its insurance coverages and assumed a significant part of the risk exposure for the worker's compensation, general liability, property and automobile policies by agreeing to absorb an initial deductible amount on each claim of \$0.25 million, \$0.25 million, \$0.1 million, and \$0.1 million, respectively. The worker's compensation, general liability and automobile policies have individual stop loss coverage provisions so that the Company's total obligation under the three policies will not exceed \$1.0 million, \$0.2 million, and \$0.2 million, respectively. In addition, the three policies have a combined stop loss provision of \$1.5 million. The potential exposure under the property policy is unlimited. As of January 31, 2004, the Company has provided a reserve in the amount of \$0.6 million to cover the unpaid portion of expected future claims under all self-retained risk programs. In the opinion of management, this reserve is sufficient to cover any run-off associated with known claims and claims incurred, but not yet reported. As part of this program, the Company was required to provide an initial stand-by letter of credit in the amount of \$0.5 million in favor of the insurance company. The letter of credit has an initial term of one year, with the expiration date tracking the expiration of the insurance policy. It provides for an increasing face amount of \$0.6 million for the period February 28, 2003 through May 30, 2003, \$0.7 million for the period May 31, 2003 through October 31, 2003, and \$1.0 million for the period November 1, 2003 through February 1, 2004. The maximum potential amount of future payments is considered to be the face amount of the letter of credit. The Company, however, has an obligation to provide additional letters of credit in amounts considered sufficient by the carrier to cover expected losses of claims that remain open after the expiration of the policy coverage period. The letter of credit is callable, at the option of the insurance

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

6. Leases

The Company leases certain of its facilities and operating equipment from outside parties and from stockholders/officers. The real estate leases generally have initial lease periods of from 5 to 15 years with renewal options at the discretion of the Company; the equipment leases generally provide for initial lease terms of three to seven years and provide for a purchase right by the Company at the end of the lease term at the fair market value of the equipment.

The following is a schedule of future minimum base rental payments required under the operating leases that have initial non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year (in thousands):

Years Ended January 31,	Third Party	Related Party	Total
2005	\$11,763	\$ 207	\$11,970
2006	11,035	207	11,242
2007	10,213	207	10,420
2008	9,552	207	9,759
2009	8,538	207	8,745
Thereafter	36,897	414	37,311
Total	\$87,998	\$1,449	\$89,447

Total lease expense was approximately \$7.9 million for the year ended July 31, 2001, \$5.3 million for the six months ended January 31, 2002, \$8.7 million (unaudited) for the twelve months ended January 31, 2002 and \$12.3 million and \$14.0 million for the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004, including approximately \$0.3 million, \$0.1 million, \$0.2 million (unaudited), \$1.1 million and \$1.6 million, respectively, paid to related parties.

Certain of our leases are subject to scheduled rent increases or escalation provisions, the cost of which is recognized on a straight-line basis over the minimum lease term.

7. Common Stock

The Company approved an Incentive Stock Option Plan that provides for a pool of up to 3.5 million options to purchase shares of the Company's common stock. Such options are to be granted to various officers and employees at prices equal to the market value on the date of the grant. The options are exercisable over a ten-year period beginning three or five years after the date of grant. The provisions of the stock option plan provide that the 3.5 million share maximum option pool must be reduced by the number of restricted shares of common stock that are outstanding at any date which effectively reduces the number of options that can be issued as of January 31, 2003 to 1.8 million. As part of the completion of the IPO, the Company amended the Incentive Stock Option Plan to provide for a total available pool of 2,559,767 options, adopted a Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan that included 300,000 options, and adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that reserved up to 1,267,085 million shares to be issued. On November 24, 2003, the Company issued its six non-employee directors 240,000 total options to acquire the Company's stock at \$14.00 per share. At January 31, 2004, the Company had 60,000 options remaining in the Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan and 1,267,085 shares remaining in the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

A summary of the status of the Company's Incentive Stock Option Plan and the activity during the years ended July 31, 2001, the six months ended January 31, 2002 and the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2004 is presented below (all amounts and average exercise prices have been adjusted to reflect the 70 for 1 stock split effected as a dividend that was issued in July 2002 and are presented in thousands except per share amounts):

$\label{eq:conv} \textit{CONN'S, INC.} \\ \textbf{NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS} - \textbf{continued} \\$

	Year	E	Six Months Twelve Months Ended Ended		Years Ended January 31,									
		July 31, 2001		January 31, 2002		January 31, 2002		2003		2004				
	Shares	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Shares	Av Ex	eighted verage vercise Price	Shares	A: E:	eighted verage xercise Price	Shares		Weighted Average Exercise Price	Shares	Av Ex	eighted verage xercise Price
						(u	naudit	ed)						
Outstanding, beginning of year	388	\$ 7.50	1,160	\$	7.91	711	\$	7.91	1,174		8.08	1,241	\$	8.34
Granted	807	8.03	74	Ψ	9.02	488	Ψ	8.33	116		10.83	369	Ψ	14.00
Exercised												(47)		(8.36)
Canceled	(35)	(6.25)	(60)		(8.21)	(25)		(8.21)	(49)		(8.21)	(32)	_	(9.15)
Outstanding, end of year	1,160	\$ 7.91	1,174	\$	8.08	1,174	S	8.08	1,241		8.34	1,531	\$	9.68
outstanding, end of your	1,100	\$ 7.51	1,171	_	0.00	1,171	Ψ	0.00	1,211		0.5.	1,551	_	7.00
Weighted average grant date fair value of options														
granted during period		\$ 1.74		\$	1.78		\$	1.78			\$ 2.07		\$	5.60
Options exercisable at end														
of year Options available for grant	74 516		227 566			227 566			363 524			551 981		
options available for grain	510		200			200								
							OI	otions Outsta	anding			Options E	xercisab	ole
Range of Exercise Prices						Shares Outstanding January 31, 2004		Weighte Averag Remaini Contract Life	e ng	Weigl Aver Exer Pri	age cise	Shares Exercisable January 31, 2004		Weighted Average Exercise Price
\$4.26 - \$4.29						52		4	5.9	\$ 4	.29	42	!	\$ 4.29
\$8.21 - \$10.83						1,110			7.3	8	.50	509		8.34
\$14.00 - \$14.00						369		Ģ	9.8		.00	_		_
						1.521			<u> </u>	Ф С	. (0		-	ф одз
						1,531		(3.9	\$ 9	.68	551		\$ 8.03

8. Significant Vendors

As shown in the table below, a significant portion of the Company's merchandise purchases for the year ended July 31, 2001, the six months ended January 31, 2002, the twelve months ended January 31, 2002, and the years ended January 31, 2003 were made from six vendors:

	Year Ended	Six Months Ended	Twelve Months Ended	Years Ended January 31,	
Vendor	July 31, 2001	January 31, 2002	January 31, 2002	2003	2004
		(1	unaudited)		
A	11.1%	9.6%	12.6%	15.5%	15.5%
В	17.3	12.6	13.9	13.7	12.5
C	8.5	8.3	7.5	10.0	11.2
D	11.3	17.0	13.9	12.5	9.7
E	7.9	8.5	9.0	7.6	6.5
F	1.6	7.9	5.1	6.0	5.7
					
Totals	57.7%	63.9%	62.0%	65.3%	61.1%

As part of a program to purchase product inventory from vendors in Taiwan, the Company was obligated at January 31, 2004 for stand-by letters of credit through February 15, 2004 in the amount of \$0.8 million. The maximum potential amount of future payments is considered to be the face amount of the letters of credit.

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

9. Related Party Transactions

The Company leases certain store locations from directors, stockholders and/or officers. See Note 6. At January 31, 2003 and 2004, the Company was obligated to Specialized Realty Development Services, LP ("SRDS"), a real estate development company that is owned by various members of management and individual investors of Stephens Group, Inc. for five leases for retail store locations. The partnership is currently developing a sixth site that will be leased to the Company. The Company is obligated to lease each completed project for an initial period of 15 years. SRDS charges the Company annual lease rates of approximately 11.5% of the total cost of each project; in addition, the Company is responsible for the payment of all property taxes, insurance and common area maintenance expenses. Based on independent appraisals that have been performed on each project that has been completed, the Company believes that the terms of the leases are at least comparable to those that could be obtained in an arms' length transaction. As part of the ongoing operation of SRDS, the Company receives a management fee associated with the administrative functions that are provided to SRDS.

10. Benefit Plans

The Company has established a defined contribution 401(k) plan for full time employees who are least 21 years old and have completed 90 days of service. Employees may contribute up to 15% of their applicable compensation to the plan, and the Company will match up to 50% of the first 6% of the employee contributions made after the employee has completed one year of service. As of August 1, 2001, the Company amended the plan to provide for matching contributions equal to 100% of the first 3% of employee withholdings and 50% of the next 2% of employee withholdings.

At its option, the Company may also make supplemental contributions to the plan. The following table sets forth the contributions made by the Company to the 401(k) plan (in thousands):

	Con	Contributions	
Year ended July 31, 2001	\$	953	
Six months ended January 31, 2002		500	
Year ended January 31, 2003		1,069	
Year ended January 31, 2004		1,219	

11. Common and Preferred Stock

The Company has outstanding 23,101,772 shares of common stock, of which 324,626 shares are restricted as to various vesting rights until July 2006.

As part of the Company's recapitalization and reorganization that took place in 1998, a total of 213,720 shares of preferred stock were issued in exchange for existing common stock of the Company; such shares were valued as of the date of the transaction at \$87.18 per share and bear a cumulative dividend of 10% that was not payable until declared by the Company's board of directors. Such cumulative dividends must be paid before dividends on the common stock can be distributed. At January 31, 2003, there were \$8.2 million (\$47.17 per share), respectively, of accumulated dividends that had not been declared as payable by the Company's board of directors. On January 24, 2003, the board of directors declared a preferred stock dividend as of April 30, 2003 in the amount of \$8.8 million (\$50.53 per share) contingent upon the completion of a proposed initial public offering. On December 1, 2003 when the initial public offering was closed, the Company redeemed all preferred stock and accumulated dividends for 1,711,832 shares of common stock and \$1.5 million in cash.

The table below reflects the number of preferred shares the Company redeemed during the periods covered and the total costs of the redemptions including accumulated dividends.

	Shares Redeemed	Total Costs	Accumulated Dividends
Year ended July 31, 2001	\$ 35,792	\$ 4,097	\$ 977
Six months ended January 31, 2002	1,997	242	68
Twelve months ended January 31, 2002	37,789	4,339	1,045
Year ended January 31, 2003	_		_
Year ended January 31, 2004	174,648	25,420	10,194

CONN'S, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – continued

12. Sale of Rent-to-Own Business Unit

On February 1, 2001, the Company sold substantially all of the assets of its rent-to-own business unit. The cash purchase price for the rent-to-own assets was \$1.9 million and the Company recognized a loss from the transaction of \$0.6 million. The loss, net of taxes, is included in the loss from discontinued operations. Operating results of the discontinued rent-to-own operations are as follows (such amounts have been reclassified to the discontinued operations section of the statement of operations) and are included in the following table (in thousands):

		ar Ended July 31, 2001
Net revenues	\$	2,540
Income (loss) before income taxes		(261)
Loss on disposition of assets		(608)
Provision for income taxes	_	322
Income (loss) from discontinued operations	\$	(546)

13. Contingencies

In December 2002, Martin E. Smith, as named plaintiff, filed a lawsuit against the Company in the state district court in Jefferson County, Texas, that attempts to create a class action for breach of contract and violations of state and federal consumer protection laws arising from the terms of the Company's service maintenance agreements. The lawsuit alleges an inappropriate overlap in the product warranty periods provided by the manufacturer and the periods covered by the service maintenance agreements that the Company sells. The lawsuit seeks unspecified actual damages as well as an injunction against the Company's current practices and extension of affected service contracts. The Company believes that the warranty periods covered in its service maintenance agreements are consistent with industry practice. The Company also believes that it is premature to predict whether class action status will be granted or, if granted, the outcome of this litigation. There is not currently a basis on which to estimate a range of potential loss in this matter.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In accordance with Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we have evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this annual report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in timely alerting them to material information relating to our business (including our consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in our Exchange Act filings.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors, which could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date we carried out our most recent evaluation.

PART III

The information required by Items 10 through 14 is included in our definitive Proxy Statement relating to our 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by reference. Following is a cross reference for location of the required information.

	Item	Caption in the Conn's, Inc. 2004 Proxy Statement	Page Number in the Conn's, Inc. 2004 Proxy Statememt
ITEM 10.	DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT	BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	11 20
ITEM 11.	EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	21
ITEM 12.	SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	STOCK OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS	23
ITEM 13.	CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTION	CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS	26
ITEM 14.	PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES	INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS	28

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.

- (a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:
 - (1) The financial statements listed in response to Item 8 of this report are as follows:
 - Consolidated Balance Sheets As Restated as of January 31, 2003 and 2004
 - Consolidated Statements of Operations as Restated for the Year Ended July 31, 2001, the Six Months Ended January 31, 2002 and the Years Ended January 31, 2003 and 2004
 - Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity As Restated for the Year Ended July 31, 2001, the Six Months Ended January 31, 2002 and the Years Ended January 31, 2003 and 2004
 - Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows As Restated for the Year Ended July 31, 2001, the Six Months Ended January 31, 2002 and the Years Ended January 31, 2003 and 2004
 - (2) Financial Statement Schedule: Report of Independent Auditors on Financial Statement Schedule for the three years in the period ended January 31, 2004; Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. The financial statement schedule should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements in our 2004 Annual Report to Stockholders. Financial statement schedules not included in this report have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
 - (3) Exhibits: A list of the exhibits filed as part of this report is set forth in the Index to Exhibits, which immediately precedes such exhibits and is incorporated herein by reference.
- (b) Reports on Form 8-K.

During the quarter ended January 31, 2004, we filed the following current reports on Form 8-K:

- On December 11, 2003, we filed a current report on Form 8-K announcing our earnings for the quarter ended October 31, 2003.
- On December 24, 2003, we filed a current report on Form 8-K announcing the underwriters' exercise of over-allotment option.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of l934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CONN'S, INC.

(Registrant)

Date: April 16, 2004 /s/ Thomas J. Frank, Sr.

Thomas J. Frank, Sr.

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature	Title	Date		
/s/ Thomas J. Frank, Sr. Thomas J. Frank, Sr.	Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)	April 16, 2004		
/s/ C. William Frank C. William Frank	Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)	April 16, 2004		
/s/ Marvin D. Brailsford Marvin D. Brailsford	Director	April 16, 2004		
/s/ Jon E.M. Jacoby	Director	April 16, 2004		
Jon E.M. Jacoby /s/ Bob L. Martin	Director	April 16, 2004		
Bob L. Martin /s/ Douglas H. Martin	Director	April 16, 2004		
Douglas H. Martin /s/ William T. Trawick	Director	April 16, 2004		
William T. Trawick /s/ Theodore M. Wright	 Director	April 16, 2004		
Theodore M. Wright	_			

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number	Description
2	Agreement and Plan of Merger dated January 15, 2003, by and among Conn's, Inc., Conn Appliances, Inc. and Conn's Merger Sub, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
3.1	Certificate of Incorporation of Conn's, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
3.2	Bylaws of Conn's, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
4.1	Specimen of certificate for shares of Conn's, Inc.'s common stock (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.1	Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.2	2003 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.3	Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.4	Conn's 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.5	Shopping Center Lease Agreement dated May 3, 2000, by and between Beaumont Development Group, L.P., f/k/a Fiesta Mart, Inc., as Lessor, and CAI, L.P., as Lessee, for the property located at 3295 College Street, Suite A, Beaumont, Texas (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.5.1	First Amendment to Shopping Center Lease Agreement dated September 11, 2001, by and among Beaumont Development Group, L.P., f/k/a Fiesta Mart, Inc., as Lessor, and CAI, L.P., as Lessee, for the property located at 3295 College Street, Suite A, Beaumont, Texas (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5.1 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.6	Industrial Real Estate Lease dated June 16, 2000, by and between American National Insurance Company, as Lessor, and CAI, L.P., as Lessee, for the property located at 8550-A Market Street, Houston, Texas (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.7	Lease Agreement dated December 5, 2000, by and between Prologis Development Services, Inc., f/k/a The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, as Lessor, and CAI, L.P., as Lessee, for the property located at 4810 Eisenhauer Road, Suite 240, San Antonio, Texas (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).
10.7.1	Lease Amendment No. 1 dated November 2, 2001, by and between Prologis Development Services, Inc., f/k/a The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, as Lessor, and CAI, L.P., as Lessee, for the property located at 4810 Eisenhauer Road, Suite 240, San Antonio, Texas (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7.1 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)).

10.8 Lease Agreement dated August 18, 2003, by and between Robert K. Thomas, as Lessor, and CAI, L.P., as Lessee, for the property located at 4610-12 McEwen Road, Dallas, Texas (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). 10.9 Credit Agreement dated April 24, 2003, by and among Conn Appliances, Inc. and the Borrowers thereunder, the Lenders party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Administrative Agent, Bank of America, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and SunTrust Bank, as Documentation Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). 10.10 Receivables Purchase Agreement dated September 1, 2002, by and among Conn Funding II, L.P., as Purchaser, Conn Appliances, Inc. and CAI, L.P., collectively as Originator and Seller, and Conn Funding I, L.P., as Initial Seller (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). 10.11 Base Indenture dated September 1, 2002, by and between Conn Funding II, L.P., as Issuer, and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). Series 2002-A Supplement to Base Indenture dated September 1, 2002, by and between Conn Funding II, L.P., as Issuer, and Wells Fargo Bank 10.12 Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). 10.13 Series 2002-B Supplement to Base Indenture dated September 1, 2002, by and between Conn Funding II, L.P., as Issuer, and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 10.14 Servicing Agreement dated September 1, 2002, by and among Conn Funding II, L.P., as Issuer, CAI, L.P., as Servicer, and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). 10.15 Form of Executive Employment Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). 10.16 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-109046)). Subsidiaries of Conn's, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 21 to Conn's, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-21 109046)). 23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP (filed herewith). 31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (Chief Executive Officer) (filed herewith). 31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (Chief Financial Officer) (filed herewith). 32.1 Section 1350 Certification (Chief Executive Officer) (furnished herewith). 32.2 Section 1350 Certification (Chief Financial Officer) (furnished herewith). 99.1 Subcertification of Chief Operating Officer in support of Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (Chief Executive Officer) (filed herewith). 76

- 99.2 Subcertification of Secretary/Treasurer in support of Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (Chief Executive Officer) (filed herewith).
- 99.3 Subcertification of Chief Operating Officer and Secretary/Treasurer in support of Section 1350 Certifications (furnished herewith).

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (Nos. 333-111280, 333-111281, and 333-111282) of our report dated April 2, 2004, with respect to consolidated financial statements and schedule of Conn's, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended January 31, 2004.

Ernst & Young LLP

April 16, 2004

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (Chief Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Thomas J. Frank, Sr., certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Conn's, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 16, 2004 /s/ Thomas J. Frank, Sr.

Thomas J. Frank, Sr. Chief Executive Officer

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (Chief Financial Officer)

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, C. William Frank, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Conn's, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared:
 - b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 16, 2004 /s/ C. William Frank

C. William Frank Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certification (Chief Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Conn's, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Thomas J. Frank, Sr., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 16, 2004 /s/ Thomas J. Frank, Sr.

Thomas J. Frank, Sr. Chief Executive Officer

Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (Chief Financial Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Conn's, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, C. William Frank, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 16, 2004 /s/ C. William Frank

C. William Frank Chief Financial Officer

SUBCERTIFICATION BY CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER IN SUPPORT OF RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER)

I, William C. Nylin, Jr., certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Conn's, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
- (a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
- (b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- (c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
 - 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 16, 2004 /s/ William C. Nylin, Jr.

William C. Nylin, Jr. President and Chief Operating Officer

SUBCERTIFICATION BY SECRETARY/TREASURER IN SUPPORT OF RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

I, David R. Atnip, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Conn's, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
- (a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared
- (b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- (c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
 - 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 16, 2004 /s/ David R. Atnip

David R. Atnip Senior Vice President and Secretary/Treasurer

SUBCERTIFICATION OF CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND SECRETARY/TREASURER IN SUPPORT OF

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Conn's, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), we, William C. Nylin, Jr., President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company and David R. Atnip, Senior Vice President and Secretary/Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 16, 2004

/s/ William C. Nylin, Jr.

William C. Nylin, Jr. President and Chief Operating Officer

/s/ David R. Atnip

David R. Atnip Senior Vice President and Secretary/Treasurer

Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts Conn Appliances, Inc.

Col A	Col B	Col C		Col D	Col E
		Additions			
Description	Balance at Beginning of Period	Charged to Costs and Expenses	Charged to Other Accounts- Describe	Deductions- Describe ¹	Balance at End of Period
Year ended July 31, 2000					
Reserves and allowances from asset accounts:					
Allowance for doubtful accounts	107	793	_	(750)	150
Year ended July 31, 2001					
Reserves and allowances from asset accounts:					
Allowance for doubtful accounts	150	1734	_	(1,734)	150
Six months ended January 31, 2002					
Reserves and allowances from asset accounts:					
Allowance for doubtful accounts	150	1286	_	(1,319)	117
Year ended January 31, 2003					
Reserves and allowances from asset accounts:					
Allowance for doubtful accounts	117	4125	_	(4,125)	117
Year ended January 31, 2004					
Reserves and allowances from asset accounts:					
Allowance for doubtful accounts	117	4657	_	(2,855)	1,919

¹ Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries